
BR/04/03/02 

London Borough of Barking and Dagenham 
 

Notice of Meeting 
 

THE EXECUTIVE 
 

Tuesday, 29 April 2003 - Civic Centre, Dagenham, 7:00 pm 
 
Members: Councillor C J Fairbrass (Chair); Councillor C Geddes (Deputy Chair); 
Councillor J L Alexander, Councillor S Kallar, Councillor M E McKenzie, Councillor B 
M Osborn, Councillor J W Porter and Councillor T G W Wade. 
 
Declaration of Members Interest: In accordance with Article 1, Paragraph 12 of the 
Constitution, Members are asked to declare any direct/indirect financial or other 
interest they may have in any matter which is to be considered at this meeting  
 
 
17.04.03    Graham Farrant 
        Chief Executive 
 
 

Contact Officer Barry Ray 
Tel. 020 8227 2134 
Fax: 020 8227 2171 

Minicom: 020 8227 2685 
E-mail: barry.ray@lbbd.gov.uk 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   
 
2. Minutes - To confirm as correct the minutes of the meeting held on 15 

April 2003 (circulated separately)   
 
Business Items  

 
Public Item 3 is a business item.  The Chair will move that this be agreed without 
discussion, unless any Member asks to raise a specific point. 
 
Any discussion of a Private Business Item will take place after the exclusion of the 
public and press.  

 
3. Embedding Workplace Basic Skills In London Local Authorities Project 

(Pages 1 - 23)  
 
 Appendix 3 - Spend Profile will be circulated separately.  

 
4. Managing Members and M.P. Enquiries in Social Services Report (Pages 

25 - 36)  
 



BR/04/03/02 

5. Attendance at Conferences (Pages 37 - 38)  
 
Discussion Items  

 
6. Best Value Review of School Attendance (Pages 39 - 83)  
 
7. Youth Support and Development Service Plan 2003/04 (Pages 87 - 124)  
 
8. Appeal System - Housing Allocation Offers and Homelessness Offers 

(Pages 125 - 135)  
 
9. Audit of Child Protection Services: Laming Recommendations (Pages 137 

- 138)  
 
 A copy of the draft response to the Audit requirement will be circulated 

separately.  
 

10. Procurement Spend to Save (Pages 139 - 144)  
 
11. Any other public items which the Chair decides are urgent   
 
12. To consider whether it would be appropriate to pass a resolution to 

exclude the public and press from the remainder of the meeting due to 
the nature of the business to be transacted.   

 
Private Business 

 
The public and press have a legal right to attend Council meetings such as the 
Executive, except where business is confidential or certain other sensitive 
information is to be discussed.  The list below shows why items are in the 
private part of the agenda, with reference to the relevant legislation (the 
relevant paragraph of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972).  

 
Discussion Items  

 
13. Education Private Finance Initiative (PFI) Selection of Preferred Bidder 

(Pages 147 - 152)  
 
 Concerns a Contractual matter (paragraphs 8 and 9)  

 
14. Procurement of Capital Projects (Pages 153 - 156)  
 
 Concerns a Contractual matter (paragraphs 7 and 9)  

 
15. Accord LBBD Partnering Arrangement - Accord Costs for Non Inclusion 

(Pages 157 - 159)  
 
 Concerns a Contractual matter (paragraphs 9 and 10)  

 



BR/04/03/02 

16. Accord LBBD Repairs and Maintenance Partnership - Support to 
Community Housing Partnerships (Pages 161 - 163)  

 
 Concerns a Contractual matter (paragraphs 9 and 10)  

 
17. Pondfield House - Conditions of Use by the Accord LBBD Partnership 

(Pages 165 - 169)  
 
 Concerns a Contractual matter (paragraphs 9 and 10)  

 
18. Thames Accord / LBBD Repairs and Maintenance Partnership - 

Conditions of Contract (to follow)   
 
 Concerns a Staffing Matter (paragraph 1)  

 
19. Technical Support to the Community Housing Partnerships - 

Appointment of Designer (Pages 171 - 173)  
 
 Concerns a Contractual Matter (paragraph 7)  

 
20. Land in Abbey Road - Relocation of the Canoe Club (to follow)   
 
 Concerns a Contractual matter (paragraphs 9 and 10)  

 
21. Consideration of Alternative Locations for the Alcohol Advisory Service 

(Pages 175 - 180)  
 
 Concerns a Contractual matter (paragraph 9)  

 
22. Refurbishment of Civic Centre Public and Civic Areas (Pages 181 - 188)  
 
 Concerns a Contractual matter (paragraphs 9 and 10)  

 
23. Regeneration of Becontree Heath (Pages 189 - 190)  
 
Business Items  

 
None.  

 
24. Any other confidential or exempt items which the Chair decides are 

urgent   
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

THE EXECUTIVE 
 

29 APRIL 2003 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF EDUCATION, ARTS AND LIBRARIES 
 
EMBEDDING WORKPLACE BASIC SKILLS IN LONDON 
LOCAL AUTHORITIES PROJECT 
 

FOR INFORMATION  

This is a report on developments designed to improve the basic literacy, numeracy and 
ESOL (English for speakers of other languages) skills of the Council’s workforce. 
 
Summary 
 
This report outlines the benefits of joining a pilot project to embed workplace basic skills 
provision. The main features of the project are to: 
 

• Ensure policies are established which address employees’ needs; 
• Provide training for managers, HR staff and Learning Representatives 
• Provide basic skills courses for council employees 
• Demonstrate the effectiveness of education in improving job skills. 

 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is asked to note the aims of the project and support its implementation 
across all Council departments. This will involve; 
 

• Encouraging staff to attend contextualised basic skills courses; 
• Training key personnel (HR managers, Service managers, Learning representatives 

and identified champions); and 
• Setting up a steering group. 

 
Reasons 
 
The project provides external funds and expertise, which will support the Council’s stated 
commitments to develop the skills of the whole of its workforce.  In the past the take up of 
training amongst manual grade staff has been very low. 
 
Contact Officer: 
Mark Adams 

 
Adult Basic Skills 
Coordinator 

 
Telephone: 020 8270 4882 
Fax: 020 8270 6791 
Email: mark.adams@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

 
1. Background 
 
1.1. The ‘Embedding Workplace Basic Skills in London Local Authorities Project’ will 

involve three London local authorities, start in March 2003 and be managed by the 
Basic Skills Agency on behalf of the London Development Agency.  

 

AGENDA ITEM 3

Page 1



 

1.2. The Adult Basic Skills Initiative, backed by TMT, has made a successful bid to join 
this pilot on behalf of Barking and Dagenham Council. TMT have agreed in principle 
to release employees for up to three days per year to attend basic skills courses. 
‘Basic Skills’ encompasses literacy, numeracy and ESOL (English for Speakers of 
Other Languages) below NVQ level 2 (GCSE level). 
 

2. Consultations and Implications 
 
2.1. TMT and representatives from HR, Trade Unions and Learning 

Representatives in all departments have been consulted; initial support has 
been received although some issues have already been identified.  

 
2.2. To reflect this and in order to start the process of change the project will take 

a flexible and sensitive approach to negotiating the release of employees to 
attend training. 
 

2.3. In the short-term the bid allows for the fully funded release for managers and 
learners to attend meetings and courses. This is to make involvement with 
the project attractive, to encourage managers to overcome barriers, and 
allow the positive effects of training to be demonstrated. 

 
2.4. In the longer term it is envisaged that employees’ basic skills needs will be 

addressed through embedded policies and procedures.  By measuring 
performance criteria such as job skills improvement, internal job progression, 
staff retention and staff absenteeism the project will seek to make a business 
case for training. This should guarantee the future of such important training. 
 

2.5. Over the 25 months for the duration of the project the benefits will be: 
• A grant of £94 000 to develop and implement a workplace basic skills 

strategy. 
• A grant to employ an experienced workplace basic skills practitioner. 
• Sustained support to embed workplace basic skills training. 

 
With a commitment from the Council to provide: 

 
• Release for 15 staff to attend training and develop strategies and 

policies (HR staff, Managers and employee representatives) 
• Release for at least 100 learners to attend 30-hour courses to develop 

their literacy, numeracy and language skills. 
 

In order to be successful the project will need to be supported at all levels 
across the Council. 

 
 
 
Background Papers given as appendices 
1 B and D application. 
2 Monitoring performance and success criteria. 
3 Spend profile Barking and Dagenham. 
4 Functions and tasks in workplace literacy, numeracy and ESOL. 

Page 2



 1

  
 

 
APPLICATION FORM 

 
 

GRANT TO EMBED WORKPLACE BASIC SKILLS TRAINING 
IN LONDON LOCAL AUTHORITIES 2002 - 2005 

 
 
 
Please refer to the Grant Prospectus when completing this form.  
 
Local Authority: London Borough of Barking and Dagenham 
 
Address: Civic Centre 
          Dagenham RM10 7BN 
 
Correspondence Address: Mark Adams 
                             Community Inspection and Advisory Service 
                             The Westbury Centre 
                             Ripple Road 
                                          Barking IG11 7PT 
Contact name: Mark Adams 
 
 
Job title: Adult Basic Skills Coordinator 
 
 

Tel: 020 8270 4892 
Fax: 020 8270 6791 
Email: mark.adams@lbbd.gov.uk 
Mobile: 07941 794455 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Your organisation  (For information only) 

Page 3



 2

1.1 Please list numbers of low and semi-skilled staff by grade and department, 
indicating where these staff are contracted out.  

Department 
Numbers of low and semi-skilled staff/ areas of work 
Grade 
Contracted out? 
 
Leisure and Environmental services 
Cleaners- 480 
Leisure attendants- 50 
School crossing patrol- 45 
Grounds maintenance- 80+ 
Refuse – 60 
Drivers –50 
Roads, Highways, Misc -150 
 Manual Grades 1-6 Spinal points 4-11 
NONE 
 
Social Services 
Home care- 175 
Care home workers- 135 
Health disabilities, day careworkers- 72 
 
 
Manual Grades 1-6 Spinal points 4-11 
NONE 
 
Housing and Health 
200 Direct Labour Organisation 
30   Building caretakers 
Manual Grades 1-6 Spinal points 4-11 
NONE 
 
Education, Arts and Libraries 
Catering- 300 
Supervisory assistants 584 
Caretakers 60 
Transport -90 
 
Manual Grades 1-6 Spinal points 4-11 
NONE 
 
Chief Executive’s 
NONE 
NONE 
NONE 
 
 
Total staff (all grades): 
Council Employees 
F/t Male – 2450      F/t Female - 4232 
P/t Male – 246         P/t Female – 2058 

2696 6290 
         TOTAL 8986 

Page 4



 3

• What staff development activities are currently offered to low and semi-skilled employees, 
including those in contracted out services? 

Currently no services are contracted out although there are imminent plans to contract out some 
services in the Leisure and Environmental services and Social services Departments. 
Corporate training – Most training is geared mainly towards managers.  The training suitable for low 
and semi-skilled employees is detailed below. There is currently very limited funding in this area. 
There is a corporate Employee Development programme in place, including: 

• Corporate induction 
• Self-management 
• Handling stress 
• Taking minutes 
• Communications programme- General communications/ Listening/Persuading & 

Negotiating/Writing/Meetings/Assertion/Presentation (Evening sessions)- Listening skills, 
Better writing-Effective meetings-Assertiveness-Giving a Talk 

• Customer Focus- Assertion Without Aggression/Customer Care skills/Customer 
srvice/Managing Violence and Aggression/Building Equalities into customer care 

• Raising Standards- Health and Safety/ Equal Opportunities 
• NVQ programme customer service, Health and Safety 

 
Departmental training 
In addition, departments have their own training programmes: 
Leisure and Environmental Services 

• Communication skills, Health and Safety Training, Equalities, NVQs 
Social Services 

• Communication, Health and Safety, Moving and handling, disability awareness, first aid, food 
hygiene 

Housing and Health 
• Induction 
• Health and Safety training 
• Job-related training 

Education, Arts and Libraries 
• CPD programme for classroom assistants  

Chief Executive’s 
• (see Corporate training) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



 4

 
 
 
Experience in supporting basic skills learning at work 

(For information only) 
2.1    What past or current experience does your Local Authority have in supporting employees to 
improve their literacy, numeracy and ESOL skills? 
The Employee Development Programme was mainly management-focused. Take up of communications 
courses amongst manual employees was very low. All departments have a training programme and a 
Training and Development Officer. These personnel attend a monthly Lifelong Learning Working Party 
where the introduction of Basic Skills into workforce development has been the agenda for the past 
four years. A total of 8 manual employees were registered on Basic Skills Courses in the workplace 
with the Adult College.  Indications are that this number has increased. Borough residents are now 
prioritised for some courses.  
In March 2001 the Council set up the Adult Basic Skills Initiative to tackle the problem of poor basic 
skills within the Borough. A key objective, mentioned in Skills for Life, states ‘Barking and Dagenham 
local education authority are initiating a five-year programme of training and accreditation for council 
staff, volunteers and others to provide the necessary community capacity in teaching literacy and 
numeracy skills.’  A Management group including all Council departments and a Working group was set 
up to oversee the Initiative.  From January 2002 a team was recruited, comprising specialists in adult 
literacy, numeracy and ESOL to support providers and develop learning materials.  External consultants 
audited provision in the Borough. More recently a Basic Skills Agency Consultancy audited programme 
systems amongst major providers, based on the Quality Mark. A good working relationship has been 
established with providers through the ABSI management/working groups and a recently formed 
tutor-training group. A whole Borough framework details the Borough’s plans till 2006 and beyond. 
Partners include the Adult College, Barking FE college, voluntary sector providers, Ford Offline and 
LEARNDIRECT. 
The Council has given support to the nationally recognised Union Learning funded project, Growth 
through learning. This has built an extensive network of 35 Learning representatives across all 
departments. The second phase has begun and aims to double this number.  Feedback from active 
Representatives revealed very limited participation of training of any kind amongst low and semi-skilled 
staff.  Most recently a workplace basic skills tutor has been seconded onto the Union project from the 
Adult College to plan and deliver courses to Borough employees over the current year. All relevant 
EMPNTO mappings have been acquired and are currently being used to plan ‘Frontline skills courses’ 
using a consultant from Workbase, the Basic Skills specialists. Recruitment of learners has begun 
mainly in the Leisure and Environmental services department. 
Basic Skills awareness courses and consultations have taken place with Learning Representatives, 
senior managers across the Council (as part of an Investment in People Conference), Council Members, 
Departmental Heads of Human Resources and senior managers in the Leisure and Environmental 
services Department. The Employer Toolkit has been used widely. Links have been established with the 
Local job centres, Citizens advice bureaus and Information, Advice and Guidance networks. As 
members of the Workplace Basic Skills network ABSI recognises the importance of learning from 
specialists in the field.  

Page 6



 5

2.2 How does this experience inform your application? 
There are a number of measures in place across the Borough upon which we can build. ABSI has been 
established to coordinate the Council’s existing commitments in this area and is available to coordinate 
the project. Since Members and Senior managers across all Council Departments are fully aware and 
supportive of these aims this application recognises the need to concentrate on the crucial elements of 
encouraging demand for courses and embedding processes to make training accessible and routine. 
Consultations have revealed that, although most managers are fully supportive, negotiating release is a 
major barrier.  The application recognises that this is a major issue and, although in the long term the 
benefits of training should overwhelmingly outweigh costs within each Department, in the short term 
more funding will be needed in this area. The standing of Barking and Dagenham as virtually the worst 
authority in the country for combined Adult Literacy and numeracy standards together with a poor 
record of addressing the basic skills needs of its workforce highlights the need for urgent and radical 
action. The building of the network of Learning Representatives will be strengthened. Experience has 
shown us that recruitment of learners is most successful through a trusted human contact. If 
Representatives have, themselves, been through the whole process they will be in a much better 
position to encourage and support new learners. With this in mind this bid seeks to raise the profile of 
our Learning Representatives even higher by giving them the experiences of assessing, improving and 
testing their own skills before persuading others to do the same. 

Page 7



 6

3. Evidence of need and vision – 20 Marks 
3.1  What do you consider to be the need for improving literacy, numeracy and ESOL amongst 

employees in your Local Authority, based on nationally and locally available evidence? 
Of the 87 473 adults in the Borough 27 405 are estimated to have urgent literacy needs and 29 957 
are estimated by the Basic Skills Agency to have urgent numeracy needs. These represent a combined 
total of 32.9% of the population aged 16-60 (the worst figures in London) It seems reasonable to 
extrapolate that low paid employees, a target group in the strategy, would fall into this category in at 
least these proportions implying a minimum of 1203 employees needing urgent help in literacy and 
numeracy alone. (Census figures indicate a rapidly rising ESOL population also.) Initial findings from a 
Learning Representative survey suggest that the proportion in the workplace may be far higher. 
Amongst those working in the Parks Department for example around 50% have volunteered themselves 
for our first Basic Skills courses this month. Many manual employees have done little or no literacy or 
numeracy training since leaving school. The Borough has the lowest proportion of HE qualifications in 
the country. Most were educated in this Borough at a time of very low achievement. This contrasts 
with the Borough’s recent huge improvement in school achievement- it was the fastest improving in the 
country from 1997 to 2001- making an inter-generational gap between employees and their children.   
3.2 What is your organisation’s vision for literacy, numeracy and ESOL development amongst your 
employees? Vision: ‘A community that expects functional literacy and numeracy throughout the adult 
population’ (Whole Borough Framework for Action) Council members: ‘Low or very low basic skills is a 
key issue for the community of Barking and Dagenham. High expectations and aspirations are part of 
this vision based on the propositions that: aptitude is a function of time and opportunity to learn, not 
innate ability, nor what happens early in life or at school; capacity to think and learn declines, if at all, 
only minimally with age; literacy and numeracy are available to all - no-one is illiterate - all can get 
better - literacy is present in everyone's life embedded as a set of social practices; programmes are 
needed to work on everyone's literacy and numeracy ;motivation of men benefits them and their 
families; writing is more difficult to deal with than reading; speaking and listening are vitally important 
also in this community.’ Targets have been set by the Council to achieve national average rates in adult 
literacy and numeracy by 2010. Literacy and numeracy development plans (subject to Best Value 
appraisal) have been established. ‘A clear and workable Workplace basic skills policy’ and  ‘Good 
penetration of the workforce, especially the hard to reach groups’ have been cited as key aims of 
Council policy. The establishment of 1:1 appraisals is a key aim. The use of a growing number of 
community venues has been planned for. A total of 10 new UKONLINE centres, designed specifically 
with teaching basic skills in mind, are due to be completed this year.  
3.3   How does this proposal support your Local Authority corporate objectives?  (Reference should be 

made to key performance indicators). 
There are 7 Community priorities- Raising pride in the Borough, Developing rights and responsibilities 
with the local community, Improving health, housing and social care, Better education and learning for 
all, Regenerating the local economy, Making Barking and Dagenham cleaner, greener and safer, 
Promoting equality, opportunities and celebrating diversity. The authority uses the Balanced scorecard 
framework for planning. The four perspectives are “Community first, Customer First” (Community 
Leadership role and customers), “Performance Counts” (Our processes to ensure efficient delivery of 
quality services), People Matter (The organisation, staff and culture) and “Funding the future” 
(Financial issues). Each department team sets performance indicators derived from this framework. 
People matter clearly recognises the development of its employees as key. The Borough regeneration 
strategy, preparing for the huge Thames Gateway development spells out clearly the aims of 
developing adult skills throughout the community. The Council as a whole has recently applied for 
Investors in People status. An assessment is due in March. This objective makes it essential to 
demonstrate commitment to the 4 principles required: Commitment, Planning, Action and Evaluation. 
Learning opportunities for all of the workforce are an essential part of the Standard. 

Page 8



 7

 
4. Demonstrating commitment and preparedness – 20 Marks 
4.1 Please describe the extent of senior management commitment for the activities proposed in this 
application.  How far are key players engaged within your organisation? 
In preparing the bid the following senior managers have been consulted, contributed to the 
application and confirmed their support personally and jointly through TMT (the Management Team 
of the Council- The Chief Executive, Heads of all Departments- Education, Arts and Libraries, Social 
Services, Housing and Health and Leisure and Environmental Services- and the Borough Personnel 
Officer).  The Head of Corporate HR, Departmental Heads of Human Resources, Training and 
Development Officers within each Department, Senior managers in the Leisure and Environmental 
services department, the Borough Equality and Diversity and Corporate Communications Officers 
have also been consulted at a recent event and have confirmed their support.  
This support builds on existing commitments which mirror the aims of the project: The Borough as a 
whole has applied for IIP status, TMT has agreed 6 days per annum release for all Learning 
Representatives (in excess and ahead of legislation) and up to 3 days release time for employees 
wanting Basic Skills courses (2 days for everyone else). Further evidence for support for the 
provision of Basic Skills in the workforce can be found in the Organisation Development plans for 
each Department, the Regeneration strategies, the Adult and Community Learning Plans and the 
Adult Basic Skills Initiative Minutes from April 2001 to date. The Borough is committed to raising 
the skills of its workforce up to and beyond the NVQ training targets set by the Government.  In 
addition the Borough is committed to developing 1:1 appraisals for all and is already a corporate 
Member of the Plain English campaign.  
4.2  What links have already been established with key local players including your LSC, basic skills 
training providers and Learn Direct and how does this inform your proposal? 
The nationally recognised TUC-funded Growth Through Learning Project has been and continues to be 
a major link in training Learning Representatives and supporting this agenda, most recently in the 
appointment of a full-time workplace Basic Skills tutor.  In partnership with ABSI and the Adult 
College this project has already begun to train Representatives and recruit Council Employees for 
courses planned in conjunction with Workbase the Basic Skills specialists.  
Major Trade unions ( T&GW, GMB, GMB APEX, Unison) are fully supportive of the aims of ABSI and 
current plans to engage the workforce. Union involvement is further supported through TUC learning 
services, which is represented on the ABSI management group.  Negotiations at a senior level are 
possible using the well-established JNC/Union forum, which meets regularly.  Existing Links between 
these partners include the ABSI management Group, the Growth through learning Steering Group and 
the Corporate HR’s Lifelong Learning Working Party.  The Employer toolkit and BSA Awareness 
Raising Pack have been used extensively to persuade key players of the importance of overcoming 
resistance to change. 
The ABSI Coordinator sits on the London East Learning and Skills Council’s External reference group 
and the Centre of Excellence Operations Group and has won support and separate contracts for 
teacher training (ESF/LSC) and developing ESOL (Regeneration/LDA). Contacts with major providers 
have been further strengthened by the recent formation of a tutor-training group.  
The local LEARNDIRECT hub manager supports the bid and has suggested the possibility of 
establishing LEARNDIRECT ‘pods’ in accessible Council venues. Because of the existence of various 
links and contacts built up since January 2002 the proposal seeks to extend and develop our existing 
plans. 
 

Page 9



 8

5.   A realistic delivery plan – 10 Marks 
5.1 How have you developed your delivery plan to make use of organisational strengths and previous 

experience? 
In Barking and Dagenham much of the infrastructure, commitment and agreement to develop and 
embed a workplace basic skills programme is already in place. The delivery plan seeks to build on these 
strengths using expertise from specialist consultants to ensure that training is effective and 
workable. 
Specialist consultants will be engaged to advise our existing workplace tutor on all aspects of good 
practice in needs analysis, assessment, programme planning, delivery and review. This will guide current 
plans for imminent courses and enable the project to begin as soon as possible. Since the Council is 
already working closely with the Adult College on this, a target and delivery schedule could be drawn 
up quickly using established contacts. 
Groups have been established which could be mandated to take over the internal management of the 
project, namely the Lifelong Learning working party or the Adult Basic skills Initiative management 
group. Since each HR department has its own Training and Development officer these staff could be 
offered the planned training. Payment in recognition of the time commitment and extra work needed 
would be made to each department.  
The number of Learning Representatives will be increased, and their profile raised, through intensive 
training designed to enable them to experience the whole process of basic skills development first- 
hand. This would strengthen their knowledge base and give credibility to their recommendations. 
Following training 10 could be selected to take the Level 2 qualifications to ensure a spread across 
departments and venues. 
Through intensive discussions, early morning meetings and persuasion by the ABSI training and 
development officer, a number of supervisors/ frontline managers have already emerged as 
supporters. Key personnel would be offered the bespoke training provided through the project.  
Recruitment of learners has already begun, focussing on the Leisure and Environmental services 
department. The Delivery plan outlines a gradual process of recruitment through Departments aiming 
to gain support in depth across the different layers of management. This should encourage reluctant 
employees to come forward and ensure that progress is built on solid foundations.  
The plan recognises the difference between making a funded-project work and embedding policy for 
the whole organisation, independent of extra funding. The Steering Group will look at ways of moving 
forward the process of 1:1 appraisals in Council policy terms and provide guidance on ways of 
establishing training needs, especially at the induction stage. 
As Corporate members of the Clear English campaign the Council has already begun the process of 
revising public documents both in paper and electronic format. This will be extended in the plan to 
include workforce documentation across service and HR teams and formats. Commercial materials will 
be purchased to supplement our own in-house materials, which will be developed by the workplace tutor 
in conjunction with the literacy, numeracy and ESOL specialists in the existing ABSI team. The plan 
recognises the importance of using software as well as paper-based materials to take advantage of the 
Borough’s expanding network of venues for e-learning. In order to maximise the effectiveness of 
training much emphasis will be placed on making training relevant to the workplace. This will be 
achieved through the use of extensive needs analyses, EMPNTO units and resources used by existing 
practitioners, downloaded from the net. The Corporate Management team has agreed the bid including 
the HR commitments required by the project in terms of staff release. To overcome the possible 
reluctance of learners to take the national tests a number of measures have been built into the bid, 
including Learning Representative training to break down the barriers and extra intensive training 
sessions to teach test techniques and give time for practice. To create a sustainable corporate 
strategy will entail embedding this issue in all organisational plans and amongst key personnel at every 
level in each department.  

Page 10



 9

 
6   Added value – 10 Marks 
6.1  What additional outcomes will be generated through this funding over and above 
activities already planned? 
As a result of this project it is envisaged that there will be many additional benefits 
accruing to the organisation, Council employees and the public in general. These will 
include: 

• Performance targets- as a result of improved performance by the workforce 
• Additional learning outcomes through other training programmes- by increased 

involvement at all levels, not just Basic Skills. 
• Move the Council further towards delivering on their stated aim of 1:1 

appraisals for all -Group appraisals as a stepping stone are currently being used
• NVQ targets in Care and other vocations -currently delayed progress due to 

unmet Basic Skills needs 
• Strengthening of the link between induction and training requirements @ 1,2,4 

and 6 months- currently under-utilised for identifying training  
• Council awarded Investors in People status -Whole Council assessment due in 

March  
• Improved IIP procedures -from inter-departmental working 
• Entitlement to training guarantee realised in practice -procedure of take-up of 

entitlements unclear at present 
• Organisational development plans embed Basic Skills –The ‘People part’ of 

departmental balanced scorecards which guide planning 
• Strengthened Learning representative training programme- Targets to double 

the number of Learning Representatives and to encourage 300 learners to take 
up further learning 

• Identification of key individuals as additional champions within departments 
over and above the minimum number required by the bid 

• Growth in the proportion of men involved in adult literacy, numeracy and ESOL- 
Meeting targets for 20% increase year on year to 2006 in the number of 
adults studying literacy and numeracy 

• Increased participation in all forms of learning through family involvement- Key 
targets to increase the number of adults on Family courses 

• Strengthened inter-departmental links 
• Improved inter-agency links, e.g. Social Services/Health (from a shared 

agenda) 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



Page 12



 
11

 

7  
D
el
iv
er

y 
pl
an

 -
 1

5 
M

ar
ks

 
 D

es
cr

ib
e 

ho
w 

fu
nd

ed
 a

ct
iv

it
y 

wi
ll 

be
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ke

y 
ac

ti
vi

ti
es

 a
nd

 m
ile

st
on

es
.  

Yo
ur

 p
la

n 
sh

ou
ld

 in
cl

ud
e 

al
l L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
ri

ty
 o

ut
co

m
es

 li
st

ed
 in

 
Se

ct
io

n 
2 

of
 t

he
 p

ro
sp

ec
tu

s.
  A

n 
ex

am
pl

e 
of

 p
os

si
bl

e 
m

ile
st

on
es

 a
nd

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

is
 g

iv
en

 a
t 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 t

hi
s 

fo
rm

. 
  O

ut
co

m
es

 
M

ile
st

on
es

 &
 A

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
Ta

rg
et

 D
at

e 
H

ow
 E

va
lu

at
ed

 
A

n 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
wi

th
 a

 g
oo

d 
qu

al
it

y,
 s

pe
ci

al
is

t 
ba

si
c 

sk
ill

s 
pr

ov
id

er
  

• 
Ba

si
c 

sk
ill

s 
pr

ov
id

er
 s

el
ec

te
d 

  
• 

Co
ns

ul
ta

nt
 p

ra
ct

it
io

ne
r 

pr
ov

id
ed

 

M
ar

ch
 0

3 
  M

ar
ch

 0
3 

Pr
ov

id
er

 n
am

ed
, a

gr
ee

d 
ta

rg
et

s 
an

d 
de

liv
er

y 
sc

he
du

le
 

Sp
ec

ia
lis

t 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 
en

ga
ge

d 
/ 

su
pp

or
t 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

ag
re

ed
 

W
or

ki
ng

 w
it

h 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t 
te

am
, t

o 
su

pp
or

t 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

fo
r 

pa
rt

ne
r 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

a 
m

in
im

um
 o

f 
20

 
ba

si
c 

sk
ill

s 
sp

ec
ia

lis
ts

 r
ec

ei
vi

ng
 a

 
m

in
im

um
 o

f 
30

 h
ou

rs
 a

dd
it

io
na

l t
ra

in
in

g 

• 
A

rr
an

ge
 A

BS
I/

Li
fe

lo
ng

 le
ar

ni
ng

 g
ro

up
 t

o 
ob

ta
in

 
m

an
da

te
 t

o 
de

liv
er

 c
on

tr
ac

t 
–b

ec
om

es
 in

te
rn

al
 

st
ee

ri
ng

 g
ro

up
 

• 
 S

el
ec

t 
H

R 
re

ps
 

 • 
Se

le
ct

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
re

ps
 a

ft
er

 in
te

ns
iv

e 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 

 
• 

Se
le

ct
 s

up
er

vi
so

rs
 f

ro
m

 f
ir

st
 t

ar
ge

te
d 

te
am

 
 

• 
Tu

to
r 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 g
ro

up
 id

en
ti

fi
es

 a
dd

it
io

na
l b

as
ic

 s
ki

lls
 

sp
ec

ia
lis

ts
 f

ro
m

 p
ar

tn
er

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
 

 
• 

Sp
ec

ia
lis

ts
 c

om
pl

et
e 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 

M
ar

ch
 0

3 
  A

pr
il 

03
 

 A
pr

il 
03

 
 M

ay
 0

3 
 Ju

ne
 0

3 
  Ja

nu
ar

y 
04

 

M
in

ut
es

 o
f 

gr
ou

p 
sh

ow
 

ag
re

em
en

t 
to

 a
ll 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 

th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

 
N

am
ed

 s
ta

ff
 r

ep
re

se
nt

 a
ll 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ts

 
50

%
 t

ra
in

ed
 r

ep
s 

wi
th

 
ag

re
ed

 t
im

e 
re

le
as

e 
N

am
ed

 s
ta

ff
 p

la
nn

ed
 

re
le

as
e 

St
af

f 
re

gi
st

er
 f

or
 s

up
po

rt
 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 
 20

 s
pe

ci
al

is
ts

 t
ra

in
ed

 in
 

wo
rk

pl
ac

e 
ba

si
c 

sk
ill

s 
W

or
ki

ng
 w

it
h 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t 

te
am

, t
o 

re
cr

ui
t 

10
0 

or
ga

ni
sa

ti
on

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

to
 r

ec
ei

ve
 

30
 h

ou
rs

 m
in

im
um

 b
as

ic
 s

ki
lls

 t
ra

in
in

g 
 

• 
Pl

an
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

to
 r

ec
ru

it
 5

 c
oh

or
ts

 o
f 

20
 le

ar
ne

rs
 p

er
 

pe
ri

od
 (2

 c
la

ss
es

 p
er

 c
oh

or
t)

 
• 

Re
cr

ui
tm

en
t 

(p
re

ce
de

d 
by

 le
ar

ni
ng

 n
ee

ds
 a

na
ly

si
s)

 in
 

5 
co

ho
rt

s 
wo

rk
in

g 
m

ai
nl

y,
 b

ut
 n

ot
 e

xc
lu

si
ve

ly
, w

it
hi

n 
de

pa
rt

m
en

ts
- 

D
LE

S 
th

en
 

M
ar

ch
 0

3,
 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
03

, J
an

ua
ry

 
04

, A
pr

il 
04

, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

W
ri

tt
en

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
 Le

ar
ne

r 
st

ar
ts

 (I
LR

s)
 

Page 13



 
12

 

   
  S

oc
ia

l s
er

vi
ce

s,
 H

ou
si

ng
 &

 H
ea

lt
h,

 E
A

L 
an

d 
   

  C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cs

 
04

 

A
 w

or
kp

la
ce

 b
as

ic
 s

ki
lls

 p
ol

ic
y 

fo
r 

th
e 

wh
ol

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
ti

on
 

• 
Te

rm
s 

of
 p

ol
ic

y 
m

ap
pe

d 
by

 in
te

rn
al

 s
te

er
in

g 
co

m
m

it
te

e 
• 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l H
R 

co
nt

ri
bu

te
 r

ep
or

ts
 f

or
 g

oo
d 

pr
ac

ti
ce

 g
ui

de
 

 E
xt

er
na

l s
te

er
in

g 
gr

ou
p 

ad
vi

se
s 

in
te

rn
al

 s
te

er
in

g 
gr

ou
p 

on
 

dr
af

ti
ng

 c
or

po
ra

te
 p

ol
ic

y,
 s

ub
se

qu
en

tl
y 

ra
ti

fi
ed

 b
y 

TM
T 

an
d 

M
em

be
rs

 

Ju
ly

 0
3 

 D
ec

em
be

r 
03

 
M

ar
ch

 0
4 

 

M
in

ut
es

 a
gr

ee
 p

ol
ic

y 
gu

id
el

in
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l r
ep

or
ts

 
 Co

rp
or

at
e 

po
lic

y 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

W
or

kf
or

ce
 d

oc
um

en
ta

ti
on

 r
ev

is
ed

 t
o 

m
ee

t 
th

e 
gu

id
el

in
es

 o
f 

th
e 

Pl
ai

n 
En

gl
is

h 
Ca

m
pa

ig
n 

 

 
• 

A
ll 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ts

 s
ub

m
it

 a
gr

ee
d 

do
cu

m
en

ta
ti

on
 t

o 
th

e 
Pl

ai
n 

En
gl

is
h 

Ca
m

pa
ig

n/
 C

ry
st

al
 M

ar
k 

 A
ug

us
t 

03
 

Pa
pe

r 
an

d 
el

ec
tr

on
ic

 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

co
lle

ct
ed

 a
nd

 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

 f
or

 r
ev

is
io

n 
in

 
pr

io
ri

ty
 o

rd
er

 
 

A
n 

in
-h

ou
se

 b
as

ic
 s

ki
lls

 r
es

ou
rc

e 
ba

nk
 

wh
ic

h 
co

ul
d 

in
cl

ud
e 

cu
st

om
is

ed
 le

ar
ni

ng
 

m
at

er
ia

l, 
sc

he
m

es
 o

f 
wo

rk
 a

nd
 le

ss
on

 
pl

an
s 

• 
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

ba
nk

 o
f 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

ly
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
• 

A
ll 

SO
W

/l
ea

rn
in

g 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 w
ri

tt
en

 in
 c

on
su

lt
at

io
n 

wi
th

 A
BS

I,
 s

to
re

d 
an

d 
ad

de
d 

to
 b

an
k 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
A

BS
I 

re
so

ur
ce

s)
 

A
pr

il 
03

 
 on

go
in

g 

Ca
ta

lo
gu

e 
of

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 

Gr
ow

in
g 

ba
nk

 o
f 

hi
gh

 
qu

al
it

y 
an

no
ta

te
d 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 

A
 f

le
xi

bl
e 

ba
si

c 
sk

ill
s 

em
pl

oy
ee

 t
ra

in
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

pr
og

re
ss

io
n 

tr
ac

ki
ng

 f
or

 a
ll 

• 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 n

ee
ds

 a
na

ly
se

s 
be

gi
n 

• 
5 

co
ho

rt
s 

of
 le

ar
ne

rs
 (2

0 
ea

ch
 c

oh
or

t)
 c

om
pl

et
e 

in
te

rv
ie

w,
 in

it
ia

l a
ss

es
sm

en
t,

 T
ra

in
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e,
 

di
ag

no
st

ic
 a

nd
 f

in
al

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

pr
oc

es
s.

 I
de

nt
if

y 
be

st
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

fo
r 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

pr
oc

es
se

s,
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

re
co

rd
in

g 
sh

ee
ts

 a
nd

  
   

• 
St

ee
ri

ng
 c

om
m

it
te

e 
re

vi
ew

s 
ea

ch
 c

oh
or

t 
an

d 
dr

af
ts

 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
in

 li
gh

t 
of

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e.

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

gu
id

el
in

es
 w

ri
tt

en
 

M
ar

ch
 0

3 
Ju

ly
 0

3 
N

ov
em

be
r 

03
 

M
ar

ch
 0

4 
N

ov
em

be
r 

04
 

M
ar

ch
 0

5 
 M

ar
ch

 0
5 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l/
O

cc
up

at
io

na
l 

ex
em

pl
ar

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
ne

ed
s 

an
al

ys
es

 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 m

at
ch

ed
 t

o 
Co

re
 c

ur
ri

cu
la

 a
nd

 
EM

PN
TO

 u
ni

ts
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

m
od

el
s 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

fo
r 

ea
ch

 s
ta

ge
 

 W
ri

tt
en

 g
ui

de
lin

es
 

 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 p
od

s 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
in

 t
wo

 
wo

rk
pl

ac
e 

ve
nu

es
 

• 
Pu

rc
ha

se
 P

Cs
, f

ur
ni

tu
re

 a
nd

 s
of

tw
ar

e 
• 

Si
te

 P
od

s 
st

ra
te

gi
ca

lly
 t

o 
m

ax
im

is
e 

us
e 

an
d 

se
cu

ri
ty

 
Ju

ne
 0

3 
D

ec
em

be
r 

 

Page 14



 
13

 

03
 

A
 t

ea
m

 o
f 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
el

y 
tr

ai
ne

d 
or

ga
ni

sa
ti

on
 s

ta
ff

, o
f 

wh
om

 a
t 

le
as

t 
16

 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

en
ab

le
d 

to
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 a
 

m
in

im
um

 o
f 

30
 h

ou
rs

 o
f 

lo
gg

ed
 t

ra
in

in
g 

ea
ch

 in
 a

sp
ec

ts
 o

f 
su

pp
or

t 
fo

r 
ba

si
c 

sk
ill

s 
ov

er
 t

he
 li

fe
 t

im
e 

of
 t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 

30
 h

r 
lo

gg
ed

 p
ac

ka
ge

 o
f 

le
ar

ni
ng

 r
e:

 B
as

ic
 s

ki
lls

 s
up

po
rt

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

: 
1 

x 
Ch

am
pi

on
 

5x
 H

R 
(L

ev
el

 4
/5

) 
10

 x
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

Re
pr

es
en

ta
ti

ve
s/

 S
up

er
vi

so
rs

  (
Le

ve
l 2

/3
) 

 

  M
ar

ch
 0

4 
M

ar
ch

 0
4 

M
ar

ch
 0

4 

16
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
st

af
f 

ac
hi

ev
e 

L 
un

it
s,

 L
ev

el
 2

 
su

pp
or

t 
un

it
s 

an
d 

be
sp

ok
e 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
s 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

 

50
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
to

 g
ai

n 
na

ti
on

al
ly

 r
ec

og
ni

se
d 

ba
si

c 
sk

ill
s 

qu
al

if
ic

at
io

ns
 (a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

ra
is

ed
 b

y 
on

e 
le

ve
l o

f 
th

e 
N

at
io

na
l B

as
ic

 S
ki

lls
 

St
an

da
rd

s)
 

10
 x

 L
ea

rn
er

s 
fr

om
 e

ac
h 

co
ho

rt
 c

om
pl

et
e 

in
te

ns
iv

e 
po

st
- 

co
ur

se
 u

ni
t 

an
d 

pa
ss

 n
at

io
na

l t
es

t 
A

ug
us

t 
03

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

03
 

A
pr

il 
04

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

04
 

M
ar

ch
 0

5 
 

Ce
rt

if
ic

at
es

 r
ec

or
di

ng
 

le
ve

l i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t 
in

 
Li

te
ra

cy
, n

um
er

ac
y 

(E
SO

L)
 

A
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

fo
r 

wo
rk

pl
ac

e 
ba

si
c 

sk
ill

s 
de

liv
er

y 
em

be
dd

ed
 in

 t
he

 
or

ga
ni

sa
ti

on
al

 H
R 

st
ra

te
gy

 

H
R 

re
ps

 w
ri

te
 r

ep
or

ts
 o

f 
ex

pe
ri

en
ce

s 
to

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l h
ea

ds
 

 A
ll 

Ba
la

nc
ed

 s
co

re
ca

rd
s 

in
cl

ud
e 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

fo
r 

id
en

ti
fi

ca
ti

on
, p

er
so

na
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

pl
an

s,
 p

la
nn

in
g,

 d
el

iv
er

y 
an

d 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

wo
rk

pl
ac

e 
ba

si
c 

sk
ill

s 
 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
H

R 
ag

re
es

 e
xi

t 
st

ra
te

gy
 d

el
iv

er
y 

m
od

el
s 

fo
r 

04
/0

5 
   

  

M
ar

ch
 0

4 
 Ju

ne
 0

4 
  D

ec
em

be
r 

04
 

Re
po

rt
s 

su
bm

it
te

d 
to

 e
ac

h 
de

pa
rt

m
en

t 
Ba

la
nc

ed
 s

co
re

 c
ar

ds
 s

ho
w 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

ex
it

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
 Co

rp
or

at
e 

H
R 

st
ra

te
gy

  

  

Page 15



 14

 
8 Sustainability - 15 Marks 
8.1  What steps will be taken to ensure sustainability once the project has ended? What is your 

business case for continuation? 
In formulating this bid I have become acutely aware of the importance of long-term future training 
priorities being independent of additional funding. In order to be sustained the project must make the 
case for workplace basic skills training to be self-financing. Below Level 2 such training needs to be 
viewed as essential, more than justifying the costs involved. Moreover this message needs to be spread 
throughout the organisation to include policy-makers, HR personnel at all levels, supervisors, senior 
managers, trade unions and learners themselves. It must be emphasised that this process can never be 
‘completed’. In an ever-changing world there will always be a need to improve skills for all. Education 
and training for all will always be cheaper than ignorance. This message will make Basic skills training 
essential. The project will be promoted as a means to start this process off, to overcome inertia and 
show the benefits. 
Sustainability will be ensured by building in commitments to employees at all levels across the 
organisation. Organisational development plans will guarantee that this is a standing item on managers’ 
agendas. Access to appropriate training needs to be seen as an equality issue. Most managers have 
access already. Appraisals are used to set personal development aims and plan suitable training 
outcomes. A system will be established which seeks to make this a common process for all. 
Sustainability will be achieved by a system, which generates demand for training from managers and 
from employees themselves. 
To ensure continuity the issue needs to be on the agenda at each stage of an employee’s working life, 
from induction to retirement. Commitments will need to be shared and publicised in order to promote 
access for all. Managers will be trained to recognise and overcome barriers to learning by matching job 
requirements to people’s skills. The Investors in People commitment will require this.  
The Corporate and Departmental training programmes will be reviewed to ensure appropriate courses 
are available and accessible at all levels. Basic skills courses will be publicised in different forms and 
learning representatives, in person, will encourage learners to apply.  
The establishment of the resource centre and ICT pods will allow continued access to e-learning and 
distance learning and encourage the Borough Housing Department’s ‘Lofts for learning initiative’. 
Signposting to the Borough’s many ICT venues will also support this process. 
The Adult Basic Skills Initiative will continue beyond the life of the project as a permanent team. This 
will ensure that good practice is shared and built upon and expanded into the community. Champions in 
different roles will emerge to reenergize the learning revolution by using project examples to 
demonstrate the possibilities.  
Lifelong learning is a key part of the Borough’s 2020 vision. With the huge new development of the 
Thames Gateway and the regeneration of the whole area the issue of skills will remain high on the 
Council’s agenda long into the future. 
The case for continuation will include the presentation of data gained directly from the experience of 
the project. Measurable data will include sickness, accident rates, recruitment and retention rates, 
absenteeism, punctuality and numbers of qualifications. Longitudinal studies of a selection of learners 
will show the massive impact which a short course can have on those previously excluded from the 
learning process. Learners themselves will be asked to describe the effects of their training on their 
morale, accuracy and ability to meet targets and deadlines. Improvements to Council services will be 
dramatic since most frontline employees have a direct immediate effect on the services they deliver. 
This effect alone will guarantee support for the continuation of workplace basic skills programmes. 
The authority will link with partner authorities involved in the London project and the National 
Support project, to create a snowball effect of continued good practice. Becoming part of a national 
initiative will create momentum for further development. 

Page 16



 15

9 Cross-cutting themes – 10 Marks 
9.1  How will this proposal promote equality and diversity. (For example, how do proposals take 
account of employees’ needs for childcare,  travel, translations, etc.) 
This proposal supports the new Borough Equalities and Diversity policy framework which states, `The 
Council is committed to eliminating discrimination on the grounds of : Class, Age, Disability, Colour, 
Ethnic origin, Nationality, National origin or race, Gender, Transgender/Transexual, HIV/AIDS 
status, Marital status, Faith, Caring responsibility for dependents, sexuality or unrelated criminal 
conviction. Equalities and Diversity Officers have been recruited to each department to ensure these 
commitments are adhered to. The Borough officer responsible for this has endorsed the bid.  By 
promoting equal access to training and development it is essential to realise that there are a number 
of further barriers to overcome before this is realised in practice. This is primarily a people issue. A 
number of channels need to be cleared to enable individuals to be treated according to their needs.  
The timing of courses is crucial, as is their venue.  Some shift patterns have already been mapped and 
this will be extended to all departments to maximise the opportunities to attend. The proposal allows 
for an extensive needs analysis for individuals.It is important to consult the learners themselves 
about possible effects for the timing and venue of courses rather than rely on assumptions. A number 
of possible venues already identified are newly built and so (physical) access issues should be 
minimised. Childcare issues for courses outside work time or at distant venues may be partially 
overcome through the use of crèches at newly built sites using funding drawn down through the 
Learning and Skills Council. Any travel expenses incurred will be reimbursed to reduce the effects of 
this barrier to participation.The publication of courses needs to fit into the readability terms of the 
project. Materials will need to be carefully developed for ESOL courses in consultation with the 
Borough ESOL Development Officer. A variety of courses will be planned to attract different types 
of learners. Open access to these courses will be promoted personally, rather than relying on printed 
materials.Even though this is expensive experience has shown that this is the most effective method. 
9.2  To what extent will information and communication technology (ICT) be used to support the 
project?  
The use of Information technology will be a key theme running throughout the project.  
The maximum amount of capital funding will be used to purchase PCs to provide access to the internet 
and Borough Intranet which many frontline workers lack. Negotiations have begun with 
LEARNDIRECT to look at the possibility of creating LEARNDIRECT ‘pods’ with these machines. 
 A key aim of the project is to encourage the take up of ICT learning opportunities in the Borough, 
which has one of the lowest PC ownership rates in the country. There is a real danger of people 
becoming disenfranchised by being unable to participate in the e-learning revolution. Employees will 
be encouraged to use the extensive network of Learning villages, City Learning Centres, UK Online 
and LEARNDIRECT centres to supplement and enhance taught programmes. The Adult College has 
recently expanded into several of these community venues, which have been built with the integration 
of the latest ICT in mind. Each site is equipped with PCs, ceiling mounted data projectors, retractable 
screens, multimedia TV and video. The workplace tutor has been trained in the use of this display 
technology as well as new interactive technology. He intends to integrate ICT to enhance the 
effectiveness of delivery and participation. A borough-wide licence has been purchased for the latest 
adult basic skills software (Target Skills). This will be supplemented will be added to through the bid 
and will complement relevant national ICT materials in literacy, numeracy and ESOL. We will be 
closely supported by the Education ICT team who have, as part of their remit responsibility to spread 
the use of this technology. All Borough providers are being offered training in the use of this 
equipment. This training for the trainers is often the key component in developing changes in 
practice. 
All members of the ABSI team are ICT literate. Extensive use will be made of the extensive Borough 
Website and Intranet for information and communication including the new HR online facility. 

Page 17



 16

10 Ability to deliver     20 marks 
10.1   What structures and systems will be in place to manage the proposed 
activities? 
Overseeing the project at the highest level will be the management team of the Council 
comprising the Chief Executive, Team Heads, Borough Personnel Officer and Finance Officer. 
The ABSI Management group (which includes representatives from all involved parties) or the 
Lifelong Learning party (comprising Corporate HR, Departmental Human resources heads and 
training and development officers) could be used -certainly at the initial stages- to incorporate 
some of the functions as a steering group. 
The Adult Basic Skills Initiative team which has well- established contacts to all relevant 
parties, a team of specialist professionals and admin support would assume micro-level functions. 
Communication with Unions will be facilitated through ABSI, the Growth through learning 
steering group and joint JNC/Employer/Union meetings. A Tutor training group has recently 
been established to facilitate the training of tutors, following the BSA consultancy report. This 
will link tutor inputs directly and disseminate information. 
10.2  Please describe how you will monitor progress, ensure continuous improvement and monitor 
financial activity. 
Primary data capture will be through ILRs, as these will be a requirement of LSC funding. Use 
will be made of all the recommended Skills for Life infrastructure, including the new Initial BSA 
Assessment and mappings to the core curricula. Online assessments and Basic Skills management 
software will allow a greater amount of information to be kept on all learners. 
ABSI data and that collected through The Growth through learning project will supplement the 
data required through the project. This includes current internal monitoring of separate targets 
for literacy, numeracy and ESOL. 
Experience in managing data through current LSC/LDA contracts will be used to develop a 
flexible and effective MIS. 
ABSI will use its existing financial management system (Oracle) and staff to monitor all financial 
activity.   
10.3  Identify the main risks in achieving the objectives of the proposal and say how these will 
be managed or overcome. At the highest level the organisation is committed to achieving all the 
objectives of the proposal The main risks to achieving the outcomes and possible strategies to 
overcome them are as follows: 

• Lower Recruitment of learners than expected- 2 full-time workers (Growth through 
Learning/ABSI development officer) experienced and successful recruiters have already 
recruited 80 learners 

• Poor attendance of learners despite recruitment-Management/supervisors’ guarantees 
sought for release. Most managers are fully supportive.  

• Low completion of learners- Investigate causes and adjust programmes as necessary 
• Failure to engage with national tests- Intensive courses planned for this. Champions to 

experience and promote qualifications  
• Unused Computer pods- Use Learndirect expertise to site and signpost them and the 

Borough publicity machine to promote. 
• Unclear policies- Make as plain and simple as possible. Link to appraisal process 
• Policies don’t work- Investigate causes of undiagnosed training needs and remove 

blockages 
• Management time commitment lacking- Refer to senior management HR/Agreement to 

this proposal 
• 30 hours training not enough- Possibility to extend using 50:50 funding agreement. Look 

at linking courses to LSC programmes in different providers.  

Page 18



 17

11 Financial information                     10 Marks 
 
Please provide a breakdown of the total cost of your application to show what the 
funding will pay for. Attach this as an appendix. 
 
• Enter the total staff, participant, and other costs in the table below 
• The breakdown of costs must be specific: For example: administration @ 15 

hrs pr wk x 52 wks x £8.50 per hour 
• Capital expenditure should not exceed 10% of the £94,000 grant. Single items 

of equipment should not exceed £1500. 
• Other costs should cover items such as rent, stationery and consumables. 
• You may be asked during the assessment process to justify your expenditure 

and to provide more details.  An example of a funding profile is provided at the 
back of this form. 

 
 
Total Staff Costs (including £10 000 local authority match 
funding, and £41 250 grant for employment of basic skills 
consultant practitioner) 

£ 108 045 

Total Participants’ Costs 
(includes £36,500 LSC match funding for delivery of basic 
skills programmes to Adult College and £9 000 grant 
towards development costs for Adult college) 
 

£ 67 100 

Total Capital Costs 
 
 

£ 9 400 

Total Other Costs 
Rent, Stationery, Consumables, Software 
 

£6 200 

Total Proposal Costs 
 

£190 745 

Total Number of LDA beneficiaries 
 

Minimum 100 learners
 16 trained employees 
20 specialists in 
providers 

Total Number of Hours on Learning Programmes 
 

4080 

Average Hours on Learning Programmes per beneficiary   
 

30 

 

Page 19



 18

12 Other information 
 
 
1.  Is this the only source of funding for this work?         Yes          No   
 
If no, please list below other funds and arrangements you will be using. 
The Trade Union Learning Fund is funding 1 project worker and 1 full time Workplace 
Basic Skills tutor who will be working full-time on this project. (£60k pa Y 1 only) 
The Council has funded the Adult Basic Skills Initiative from its reserves, which will 
give approx ¼ of its time to this work.  This comprises a team of 5 full time 
employees. (£40k pa pro rata) An additional member of the team is funded by the 
LDA to support ESOL Development through Neighbourhood Renewal Funding. (£10k 
pa) Additional funding for its materials and tutor-training programme has been 
secured through an £85k Co-financed bid to the LSC. (Apportion £5k pa for 
time/materials pro rata) 
 
I confirm the above information is correct and agree that the 
information may be passed onto other partners. 
 
 
Signed (Project Manager).………………………………………………………….. 

Print Name and Status MARK ADAMS, ADULT BASIC SKILLS COORDINATOR 

Organisation Dept of Education, Arts and Libraries, London Borough of Barking 

and Dagenham 

Date 13 February 2003 

 

 

Signed (Chief Executive)……………………………………………… 

Print Name and Status MR GRAHAM FARRANT, CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

Organisation London Borough of Barking and Dagenham 

Date 13 February 2003 

 
 
 

Page 20



D
EA

LL
or

ra
in

eB
illi

ng
sl

ey
Em

be
dd

in
gW

or
kp

la
ce

Ba
si

cS
ki

lls
M

on
ito

rin
gP

er
fo

rm
an

ce
an

dS
uc

ce
ss

C
rit

er
ia

20
 

 Em
be

dd
in

g 
B

as
ic

 S
ki

lls
 in

 L
on

do
n 

Lo
ca

l A
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

- S
uc

ce
ss

 C
rit

er
ia

 
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

rs
  

H
ow

 w
e 

w
ill

 g
et

 th
is

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

• 
O

rg
an

is
at

io
na

l p
ol

ic
y 

le
ve

l c
om

m
itm

en
t t

o 
ad

dr
es

s 
em

pl
oy

ee
 li

te
ra

cy
 

nu
m

er
ac

y 
an

d 
ES

O
L 

le
ar

ni
ng

 n
ee

ds
 w

ith
in

 H
R

 s
tra

te
gy

 
 

• 
W

or
kp

la
ce

 B
as

ic
 S

ki
lls

 T
ra

in
in

g 
St

ra
te

gy
 in

 p
la

ce
 

• 
Tr

ac
ki

ng
 o

f a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t o
f p

ro
je

ct
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 o

ut
pu

ts
 

• 
M

in
ut

ed
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 p

ai
d 

re
le

as
e 

fo
r b

as
ic

 s
ki

lls
 le

ar
ni

ng
  

• 
M

in
ut

ed
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 p

ai
d 

ov
er

tim
e 

fo
r b

as
ic

 s
ki

lls
 le

ar
ni

ng
 if

 re
le

as
e 

no
t p

os
si

bl
e 

• 
C

ol
la

te
 s

ta
ff 

JD
s 

w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fo
r p

ro
m

ot
in

g,
 id

en
tif

yi
ng

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rti

ng
 b

as
ic

 s
ki

lls
 le

ar
ni

ng
 

• 
Id

en
tif

y 
es

se
nt

ia
l a

nd
 d

es
ira

bl
e 

LN
E 

sk
ills

 le
ve

ls
 d

ef
in

ed
 w

ith
in

 J
D

s 
fo

r l
ow

 s
ki

lle
d 

an
d 

se
m

i-s
ki

lle
d 

w
or

ke
rs

 
• 

Tr
ac

k 
to

ol
s 

de
si

gn
ed

 a
nd

 in
 u

se
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
to

 id
en

tif
y 

LN
E 

le
ar

ni
ng

 n
ee

ds
 a

m
on

gs
t n

ew
 

re
cr

ui
ts

 
 

• 
A 

fle
xi

bl
e 

ba
si

c 
sk

ills
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
us

e 
of

 n
ew

 te
ch

no
lo

gy
 w

he
re

 it
 is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
 

• 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

an
d 

pr
om

ot
ed

 to
 a

ll 
st

af
f  

• 
Es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t o

f a
n 

in
-h

ou
se

 re
so

ur
ce

 b
an

k 
w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 c
us

to
m

is
ed

 le
ar

ni
ng

 m
at

er
ia

ls
, s

ch
em

es
 o

f 
w

or
k 

an
d 

le
ss

on
 p

la
ns

 
 

• 
W

or
kp

la
ce

 d
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n 
w

hi
ch

 m
ee

ts
 p

la
in

 E
ng

lis
h 

st
an

da
rd

s 
• 

D
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n 
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 re
vi

si
on

 m
on

ito
re

d 
at

 s
te

er
in

g 
gr

ou
ps

 
 

• 
Su

pp
or

t f
or

 e
m

be
dd

ed
 b

as
ic

 s
ki

lls
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
 

• 
Tr

ac
k 

nu
m

be
rs

 o
f e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
re

cr
ui

te
d 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
at

te
nd

in
g 

LN
E 

in
-h

ou
se

 tr
ai

ni
ng

  
• 

Tr
ac

k 
ho

w
 m

an
y 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
re

fe
rre

d 
to

 a
tte

nd
 L

N
E 

le
ar

ni
ng

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
by

 m
an

ag
er

s 
an

d 
un

io
n 

re
ps

 
• 

R
ec

or
d 

co
m

m
en

ts
 a

t S
te

er
in

g 
m

ee
tin

gs
 fr

om
 m

an
ag

er
s,

 le
ar

ni
ng

 re
ps

, e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

an
d 

tu
to

rs
 o

n 
be

ne
fit

s 
fro

m
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

on
 L

N
E 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

   
• 

Su
rv

ey
 m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 u
ni

on
 v

ie
w

s 
on

 im
pa

ct
 o

f p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

by
 q

ue
st

io
nn

ai
re

 to
 fe

ed
 in

to
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
• 

R
ec

or
d 

m
in

ut
es

 o
f c

om
m

itt
ee

 m
ee

tin
gs

 w
he

re
 re

le
va

nt
 

• 
Tr

ac
k 

re
fe

rra
l b

y 
pe

er
s 

to
 L

N
E 

le
ar

ni
ng

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 
• 

R
ec

or
d 

nu
m

be
r o

f a
rti

cl
es

 w
rit

te
n 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
by

 p
ar

tic
ip

an
ts

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
in

 
co

m
pa

ny
 n

ew
sl

et
te

r 
 

• 
Th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
 le

ar
ni

ng
 c

ul
tu

re
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

• 
Tr

ac
k 

nu
m

be
rs

 o
f e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
re

cr
ui

te
d 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
at

te
nd

in
g 

LN
E 

in
-h

ou
se

 tr
ai

ni
ng

  
• 

Tr
ac

k 
ho

w
 m

an
y 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
re

fe
rre

d 
to

 a
tte

nd
 L

N
E 

le
ar

ni
ng

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
by

 m
an

ag
er

s 
an

d 
un

io
n 

le
ar

ni
ng

 re
ps

  
• 

R
ec

or
d 

be
ne

fit
s 

fro
m

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
on

 L
N

E 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 a

t S
te

er
in

g 
m

ee
tin

gs
 re

po
rte

d 
by

 m
an

ag
er

s,
 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
an

d 
tu

to
rs

  
• 

Su
rv

ey
 m

an
ag

em
en

t v
ie

w
s 

on
 im

pa
ct

 o
f p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
by

 q
ue

st
io

nn
ai

re
 to

 fe
ed

 in
to

 e
va

lu
at

io
n 

• 
R

ec
or

d 
m

in
ut

es
 o

f c
om

m
itt

ee
 m

ee
tin

gs
 w

he
re

 re
le

va
nt

 
• 

Tr
ac

k 
re

fe
rra

l b
y 

pe
er

s 
to

 L
N

E 
le

ar
ni

ng
 p

ro
gr

am
m

es
 

• 
R

ec
or

d 
nu

m
be

r o
f a

rti
cl

es
 w

rit
te

n 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

by
 p

ar
tic

ip
an

ts
 in

 c
om

pa
ny

 n
ew

sl
et

te
r 

• 
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

ba
se

 li
ne

 a
nd

 tr
ac

k 
ad

di
tio

na
l n

um
be

rs
 o

f l
ow

, s
em

i-s
ki

lle
d,

 p
ar

t-t
im

e 
an

d 
BM

E 
st

af
f p

ar
tic

ip
at

in
g 

in
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
• 

Tr
ac

k 
ad

di
tio

na
l n

um
be

rs
 o

f s
ta

ff 
 w

ho
 h

av
e 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

ra
is

in
g 

an
d 

tra
in

in
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
is

 
pr

oj
ec

t t
o 

su
pp

or
t o

th
er

s 
to

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
e 

in
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

ct
iv

iti
es

 e
g 

LN
E 

le
ar

ni
ng

 
• 

Tr
ac

k 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t o
n 

ba
si

c 
sk

ills
 le

ar
ni

ng
 p

ro
gr

am
m

es
 a

nd
 n

at
io

na
l t

es
ts

 

Page 21



D
EA

LL
or

ra
in

eB
illi

ng
sl

ey
Em

be
dd

in
gW

or
kp

la
ce

Ba
si

cS
ki

lls
M

on
ito

rin
gP

er
fo

rm
an

ce
an

dS
uc

ce
ss

C
rit

er
ia

20
 

• 
Tr

ac
k 

pr
og

re
ss

io
n 

to
 fu

rth
er

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
or

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 fo
r l

ow
 a

nd
 s

em
i-s

ki
lle

d 
w

or
ke

rs
, p

ar
t-t

im
er

s 
an

d 
BM

Es
 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 th

is
 p

ro
je

ct
  

• 
 

Th
e 

im
pa

ct
 fr

om
 L

N
E 

le
ar

ni
ng

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 o
n 

 
• 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
t o

f L
N

E 
le

ar
ni

ng
 g

oa
ls

 
 • 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
t o

f n
at

io
na

l t
es

ts
 in

 L
N

E 
• 

jo
b 

sk
ills

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

 • 
in

te
rn

al
 jo

b 
pr

og
re

ss
io

n 
• 

re
cr

ui
tm

en
t o

f m
in

or
ity

 e
th

ni
c 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

 • 
st

af
f r

et
en

tio
n 

• 
st

af
f a

bs
en

te
ei

sm
 

• 
pr

og
re

ss
io

n 
to

 fu
rth

er
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

tra
in

in
g 

• 
cu

st
om

er
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

 

• 
IL

Ps
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
nd

 m
on

ito
re

d 
at

 S
te

er
in

g 
gr

ou
p 

fo
r a

ll 
pa

rti
ci

pa
nt

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

in
fo

 re
co

rd
ed

 a
bo

ut
 b

ro
ad

 
ai

m
 fo

r l
ea

rn
in

g,
 s

ho
rt 

te
rm

 g
oa

ls
, L

N
E 

cu
rri

cu
lu

m
 re

la
te

d 
ta

rg
et

s 
an

d 
st

ep
s 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 th

es
e,

 fo
rm

at
iv

e 
an

d 
su

m
m

at
iv

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t, 
re

fle
ct

io
n 

on
 le

ar
ni

ng
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e,
 re

vi
ew

 
• 

Tr
ac

ki
ng

 o
f a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t o

f n
at

io
na

l t
es

ts
 

• 
Id

en
tif

y 
ba

se
 li

ne
 a

nd
 tr

ac
k 

ch
an

ge
s 

at
tri

bu
ta

bl
e 

to
 p

ro
je

ct
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 in
 jo

b 
sk

ills
 th

ro
ug

h 
ap

pr
ai

sa
l a

nd
 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t  
• 

Su
rv

ey
 m

an
ag

er
s 

an
d 

re
co

rd
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 in

 in
te

rn
al

 jo
b 

pr
og

re
ss

io
n 

at
 s

te
er

in
g 

gr
ou

p 
m

in
ut

es
 

• 
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

ba
se

 li
ne

 d
at

a 
an

d 
tra

ck
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 re
cr

ui
tm

en
t o

f B
M

E 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

at
tri

bu
ta

bl
e 

to
 p

ro
je

ct
 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 
• 

Es
ta

bl
is

h 
ba

se
 li

ne
 d

at
a 

an
d 

tra
ck

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 s

ta
ff 

re
te

nt
io

n 
at

tri
bu

ta
bl

e 
to

 p
ro

je
ct

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 

• 
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

ba
se

 li
ne

 d
at

a 
an

d 
tra

ck
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 a
bs

en
te

ei
sm

 a
ttr

ib
ut

ab
le

 to
 p

ro
je

ct
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
• 

Tr
ac

k 
pr

og
re

ss
 to

 fu
rth

er
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

tra
in

in
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

lo
gg

ed
 IA

G
 s

es
si

on
 a

nd
 3

 m
on

th
 fo

llo
w

 u
p 

ch
ec

k 
• 

Es
ta

bl
is

h 
ba

se
 li

ne
 fo

r i
nd

ic
at

in
g 

le
ve

l o
f c

us
to

m
er

 s
er

vi
ce

.  
Tr

ac
k 

ch
an

ge
s 

at
tri

bu
ta

bl
e 

to
 p

ro
je

ct
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 

 

Page 22



Here is a list of roles and sample tasks for workplace basic skills provision with a list 
of possible players below. 
 
Function    Sample Tasks 

Build Capacity Coordinate provision in the area, plan/create  
specialist provider team including practitioner 
recruitment strategy, carry out practitioner 
training needs analysis, organise CPD 

Manage Provision Responsibility for strategy, action-planning, co-
ordination, quality assurance, monitoring, review 
and continuous improvement  

Promote to Employers Produce marketing plan, organise promotional 
activities (eg seminars, networking, publicity, 
cold-calling, research/surveys) 

Lead Programme Maximise programme opportunities, engage 
senior management, set up steering group, 
manage programme process, lead practitioner 
team, evaluate and report stakeholder value 

Raise Awareness Engage key workplace personnel, communicate 
potential programme benefits throughout 
organisation 

Identify Needs Organisational needs analysis (managers’ views, 
procedure and systems review, job shadowing, 
frontline staff interviews, analysis and reporting) 

Engage Employees Organisational needs analysis process, 
promotion and publicity 

Develop Programmes Identify and agree participants, negotiate release, 
design curriculum, agree evaluative procedure 

Deliver Learning Opportunity Reconcile workplace priorities with individual 
learning goals, maintain quality/audit records, 
provide IAG, celebrate achievement 

Evaluate Impact analysis including job skills improvement, 
key performance indicators and softer outcomes 
for individuals and family 

 
Possible Players 

 Broker, Consultant Practitioner, Workplace Champion,  Learning Rep, internal staff,    

 LNE practitioner 
 
It seems reasonable to suggest that it’s not important who plays each role, as long as 
all players have agreed who does what, and that there are recognised lines of 
communication. 

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

29 APRIL 2003 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF SOCIAL SERVICES LBBD  
 
MANAGING MEMBERS AND M.P. ENQUIRIES IN SOCIAL 
SERVICES 
 

FOR DECISION 

This report seeks Members approval to pilot a new protocol in respect of Member and MP 
enquiries. 
 
Summary 
 
A protocol has been produced which outlines the processes to be followed in relation to 
Member and M.P. enquiries within Social Services.  The protocol seeks to provide a clear 
framework under which such enquiries will be dealt with, including clear timescales and 
responsibilities. 
 
Recommendation 
 
The Executive is asked to agree to the piloting of the new monitoring system for Member and 
M.P. enquiries in Social Services for six months.  If this is successful, then consideration will 
be given to applying the system across the Council. 
 
Reasons 
 
• To introduce improved efficiency and accountability in relation to Member and MP 

enquires. 
• To clarify exchange of personal information issues for Members, officers and service 

users. 
 
Contact 
Chris Feeley 

 
Interim Head of Human 
Resources 

 
Tel: 0208 227 2315    
Fax:  0208 227 2241 
Minicom 020 8227 2462 
E-mail chris.feeley@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

 
1. Background 
 

1.1 In Social Services Member and M.P. enquiries have been dealt with through a 
range of routes.  Members, officers and service users have sometimes had 
difficulties in the current arrangements with confidentiality.  The Data Protection 
Act and the “Caldicott” arrangements for the NHS and Social Care (the latter of 
which sets clear standards of managing confidential information) are now in 
place and it is timely to review this in order to support good practise and ensure 
there is clarity for all concerned. 

AGENDA ITEM 4

Page 25



 
1.2  Within the document, a clear and straightforward process for seeking consent to 

share information is proposed. 
 
1.3 Members and MP enquiries need to be dealt with within the timescales 

prescribed within the attached document. 
 
1.4 A monitoring process using a database will be set up managed by Directors and 

Heads of Service, thus ensuring appropriate follow-up measures are in place. 
 
1.5 The new arrangements are compliant with legislative requirements under the 

Data Protection Act and with Caldicott. 
 
1.6 Clear guidance notes will be sent to Members and staff outlining the new 

arrangements.  
 
1.7 We are writing to the two local Members of Parliament to seek their engagement 

with the pilot. 
 
 
 
 
 
Background Papers 
Protocol for Monitoring Members’ / M.P. enquires attached as Appendix A. 
 

Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

29 APRIL 2003 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF HOUSING AND HEALTH 
 

ATTENDANCE AT CONFERENCES 2003 
 

FOR DECISION 

This report seeks approval for attendance at conferences in accordance with the Council’s 
Conference, Visits and Hospitality Rules, which states that the Executive must approve 
such attendance. 
 
Summary  
 
The Executive is asked to agree representation at the following Conferences: 

• Chartered Institute of Housing Conference 2003; 
• Chartered Institute of Environmental Health Conference & Exhibition 2003; and 
• Local Government Association (LGA) Housing Conference - 2003. 

 
Recommendation 
 
The Executive is asked to agree representation at the following Conferences: 
 

1. The Director of Housing and Health and two other officers to attend the Chartered 
Institute of Housing Conference. 

 
2. Three delegates to attend the Chartered Institute of Environmental Health 

Conference & Exhibition 2003; and 
 

3. Three delegates to attend the Local Government Association Housing Conference  
2003. 

 
Contact Officer: 
David Woods 

 
Director of Housing and 
Health 

 
Tel: 020 8227 5700 
Fax: 020 227 5705 
Minicom: 020 7227 5755 
E-mail: david.woods@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

 
1. The Chartered Institute of Housing Conference 
 
1.1 The Chartered Institute of Housing Conference is held annually in Harrogate and 

regarded as a valuable conference, promoting the Institute’s purpose to maximise 
the contribution housing professionals can make to the wellbeing of communities. 

 
1.2 This year’s conference is being held from 17 - 20 June 2003 and is based around 

the theme “Focus”, with a new programme structure and new formats, and 
delegates being able to opt for an in-depth analysis of specific issues or an 
overview of a range of trends.  This Conference will bring together a distinguished 
series of presenters and the programme is being developed with a range of 
partners ensuring it remains at the cutting edge of housing policy, practice and 
implementation. 

AGENDA ITEM 5

Page 37



1.3 Conference cost for 3 delegates is £1829.46 (inc. VAT), plus accommodation and 
travel. 

 
2. Chartered Institute of Environmental Health (CIEH) Conference & Exhibition 

2003 
 
2.1 To be held in Belfast from 23 - 25 September 2003.  This year's theme is 

'Environmental Health - Working in Business'. 
 
2.2 The CIEH Conference & Exhibition is the most important event in the environmental 

health calendar.  This year's event will continue to raise the profile of environmental 
health, providing professionals the opportunity to explore solutions, exchange ideas 
and facilitate change. 

 
2.3 Conference cost for 3 delegates is £1329.39 (per delegate is £464.13) (inc VAT). 
 
3. Local Government Association (LGA) Housing Conference - 2003 
 
3.1 This year's Conference will be held on 5th/6th November 2003 at the Liverpool 

Institute of Performing Arts. 
 
3.2 This is an annual conference held for provincial towns and cities; focuses on 

practical issues around regeneration, new build, design, conversion, partnership 
working etc.  Sessions are mainly workshops and visits rather than traditional 
conference presentations.  This conference is considered to be most valuable at 
senior practioner level. 

 
3.3  Conference cost for 3 delegates is £ 1,305 (per delegate £435), plus 

accommodation. 
 
 
 
Background Papers 
 
www.cih-housing.co.uk 
www.cieh.org 
www.lga.gov.uk 
 

Page 38



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

29 APRIL 2003 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF EDUCATION, ARTS AND LIBRARIES 
 
BEST VALUE SERVICE REVIEW OF SCHOOL ATTENDANCE 
 

FOR DECISION 
 

This report sets out the findings of the Best Value Review of school attendance. The report 
makes recommendations for the future of the Access and Attendance Team.  Final decisions 
relating to Best Value Reviews are reserved for the Assembly. 
 
Summary 
 
The Best Value Review of School Attendance was undertaken over a period of 15 months 
between April 2001 and July 2002.  In accordance with statutory guidance the review included 
a number of stages, namely challenge, consult, compare and compete. 
 
Recommendation 
 
The Executive is asked to recommend that the Assembly agree the recommendations 
outlined in the Action Plan included within the main report. 
 
Reason 
 
The preferred option for future service delivery is in line with the principles of best value. The 
proposed Action Plan will lead to significant improvements in the Service over the next five 
years. 
 
Contact Officer: 
Justin Donovan 
 
 
 
 
Paul Kelly 
 
 
 
Councillor J L Alexander 

 
Head of Lifelong 
Learning and 
Inclusion 
 
 
Principal Access and 
Attendance Officer 
 
 
Lead Member 

 
Tel:  020 8227 3364 
Fax:  020 8227 4877 
Minicom: 020 8227 3180 
E-mail: jdonovan@bardaglea.org.uk
 
Tel:  020 8227 5521 
Fax:  020 8227 5541 
E-mail: paul.kelly@lbbd.gov.uk 
 
Tel:  020 8924 8239 
 

 
1. Outline of the Service Under Review 
 

1.1 The Service provides support to schools and other educational establishments 
in response to issues of poor or non-school attendance. The Service fulfils the 
statutory functions of the LEA with regard to school attendance, child 
employment and children in entertainment. 

AGENDA ITEM 6

Page 39



 
2. Main Findings 
 

2.1 Challenge 
 

The team reviewed the function of the Service, whether it needs to be provided, 
and whether the current provider (Access and Attendance Service) is the 
appropriate one. The review determined that the Access and Attendance 
Service promotes regular attendance and contributes to DEAL's inclusive 
strategies, as well as providing statutory responses in relation to school 
attendance which no other service can provide. 

 
2.2 Consultation 
 

Consultation was affected by the early restructure of the service from the 
Education Social Work Service to the present Access and Attendance Service.  
Further consultation is included as part of the Action Plan. 

 
2.3 Compare 
 

When compared to other authorities, the Access and Attendance Service has 
responded well to both local and national initiatives. The service has benefited 
from the input of the DfES Truancy and Attendance Adviser and refocused its 
resources into primary and secondary teams in line with previous DfES advice. 
The Service plays an integral role within the Behaviour Improvement 
Programme and has responded to other DfES initiatives (e.g. regular truancy 
patrols). 

 
2.4 Compete 
 

The Review Group found it difficult to identify any providers of comprehensive 
attendance services in the private sector or other LEAs operating as potential 
competition. 

 
3. Background 
 

3.1 The Best Value Review of School Attendance was initiated in April 2001, a year 
earlier than originally planned. The decision to make an early start was made in 
the light of the Borough's comparatively poor performance in respect of school 
attendance, in contrast to its rapidly improving performance in respect of 
attainment. 

 
3.2 As these factors were not only the cause of local concern but also concern 

expressed by the DfES, it was decided not only to start the Review early but 
also, as a matter or urgency, to modify the structure and focus of the Education 
Social Work Service. 

 

Page 40



4. Review of the Education Social Work Service 
 

4.1 The review of the Education Social Work Service was initiated in April 2001, and 
completed the following September. 

 
4.2 There was consultation with staff, schools, other agencies and the Best Value 

Review Group. 
 
4.3 The review resulted in: 

 
• The name of the Service being changed to the Access and Attendance 

Service. 
• The restructuring of the Service to enable it to work in a more strategic 

manner as recommended in national guidance and to facilitate an approach 
to its work with an educational rather than a social work focus. 

• The creation of separate primary and secondary teams. 
• The introduction of a transparent and objective time allocation to schools. 
• The creation of posts within the Service to enable the LEA to meet more 

efficiently the needs of young offenders, looked after children and the more 
mobile and transient members of the local community. 

 
4.4 In November 2001, an appointment was made to the newly established post of 

Mobility Officer. Although all posts in the Service had not been filled by the end 
of 2001, there was evidence that the steps taken to improve recruitment and 
retention had been successful. 

 
5. The Challenge Phase 
 

The challenge phase asked a number of questions about the LEA's support for school 
attendance and, on the basis of the research undertaken, answers were found to these 
questions: 

 
5.1 Does the service need to be provided? 
 

• The Council has statutory obligations in this area of operations. 
• The work of this Service directly supports the Council's priorities. 
• There is a high level of demand for the Service by residents and 

stakeholders. 
 
5.2 What outcomes are we trying to achieve and what is our vision for the service? 
 

• The LEA’s vision for services in support of school attendance is one where 
an effective, high quality, centrally maintained Service is valued by its users. 

• The Service aims to ensure that its work makes a lasting positive impact on 
improving attendance within the Borough. 

 

Page 41



5.3 Are we the appropriate provider? 
 

• The Review Team was unable to identify an existing provider within the 
private sector. 

• There was good evidence to suggest that the alternatives either generate 
strategic or operational inefficiencies, or may increase levels of risk to 
vulnerable children and families. 

• The responsibilities placed on the Council to ensure high levels of 
attendance and a range of cross cutting responsibilities (e.g. community 
safety, youth offending, lifelong learning and child protection), mean that the 
LEA should continue to provide services in support of school attendance. 

 
5.4 To whom should we provide the Service? 
 

• Services in support of school attendance in the Borough have a high level of 
support and schools report that performance is satisfactory. However, the 
Service and the LEA have aspirations to achieve excellence by further 
developing initiatives that have recently been introduced and to work 
towards continuously improving service delivery. 

• Mechanisms identified as useful in actively pursuing high standards of 
service delivery include developing effective protocols with key partners, 
setting challenging targets and ensuring that information systems have the 
capacity needed to effectively support the service. 

 
6. The Consultation Phase 
 

6.1 In the light of the early review of the Education Social Work Service, it was 
difficult to conduct this phase of the Best Value Review in the normal way. 
There seemed little point in carrying out extensive consultation about the 
performance of a Service which was already in the process of change and it 
was not possible to consult widely about a Service which had yet to develop a 
track record. 

 
6.2 During the review of the Education Social Work Service there was consultation 

with serving staff, schools and other agencies. The Review Group took the view 
that consultation with a wider group of stakeholders would only be valuable 
once the newly established Access and Attendance Service had performed over 
time. 

 
6.3 The Review Group also took into consideration the fact that the LEA would be 

subject to an OFSTED inspection in January 2002 and that recommendations 
about the structure and nature of the Access and Attendance Service could be 
made as the result of this process. Consequently, it was agreed that the matter 
of consultation with all stakeholders would be considered further as part of the 
Action Plan. 

 

Page 42



7. Compare Phase 
 

7.1 A number of attendance services in other LEAs were examined and lessons 
learnt from their practice. The LEAs visited and/or contacted included Blackpool, 
Havering, Nottingham, St Helens, Oldham, Bury and Leeds. 

 
7.2 The Review Group also compared the Borough's performance in respect of 

school attendance with those LEAs ranked most closely with Barking and 
Dagenham in terms of academic performance, and those LEAs considered by 
OFSTED to be our statistical neighbours. 

 
7.3 At the beginning of the Review the Department compared the performance of 

the Education Social Work Service and the recommendations set out in the 
Audit Commission's report "Missing Out". The results of this comparison 
contributed to the view that an early restructuring of the Service was needed. 

 
7.5 Examination of the relevant data suggests that the Borough's performance in 

attendance is not yet keeping pace with its improvements in attainment. 
Members of the Review Group felt that this was an issue which should be 
reflected in the Action Plan. 

 
8. Compete Phase (including Option Appraisal) 
 

8.1 The Review Group debated extensively the need to try to identify private service 
providers in this area of work or, failing that, other LEA providers operating as 
potential competitors to the Borough's own Service.  Whilst the Review Group 
believed the former to be unavailable and the latter inappropriate, there was an 
understanding that within the Best Value framework there would be a need to 
continue to review the availability and appropriateness of both alternatives 
through the Action Plan. 

 
8.2 The Review Group's preferred option was to maintain the direction determined 

by the early restructuring of the Borough's attendance service. Joint 
commissioning and partnership working will be kept under review in the light of 
developments both locally and nationally, including consideration of the 
implications of the DfES pilot projects in fourteen LEAs. These projects relate to 
the devolution to secondary schools of parts of LEA attendance services. 

 
9. Conclusion 
 

To retain the Access and Attendance Service as a centrally funded function to work 
alongside schools, parents and pupils to improve attendance levels in line with targets 
identified in Education Development Plan  (94% in Primary, 91% in secondary). 

 

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



BEST VALUE REVIEW (SCHOOL ATTENDANCE) 
FINAL REPORT 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Best Value Review of School Attendance was initiated in April 2001, a year earlier 
than originally planned.  The decision to make an early start was made in the light of the 
Borough's comparatively poor performance in respect of school attendance (in contrast 
to its rapidly improving performance in respect of attainment).  In addition to this, the 
Education Social Work Service, the LEA's service which supported schools, parents and 
pupils with regard to attendance and pupil welfare was having sustained difficulty in 
recruiting and retaining staff. 
 
As these factors were not only the cause of local concern but also concern expressed 
by DfES (Department for Educational Skills - the central government department with 
responsibility for education), it was decided not only to start the Review early but also, 
as a matter of urgency, to review the structure and focus of the Education Social Work 
Service within the context of national research and guidance. 
 
Whilst this review within a review reflected very much the principles underpinning the 
Best Value approach, the fact that it was completed within the first six months of the 
Best Value Review did have an impact on, in particular, the Consult and Compare 
Stages of the Review. 
 
REVIEW OF THE EDUCATION SOCIAL WORK SERVICE 
 
The review of the Education Social Work Service was initiated in April 2001, and 
completed the following September. 
 
There was consultation with staff, schools, other agencies and, of course, the Best 
Value Review Group. 
 
The review resulted in: 
 

� The name of the Service being changed to the Access and Attendance 
Service; 

 
� The restructuring of the Service to enable it to work in a more strategic 

manner as recommended in national guidance and to facilitate an approach 
to its work with an educational rather than a social work focus; 

 
� The creation of separate primary and secondary teams; 
 
� The introduction of a transparent and objective time allocation approach to 

providing support to schools; 
 
� The creation of posts within the Service to enable the LEA to meet more 

efficiently the needs of Young Offenders, Looked After Children and the more 
mobile and transient members of the local community; 

 
� An increase in gradings at all levels within the Service as remuneration had 

been identified as a key factor with regard to the difficulties in recruitment and 
retention; 

 
(Cont’d ) 2) 

Page 45



- 2 - 
 
� An opportunity for main grade Access and Attendance Officers to move up a 

grade if they were able to demonstrate that they had met certain published 
performance criteria. 

 
All main grade Education Social Workers were automatically assimilated onto the lower 
of the two main grades established for Access and Attendance Officers.  The two Senior 
Education Social Workers were invited to express an interest in the two Senior Access 
and Attendance Officer (Primary) and (Secondary) posts.  At interview, both postholders 
were successful in moving into the posts in which they had respectively expressed an 
interest. 
 
Although the Principal Education Social Worker elected not to express an interest in the 
Principal Access and Attendance Officer's post, she did express an interest in the newly 
created Looked After Children's Co-ordinator post and was assimilated into it.  
Consequently, the new Principal's post was put out to national advertisement and an 
appointment was made, taking up post in December 2001. 
 
Two out of the six main grade Access and Attendance Officers in post at the time of the 
Service review expressed an interest in moving to the higher grading.  Each postholder 
was required to make a presentation at interview and was successful in obtaining the 
higher grade. 
 
In November 2001, an appointment was made to the newly established post of Mobility 
Officer.  Although all posts in the Service had not been filled by the end of 2001, there 
was evidence that the steps taken to improve recruitment and retention had been 
successful. 
 
THE BEST VALUE REVIEW 
 
The Challenge Phase 
 
The Challenge Phase asked a number of questions about the LEA's support for school 
attendance and, on the basis of research and information undertaken on behalf of the 
Review Group, answers were found to these questions: 
 
Q1. Does the service need to be provided? 
 
A. The Council must continue to provide services in support of school attendance: 

not only does the Council have significant statutory obligations in this area of 
operations but such services underpin every one of the Council's priorities and 
there is a high level of demand for the services by residents and stakeholders in 
the Borough. 

 
Q2. What outcomes are we trying to achieve/what is our vision for the service? 
 
A. The London Borough of Barking and Dagenham's vision for services in 

support of school attendance is one where an effective, high quality, centrally 
maintained service is valued by service users, resource holders and policy 
makers and which makes a lasting positive impact in improving attendance 
within the Borough.  To achieve this vision, complementary approaches need 
to be developed or reviewed and further developed:  

 
 

(Cont’d ) 3) 
Page 46



- 3 - 
-  robust and effective partnerships with the community of 

schools and other relevant agencies within which the 
Access and Attendance Service leads in developing a 
clear direction and effective practice in driving-up rates of 
attendance 

 
-  seeking to allocate resources in ways that achieve high 

impact 
 
-  balancing direct interventions with children and families 

and work with schools (in partnership with the LEA's 
Inspectors); to review and strengthen our systems for 
responding to pupil absence; including the active 
dissemination of good practice - 'What Works in 
improving attendance in Barking and Dagenham' 

 
-  initiating approaches that raise community awareness 

about the positive benefits of regular attendance - 
creating the conditions for good (two-way) communication 
between schools, parents, the LEA and the community.  

 
Q3. Are we the appropriate provider? 
 
A  In this Review we have considered three alternatives in answering the 

question 'Are we the appropriate provider?': no provider exists in the 
private sector and there is good evidence that the alternatives either 
generate strategic and operational inefficiencies or may increase levels of 
risk to vulnerable children and families.  

 
The responsibilities placed on the Council in ensuring high levels of 
attendance and in the range of cross cutting responsibilities (for example, 
community safety, youth offending, lifelong learning, child protection) 
mean that the London Borough of Barking and Dagenham should continue 
to provide services in support of school attendance. The Access and 
Attendance Service has the capacity to:  

 
- take a broad view of attendance patterns across the 

Borough - modifying and targeting service delivery profiles to 
meet issues and needs that have been identified in 
partnership with schools and the LEA's Inspectors and 
where the absence of individuals is a shared concern with 
key partners (for example, Social Services Departments, 
NHS Trust, Youth Offending Team, and Connexions 
Partnership); 

 
- provide the lead in emphasising and enforcing the 

obligations of all parents within the Borough for ensuring that 
their children attend school regularly; 

 
- develop a lead in putting into practice the Council's vision on 

driving up levels of attendance within a multi-stakeholder 
partnership - promoting clear directions, shared objectives, and 
effective communication about attendance between 
stakeholders; and 

 
(Cont’d ) 4) Page 47



- 4 -  
 
- raising awareness about good practice from other areas, and 

facilitating the sharing of good practice in managing attendance 
amongst the community of schools. 

 
An identified area for development is the identification of a benchmark 
group of Authorities so that Elected Members, Senior Officers of the 
Education, Arts and Libraries Department and the Access and Attendance 
Service Team can compare themselves against performance to which 
they aspire. 

 
Q.4 To whom should we provide the Service? 
 
A Services in support of school attendance in the Borough have a high level of 

support and schools, a major group of customers, report that performance is 
satisfactory.  However, the Service and the LEA have aspirations to achieve 
excellence by further developing initiatives that have recently been introduced 
and to work towards continuously improving service delivery.  Mechanisms that 
may be useful in this striving toward excellence include: developing effective 
protocols with key partners, communication with service users, setting 
challenging targets in service delivery, and ensuring that the information systems 
of the Service have the capacity effectively to support service delivery. 

 
THE CONSULTATION PHASE 
 
In the light of the early review of the Education Social Work Service, it was difficult to 
conduct this phase of the Best Value Review in the normal way.  There seemed little 
point in carrying out extensive consultation about the performance of a Service which 
was already in the process of change and it was not possible to consult widely about 
a Service which had yet to develop a track record. 
 
Whilst, during the review of the Education Social Work Service, there was 
consultation with serving staff, schools and other agencies, the Review Group took 
the view that consultation with a wider group of stakeholders would only be valuable 
once the newly established Access and Attendance Service had had an opportunity 
to perform over time. 
 
The Review Group also took into consideration the fact that the LEA would be 
subject to an OFSTED inspection in January 2002 and that recommendations about 
the structure and nature of the Access and Attendance Service could be made as 
the result of this process. 
 
Consequently, it was agreed that the matter of consultation with all stakeholders 
would be considered further in the development of the Improvement Plan. 
 
COMPARE PHASE 
 
In this phase of the review, a number of attendance services in other LEA were 
looked at and specific practices identified for consideration within our own Service.  
The LEAs visited and/or contacted were: 
 
 

       (Cont’d ) 5) 
 
 
  

Page 48



- 5 -  
 
Blackpool 

 Havering 
 Nottingham 
 St Helens 
 Oldham 
 Bury 
 Leeds 
 
The Review Group also compared the Borough's performance in respect of school 
attendance with (a) those LEAs ranked most closely with Barking and Dagenham in 
terms of academic performance and (b) those LEAs considered to be our 'statistical 
neighbours'. 
 
Discussions with officers in other LEAs and visits to other local authorities have 
enabled Service Managers and Senior Officers to construct a menu of identified 
good practice in improving school attendance; decisions about whether any of these 
options and ideas could be incorporated into the London Borough of Barking and 
Dagenham's service delivery profile have yet to be discussed with schools and other 
partners, and their viability evaluated. 
 
At the beginning of the Review, the Department made the comparison between the 
performance of the Education Social Work Service and the recommendations made 
in respect of LEA support for school attendance in the Audit Commission's "Missing 
Out".  The difference between the two was one of the motivating factors for the early 
restructuring of the service. 
 
Examination of the comparative information regarding Key Stage 2 and G.C.S.E 
results for 2001 suggests that the Borough's performance in respect of attendance is 
not yet keeping pace with the improvements in attainment.  Members of the Review 
Group agree that this is an issue which should be reflected in the Improvement Plan 
so that schools and the LEA could do even better if attendance were improved. 

 
COMPETE PHASE (INCLUDING OPTION APPRASAL) 
 
The Review Group debated extensively the need to try to identify private service 
providers in this area of work or, failing that, other LEA providers operating as 
potential competitors to the Borough's own Service.  Whilst the Review Group 
believed the former to be unavailable and the latter inappropriate, there was an 
understanding that within the Best Value framework, there would be a need to 
continue to review the availability and appropriateness of both alternatives through 
the Improvement Plan. 
 
The Review Group's preferred option is to maintain the direction determined by the 
early restructuring of the Borough's attendance service.  Joint commissioning and 
partnership working will be kept under review in the light of developments both 
locally and nationally - including consideration of the implications of the DfES pilot 
projects in fourteen LEAs (these projects relate to the devolution to secondary 
schools of parts of LEA attendance services). 
 
 
 
 
jw/kr/draft 2001 
BV (school attendance) final report 
Dec.2002 

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



   
 

 
 
 
 

EDUCATION, ARTS AND LIBRARIES 
DEPARTMENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BEST VALUE - ATTENDANCE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APRIL 2003 
 

Page 51



 
1

 
 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1 BACKGROUND  
 
 The Best Value Review of Support for School Attendance is submitted 

under the Council's five year Best Value Review Programme.  The Review 
began in April 2001 and ended in July 2002. 

 
 The timespan for the completion of the Review was extended from one 

calendar year for two reasons: firstly, there was an urgent need to 
restructure and refocus the Borough's Education Social Work Service at 
the outset of the Review (please see section entitled 'Details of Service 
under Review') and, secondly the OFSTED inspection of the Local 
Education Authority (LEA) which took place in January 2002 required 
relevant Departmental managers and members of the newly established 
Access and Attendance Service to give to that inspection their complete 
attention.  Consequently, Review Group meetings were suspended from 
just prior to just after the inspection. 

 
 The Review Group consisted of: 

 
Christine Grice: Head of Children's Support Division 

(Lead Officer until 31.01.02) 
Alan Larbalestier Director of Education, Arts and Libraries  

(Lead Officer from 01.02.02) 
Jeremy Watt: Service Manager (Access): Project Manager
Gary Anderson: Acting Principal Access and Attendance 

Officer (until 01.12.01) 
Paul Kelly: Principal Access and Attendance Officer  

(from 11.01) 
Greg Vaughan: Senior Access and Attendance Officer 

(until 12.01) 
David Botterill: Mobility Officer 

(until 12.01) 
Richard Epps: Primary Headteacher representative 
Marjorie Brook-Williams:}
Paul Thomas                  }

Secondary School representatives 

Jenny Crossley: Head of Policy and Planning 
David Rosenthal: Principal Inspector - CIAS 
Georgina Green: Administration and Information Officer 

(Policy and Planning Division) 
Gaynor Lovell: Care Management & Assessment  

Services Manager - Social Services 
Michele Moloney: Policy and Review Division 

(Chief Executive's Department) 
Sandy Waugh: Headteacher, Tuition Service 
Phil Peters:                     }
Dawn Bowskill:               }

Metropolitan Police 

 

Page 52



 
2

 
 

 

 
Tony Browne:           Unison 
Councillor Mrs Cridland 
Councillor Curtis 
Councillor Mrs Alexander
Councillor Parkin 
Councillor Mrs Rogers 

 

David Hoyle: Independent Consultant 
(11.01 - 3.02) 

Page 53



 
2

 
 

 

At the outset of the Review, the Education Social Work Service was based 
in the Town Hall, Barking.  Early in 2002, as a result of pressing 
accommodation difficulties within the Education, Arts and Libraries 
Department, the newly established Access and Attendance Service 
relocated to Morline House at 160, London Road, Barking. 

 
 During the Review meetings have been held on the following dates: 
 03.04.01, 27.04.01, 15.05.01, 06.06.01, 26.06.01, 17.07.01, 11.09.01, 

20.11.01, 12.03.02, 13.03.02, 01.05.02, 01.07.02, 05.09.02. 
 
1.2 Scope of the Review 
 
 The Review Group determined the scope of the Review as follows: 
 

* the work of the (then) Education Social Work Service in promoting 
school attendance 

 
* the work of the Education Social Work Service in supporting 

children and their families at risk of exclusion 
 
* the effectiveness of the Education Social Work Service in child 

protection matters. 
 
It is acknowledged by members of the Review Group that the promotion, 
maintenance and enforcement of high levels of school attendance by 
children of statutory school age is a complex task undertaken successfully 
only when parents, schools and the LEA work together in an effective 
partnership.  However, in the interests of maintaining a clear focus to the 
Review, it was decided that only the LEA's support for school attendance 
would be considered. 

 
 The Review Group decided upon the following objectives for the Review: 
 

* to review the effectiveness of the LEA's strategy for promoting 
school attendance 

 
* to ensure all statutory and legal responsibilities are fully met 
 
* to review the LEA's policy and guidance  
 
* to review the effectiveness of the LEA's support for improving the 

attendance of vulnerable groups (eg Looked After Children) 
 
* to review/ensure the effectiveness of the LEA's data collection and 

target setting systems 
 
* to review/ensure the effectiveness of the Education Social Work 

Service's deployment in schools 
 

1.3 Attendance: the national context 
 
On any one school day in England and Wales almost 400,000 of the 8 
million children and young people who should be attending school will be 
absent.  In a school year, over 6 million pupils will have at least 1 

Page 54



 
3

 
 

 

authorised absence and over 1 million pupils will have at least 1 absence 
that has not been authorised by staff at their school1; without regular 
attendance the investment, hard work and morale of teachers in schools 
that enables young people to attain high standards is inevitably 
compromised.  Regular attendance at school is of fundamental importance 
for individuals, for local neighbourhoods and communities and for the 
country as a whole - correlations have been evidenced between low rates 
of attendance and the following problems: 
 
* low educational attainment2 
 
* criminal behaviour and offending3 
 
* laxity in work habits, low employability and instability in the world of 

work4 
 

 Arguably, the two major challenges facing local authorities in securing the 
effective and efficient use of resources in supporting regular attendance at 
school are: 

 
* absence from school is a problem that has multiple causes - factors 

that trigger or maintain a child or young person's pattern of absence 
have been identified in: the individual themselves, their parenting 
and family, their community and peer group, in the curriculum and 
in systems and processes for responding to absence within their 
school and 

 
* this means that there are few - if any - easy solutions; good ideas 

have been developed and implemented - some have been 
effective, but most are local initiatives; there are few national 
strategies - and the dissemination of effective practice is, at best, 
patchy. 

 
1.4 Attendance: the local context 
 
 Despite the efforts of schools, most parents and the LEA, levels of 

attendance at Barking and Dagenham schools continue to be 
comparatively low.  For example, Borough attendance figures for the 
school year 2000-2001 fell slightly from the previous year: 

 
Primary Attendance 

 
 1999 - 2000 2000 - 2001 

Local 93% 92.6% 
National  94.3% 93.9% 

 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 

 
  1   Missing Out: LEA Management of school attendance and exclusion, Audit Commission, 

1999 
  2   Understanding Truancy: Links between attendance, truancy and performance, Scottish 

Council for Research if Education, 1996 
  3 Misspent Youth, Audit Commission, 1996 
  4 Youth Cohort Study 34: Education, Training, Employment of 16-18 year olds in England, 

and the factors associated with non-participation (http://dfes.gov.uk/statistics/DB/SBU) 

Page 55



 
4

 
 

 

 
 

Secondary Attendance 
 

 1999 - 2000 2000 - 2001 
Local 89.9% 89.3% 
National  91.4% 90.9% 

 
The Borough’s attendance targets, as set out in the Education 
Development Plan and the forthcoming Community Strategy, have been 
set at 94% for the primary phase schools and 91% for the secondary 
phase.  Reference to these targets is also made in the Borough’s 
Regeneration Strategy.  
 
Immediately prior to the start of the Review, the Education Social Work 
Service had been facing significant medium term recruitment and retention 
difficulties and had been unable to respond to all the recommendations 
made in national guidance such as the Audit Commission's "Missing Out" 
published in 1999 and the OFSTED report entitled "Improving Attendance 
and Behaviour in Secondary Schools" published in February 2001. 

 
 The Borough's comparatively poor attendance figures had prompted 

surveillance and advice from the DfES's Attendance Advisor for Barking 
and Dagenham.  This advice required the Authority to act as a matter of 
urgency to review, restructure and refocus the Education Social Work 
Service. 

 
 A local issue of particular concern is the extent to which parents in Barking 

and Dagenham choose to take their children on family holidays during 
term time. 

 
 The following figures for 1999-2000 give an indication of the extent of the 

problem: 
 
 No of pupil Years R -13: 27335 
 No of pupils taking term-time holidays: 7096 
 Percentage of pupils taking term-time holidays: 26% 
 Minimum amount of holiday: 1 day 
 Maximum amount of holiday: 2 weeks + 
 Average amount of pupil holiday in term-time: 6 days 
 
 Both nationally and locally, good attendance has been identified as a pre-

requisite for improving academic attainment.  Local levels of holiday taking 
in term time may well be playing a part in impeding the Borough's 
continuing and rapid improvement in raising levels of attainment. 

 
As the OFSTED inspection in January 2002 took place before it was 
possible for the impact of the new Access and Attendance Service to be 
evaluated, it is worth referring to aspects of the inspection report in 
describing the local context: 
 
Extracts from "Inspection of Barking and Dagenham LEA" OFSTED May 
2002: 
 

Page 56



 
5

 
 

 

 
Paragraph 4 
 
The London Borough of Barking and Dagenham serves some 
of the most deprived urban districts in the country.  Unlike 
other London boroughs, its population, despite the recent 
arrival of large numbers of asylum seekers, is mainly white, 
but 17 of the borough's 20 wards have high levels of 
deprivation.  Educational disadvantage is also high; indeed, 
the borough has the lowest proportion of adults with higher 
educational qualifications in the country. 
 
Paragraph 12 

 
 Barking and Dagenham is an innovative, in some respects 

pioneering, LEA.  Its approach is not precisely like that of any 
other, and it has some limitations.  The balance of strengths 
and weaknesses, though, is overwhelmingly positive.  It is one 
of a very small number of LEAs who have shown that it is 
possible to counter the effects of disadvantage: that poverty 
does not inevitably lead, through the grinding mechanisms of 
grim and hopeless determinism, to failure at school.  The LEA 
has the capacity to address its weaknesses.  Its current 
performance offers an example for what can be achieved, 
given the resolution. 

 
1.5 Electronic Registration 
 
 In January 2002, the LEA was invited by the DfES to consult with four of 

its maintained community secondary schools (Dagenham Priory, Sydney 
Russell, Warren and Robert Clack) with a view to submitting bids for 
government funds to enhance existing electronic registration systems. 

 The Authority was successful in obtaining funds for these schools: 
 Dagenham Priory - £21,640 

Sydney Russell - £25,730 
Warren Comprehensive - £23,720 
Robert Clack - £26,270 
 
The LEA was notified of these successful bids during the course of the 
Summer term 2002 and discussions between the Education, Arts and 
Libraries Department and the schools concerned continue with regard to 
making the most effective use of these funds. 

 
1.6 Behaviour Improvement Programme 
 
 The LEA has, during the course of the Summer term 2002, made a 

successful bid, in response to an invitation from the DfES (as a part of the 
Government’s targeted initiative to tackle street crime), for additional funds 
to support the development of an extensive Behaviour Improvement 
Programme within the Borough. 
 
The Programme will involve four secondary schools and their feeder 
schools. 
 

Page 57



 
6

 
 

 

 
 

One aspect of this initiative is the establishment, for at least a three year 
period, of four additional Access and Attendance Officer posts - one of 
which will be attached, on an operational basis, to the Borough’s Youth 
Offending Team. 
 

1.7 Finally, every Council service in Barking and Dagenham operates within 
the context of seven Community Priorities established through extensive 
consultation with the local community.  The LEA and its central services 
are all committed to these priorities and believe they can make a 
contribution to them.  The Community Priorities are: 

  
* Promoting equal opportunities and celebrating diversity 

  
  * Making Barking and Dagenham cleaner, greener and safer 
 
  * Better education and learning for all  
 
  * Developing rights and responsibilities with the local community 
 
  * Improving health, housing and social care 
 
  * Raising general pride in the Borough 
 
  * Regenerating the local economy 
 
2. DETAILS OF SERVICE UNDER REVIEW 
 

2.1 In early 2001, the Education, Arts and Libraries Department was faced 
with a difficult situation.  The Education Social Work Service, a long 
established LEA service which focused principally upon supporting 
schools, parents and children in maintaining and improving pupils' 
attendance at school was in significant difficulty. 

 
2.2 The Service had continual recruitment and retention difficulties and was 

rarely fully staffed.  Consequently, it had not been able to respond pro-
actively to national advice given in publications such as "Missing Out".  In 
the light of comparatively low levels of pupil attendance in the Borough, 
the DfES Attendance Advisor assigned to Barking and Dagenham 
suggested that service managers should, as a matter of urgency, consider 
the implementation locally of national guidance, particularly in respect of 
developing a service which operated more strategically with schools. 

 
2.3 In addition to these factors, the Service needed to be in a position to 

respond appropriately to the development of the Connexions Service and 
once the results were known, consider, the implications of the DfES pilot 
projects in respect of EWO/ESW Services in a number of LEAs. 

 
2.4 In the light of all these factors, the Department decided firstly to bring 

forward the Best Value Review for Attendance to 2001 - 2002 and, 
secondly, to review the Education Social Work Service at the outset of the 
Review. 

 

Page 58



 
7

 
 

 

 
 

 
3. CHALLENGE PHASE 
 

3.1 The questions we asked about support for attendance at school: 
 
 During the Challenge Phase, the Review Group bought in the services of 

David Hoyle, a consultant, to draw together the work being undertaken 
during this phase of the Review, to facilitate discussion of the information 
obtained in response to the questions asked by the Review and to draft 
this element of the Review report. 

 
The challenge aspect of the Best Value Review,  
 

"Is an opportunity to review what we do and the way that we do it 
and, therefore, it will have to be probing. The outcome will be 
directed at providing a better service for the people of the Borough; 
it will give an opportunity to highlight and understand the positive 
things about the way we currently work as well as the areas that 
need to be improved"5 

 
The challenge aspect of each Best Value Review by the London Borough 
of Barking and Dagenham is achieved through providing evidence based 
answers to four questions6: Does the service need to be provided?; What 
outcomes are we trying to achieve/what is our vision for the service?; Are 
we the appropriate provider?; and, Who should we provide the service 
for? 
 

3.2 Does the service need to be provided? - this aspect of the challenge 
relates to the statutory obligations of the Council; the priorities and policies 
of the Council; and public demand for the services under review. 
 
The enforcement of regular attendance at school is an obligation placed 
on local education authorities by both primary legislation and a number of 
associated statutory instruments. Services in support of school attendance 
are one of a very limited number of 'Mandatory Exceptions' under 
delegation of funding arrangements:  

 
-  Local Education Authorities must ensure that children of 

compulsory school age within their area receive regular, full 
time education which is both efficient and suitable 
(Education Act 1996, Section 7) and must set challenging 
targets for reducing levels of unauthorised absence in the 
Education Development Plan (School Standards and 
Framework Act 1998); 

 
-  The Education (Pupils' Attendance Records) Regulations 

1991 state, "The principal function of the Education Welfare 
Service (services in support of school attendance) is to help 
parents and the LEA meet their statutory obligations on 
school attendance; and  

___________________________________________________________________ 
 

5  The London Borough of Barking and Dagenham Best Value Took Kit (BV/Toolkit/Guidance/00Feb-

Page 59



 
8

 
 

 

03 Four C's) 
6  Improving School Attendance Challenge - worksheet, November 20, 2001 

 
 
-  The Education (Financial Delegation to Schools) (Mandatory 

Exceptions) Regulations 1995 include the prescription of 
expenditure by LEAs on services provided in the support and 
enforcement of regular attendance at school.  

 
LEAs also have obligations to ensure the safety, well being and protection 
from exploitation of children who are working part time, or who are working 
in entertainment:  

 
-  The Children and Young Persons Act 1933 (Section 18(2)) 

requires local authorities to pass Bye laws regulating the 
employment of children of compulsory school age; The 
Children (Protection at Work) Regulations 1998 brought 
amendments to Section 18(2) required by the EC Protection 
of Young Workers Directive (94/33); and the Education Act 
1996 (Section 559) requires that LEAs initiate enforcement 
proceedings if a child's employment is prejudicial to their 
health or regular attendance at school, and  

 
-  An LEA's responsibilities in respect of children working in 

entertainment are contained in; the Children and Young 
Persons Acts 1933 and 1963; The Children (Performances) 
Regulations 1968; The Children (Performances) 
(Miscellaneous Amendments) Regulations 1998; and The 
Children and Young Persons (Performances) Amendment 
Regulations 2000. As the licensing authority, the LEA also 
has a responsibility to approve 'Chaperones' or 'Matrons' 
who have a duty of care for the safety and well being of the 
young person during the performance, or on the occasions 
to which the licence relates.  
 

Support for regular attendance at school underpins every one of the 
priorities and policies adopted by Barking and Dagenham Council:  

 
-  regular attendance at school by young people who will 

become stakeholders in Barking and Dagenham is central to 
all of the Council's priorities; Better education, rights and 
responsibilities, raising pride, regenerating the local 
economy, securing equalities, improving health housing and 
social care, and establishing a cleaner greener and safer 
Borough  

 
-  promoting social inclusion - raising standards and 

expectations for vulnerable groups, providing services and 
facilitating services by partner agencies in the statutory, 
voluntary and independent sectors for 'hard-to-reach' groups 

 
-  community safety - absence from school is an evidenced 

pre-cursor of anti-social behaviours including criminality (see 
reference 6, above) 

 

Page 60



 
9

 
 

 

-  lifelong learning and economic regeneration - strong co-
relations have been identified between irregular attendance 
at school and low skilled work, and patterns of employability 
and employment in later life 

 
There is a high level of demand for services by members of the public - 
the Access and Attendance Service receives high numbers of self-
referrals from parents and the families of young people who are 
experiencing difficulties in schools, and in accessing learning 
opportunities. Access and attendance have an important role in facilitating 
access to 'hard-to-reach' individuals and groups by workers in partner 
agencies - for example, in connection with local priorities in relation to 
health, housing and social care.  

 
Summary  

 
The Council must continue to provide services in support of school 
attendance: not only does the Council have significant statutory 
obligations in this area of operations, but such services underpin every 
one of the Council's priorities, and there is a high level of demand for the 
services by residents and stakeholders in the Borough.  

 
3.3 What outcomes are we trying to achieve/what is our vision for the 

service? - this aspect of the challenge focuses on the outcomes that the 
service under review must achieve, or wishes-to achieve, and seeks to 
identify the kind of service provider that is needed to achieve these 
outcomes. 

 
Services in support of school attendance must enable the Department of 
Education, Arts and Libraries to achieve a number of both national targets 
and performance indicators, and local targets, performance indicators and 
success criteria:  
 

-  reducing levels of unauthorised absence, raising standards 
in all schools, reducing levels of youth crime, reducing 
perceived threat within community safety initiatives - through 
Acceptable Behaviour Contracts and Anti-Social Behaviour 
Orders, reducing levels of 'youths causing annoyance', and 
encouraging young people to remain in learning beyond 
compulsory school age.  

The vision of the London Borough of Barking and Dagenham for its 
services in support of school attendance must also take into account 
National Guidance, and identified local needs:  

 
-  National Guidance; including findings from the National 

Foundation for Educational Research evaluation of the 
'Tackling Truancy Together' pilot schemes of delegation; 
good practice identified by the DfES"7; and, the DfES 
perspective of LEA service providers as agencies that work 
with schools to enable them to further develop their capacity 
to manage attendance more effectively,  

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
7 for example, http://www.dfes.gov.uk/schoolattendance  

Page 61



 
10

 
 

 

 
 
-  Developing a robust partnership between services in support 

of school attendance, schools and relevant agencies to 
design and implement a tiered strategic approach - a 
medium to long term approach which uses early intervention 
as a means of supporting parents, whilst diverting children 
and families away from a need for services - from whatever 
agency - at higher (more resource intensive) tiers8 

 
-  Thinking critically about balancing costs and benefits in the 

use of the Authority's legal powers in enforcing school 
attendance; developing an approach within which parents 
are supported through reasonable opportunities to change 
their behaviours and those of their children before legal 
action is initiated by the LEA.  

 
Local needs; Schools, Elected Members, Parents and the Community;  

 
-  Schools - effective targeting of resources across the 

community of schools within the Borough and between the 
primary and secondary phases - in ways that deploy 
resources in inverse proportion to success in managing 
attendance whilst ensuring equality of access to services. 

 
- Elected Members - ensuring that Members remain informed 

about comparisons between services in support of improving 
school attendance in Barking and Dagenham and other local 
authorities, about cross cutting approaches being developed 
and implemented in partnership with schools and other 
relevant agencies, and about the impact of these 
approaches both on levels of attendance, and on standards 
in schools, young people remaining in learning after 
compulsory school age, reductions in complaints of 'youths 
causing annoyance' and levels of youth crime  

 
- Governors - the LEA has supported and guided governing 

bodies in relation to attendance by reporting to them 
regularly on individual school and LEA performance in this 
area.  Governing bodies are asked annually to consider their  
attendance policies and strategies. 
 

The LEA has successfully encouraged Governing Bodies to 
appoint ‘Attendance Governors’ to guide and support 
relevant school staff in improving attendance; such 
governors are being supported, as are other specialist 
governors, through the development of job specifications for 
such a role and through training. 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
8 Hardiker P, Exton K, Barker M, 1991, The Social Policy Contexts of Prevention in Child 

Care 
   British Journal of Social Work, Volume 21, pp 341-359. 

Page 62



 11  

-  Parents - it has been acknowledged by Elected Members 
and Officers of the Department that many parents of children 
who are currently registered pupils at schools in the 
Borough, were themselves pupils during a period when there 
were difficulties; it is important to develop strategies that 
balance support for children and their families with a 
consistent and robust reinforcement of parent's 
responsibilities that enable parents to change their 
perceptions of education and schools and support their 
children more effectively, and  

 
- Community - ensuring that the community as a whole is fully 

aware of the Council's positive reasons for seeking to 
improve levels of attendance at school, and how this fits with 
what focus groups and 'Citizen Panels' identify as important.  

 
Summary  
 
The London Borough of Barking and Dagenham's vision for services in 
support of school attendance is one where an effective high quality 
centrally maintained service is valued by service users, resource holders 
and policy makers, and which makes a lasting positive impact in improving 
attendance within the Borough.  To achieve this vision complementary 
approaches need to be developed, or reviewed and further developed:  

 
-  robust and effective partnerships with the community of 

schools and other relevant agencies within which the Access 
and Attendance Service leads in developing a clear direction 
and effective practice in driving-up rates of attendance 

 
-  seeking to allocate resources in ways that achieve high 

impact 
 
-  balancing direct interventions with children and families and 

work with schools (in partnership with the LEA's Inspectors) 
to review and strengthen our systems for responding to pupil 
absence; including the active dissemination of good practice 
- 'What Works in improving attendance in Barking and 
Dagenham', and  

 
-  initiating approaches that raise community awareness about 

the positive benefits of regular attendance - creating the 
conditions for good (two-way) communication between 
schools, parents, the LEA and the community.  

 
3.4  Are we the appropriate provider? - this aspect of the challenge relates 

to seeking out information about all possible providers in the service area 
under review - considering the public, private and voluntary sector, and 
public/public, public/private, public/voluntary partnerships, and asking 
whether any or all of the options assist in achieving the required service 
outcome/vision.  

 
In every Local Education Authority in England and Wales strategic and 
operational responsibilities for supporting school attendance, and for 
licensing and monitoring children in employment and in entertainment are 

Page 63



 12  

undertaken by the Education Welfare/Education Social Work Service (or 
its equivalent). However, there are significant differences in staffing and 
expenditure on services across local authorities;  
 
Staffing ratios:  

 
- 1 officer:1560 young people of compulsory school age in one 

authority, to 1: 9780 in a Metropolitan Borough in northern 
England 

 
- the national average is 1:3050 

 
 

- the ratio in the London Borough of Barking and Dagenham is 
1:2860 (based on a schools population of 28610 children) 

 
Expenditure:  

 
- from £6.25 per pupil of compulsory school age to £22.75 per 

pupil  
 

- the national average is £14.25 per pupil 
 

- expenditure in the London Borough of Barking and Dagenham 
is £14.12 per pupil (based on a schools population of 28610 
children and an annual budget of £404,000)   

 
In asking whether the London Borough of Barking and Dagenham is the 
appropriate provider of services in support of school attendance, we 
investigated the following before reaching a conclusion:  
 

3.4.1  Services in the private sector  
 

The inherent difficulties in driving up attendance and 
addressing pupil absence means there is no agency within 
the private sector in England and Wales that provides a 
service which is comparable with the Access and 
Attendance Service.  However, in one area a private sector 
provider has marketed services to schools, to undertake a 
very specific and very limited task of investigating pupil 
absence that has not been explained by a parent: 

 
-  in East Yorkshire 'First Call' provides schools 

purchasing services with a first day contact 
service: 'First Call' is a private sector provider that 
contracts with a school or consortium of schools to 
telephone the parents of every pupil who is absent 
on each school day,  

 
3.4.2  Services in the voluntary/independent sector  
 

In one Authority (also one of the local authorities involved in 
the recent 'Tackling Truancy Together' pilot programme) 
some schools used monies devolved from the LEA to 
contract with a local charitable body to provide workers who 

Page 64



 13  

would undertake some of the family support, counselling and 
guidance aspects relating to pupil absence. Whilst allowing 
the schools maximum flexibility in the use of resources, this 
approach brought a number of major obstacles to the 
efficient and effective delivery of services in support of 
school attendance: 
 
-  meeting the statutory obligations of the Authority, 

and addressing the responsibilities and 
accountabilities of the Local Authority in achieving 
a clear strategic direction for services in support of 
regular attendance that contributed to meeting 
Council priorities 

 
-  the approach generated inefficiencies in service 

delivery inconsistencies in approaches to referrals 
to the LEA core service by different 
workers/schools, a reactive rather than pro-active 
approach to pupil absence, and attendance 
difficulties escalated over time to a level where 
pupils became school refusers 

 
-  there is a danger in individuals who have not been 

subject to rigorous checks during recruitment, 
assessment, selection and appointment having 
unsupervised access to vulnerable, marginalised 
and disadvantaged children and families; and in 
addition such staff were not bound by the 
disciplinary procedures of the Council, nor local 
information sharing protocols (for example, with 
the Metropolitan Police, or local Area Child 
Protection Procedures).  

 
3.4.3  Services in collaboration with other local education 

authorities  
 
 As part of this Review, Senior Officers of the Department of 

Education, Arts and Libraries have begun the process of 
contacting peers in neighbouring LEAs to undertake a 
S.W.O.T.9 analysis on collaborative working arrangements 
between local authorities in providing services in support of 
school attendance.  

Summary  
 
In this Review we have considered three alternatives in answering the 
question 'Are we the appropriate provider?': No provider exists in the 
private sector and there is good evidence that the alternatives either 
generate strategic and operational inefficiencies or may increase levels of 
risk to vulnerable children and families.  
 
 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 

9 An acronym for an organisational analysis of a joint venture or project that focuses on - 
Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats 

 

Page 65



 14  

The responsibilities placed on the Council in ensuring high levels of 
attendance, and in the range of cross cutting responsibilities (for example, 
community safety, youth offending, lifelong learning, child protection) 
mean that the London Borough of Barking and Dagenham should continue 
to provide services in support of school attendance. The Access and 
Attendance Service has the capacity to:  

 
- take a broad view of attendance patterns across the 

Borough - modifying and targeting service delivery profiles to 
meet issues and needs that have been identified in 
partnership with schools and the LEA's Inspectors, and 
where the absence of individuals is a shared concern with 
key partners (for example, Social Services Departments, 
NHS Trust, Youth Offending Team, and Connexions 
Partnership); 

 
- provide the lead in emphasising and enforcing the 

obligations of all parents within the Borough for ensuring that 
their children attend school regularly; 

 
- develop a lead in putting into practice the Council's vision on 

driving up levels of attendance within a multi-stakeholder 
partnership - promoting clear directions, shared objectives, 
and effective communication about attendance between 
stakeholders; and 

 
- raising awareness about good practice from other areas, and 

facilitating the sharing of good practice in managing 
attendance amongst the community of schools. 

 
An identified area for development is the identification of a benchmark 
group of Authorities so that Elected Members, Senior Officers of the 
Education, Arts and Libraries Department and the Access and Attendance 
Service Team can compare themselves against performance to which 
they aspire10. 
 

3.5  To whom should we provide the service? - this aspect of the challenge 
relates to the 'customers' of the service under review; considering all 
stakeholders and service users; asking what are their expectations about 
the service - and how do we know; and, are we meeting their 
expectations - and how do we know. 
 
'Customers' of services in support of school attendance include a diverse 
range of individuals and groups, where the interests of some may conflict 
with those of others.  Principal stakeholders and users of services include: 
schools, parents, young people, other LEA service units (SEN services), 
Social Services, Youth Offending Team, Metropolitan Police, health 
services and agencies in the voluntary sector (for example, Young 
Carers). 
 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 

10 A group of local authorities against which the performance of Barking and Dagenham 
can compare itself can be built within the recently launched Audit Commission website: 
http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/itc/attendnacecomparative 

 

Page 66



 15  

Whilst there is a high level of support for school attendance by Elected 
Members and Senior Officer and schools in the Borough have expressed 
satisfaction in a survey conducted by OFSTED prior to their recent 
inspection, a strategy for effective two way communication with parents, 
other agencies and the community has been recognised as an area for 
development.  The elements envisaged include: 

 
- developing effective partnerships and joint service delivery 

arrangements with other agencies where areas for operational 
responsibility overlap; for example, with Social Services on children 
'in need' assessments and Looked After Children, with the 
Metropolitan Police on the use of Powers under Section 16 of the 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998, with health providers where children 
who are not attending school may have mental health difficulties; 
 

- developing effective communication and feedback mechanisms 
with parents and young people - for example, 'customer 
satisfaction' surveys; 
 

- developing Local Performance Indicators and Local Success 
Criteria for services in support of school attendance that set 
challenging targets for all aspects of service delivery; 

 
- reviewing, and where necessary improving, management 

information and data capture systems as a basis for providing 
qualitative and quantitative evidence of the impact of services in 
support of school attendance. 
 

Summary 
 

 Services in support of school attendance in the Borough have a high level of 
support and schools, a major group of customers, report that performance is 
satisfactory.  However, the Service and the LEA have aspirations to achieve 
excellence by further developing initiatives that have recently been introduced 
and to work towards continuously improving service delivery.  Mechanisms that 
may be useful in this striving toward excellence include: developing effective 
protocols with key partners, communication with service users, setting 
challenging targets in service delivery, and ensuring that the information systems 
of the Service has the capacity effectively to support service delivery. 

 
4. CONSULTATION PHASE 
 

4.1 The Consultation Phase of the Review has been affected by the early 
restructure of the Borough's attendance service.  Whilst consultation has 
been a strong feature of the Review, it has not been possible, within the 
Review's timescale, to consult on the efficiency and effectiveness of the 
newly established Access and Attendance Service. 

 
 Consequently, the Review Group has set out in the Support for School 

Attendance Improvement Plan, the framework and timescale for further 
consultation.  This further consultation will relate to the efficiency and 
effectiveness of the Access and Attendance Service and seek to obtain 
the views about the Service held by parents and children (this latter 
consultative work having been delayed by not only the restructuring but 
also by the OFSTED inspection of the Authority in January 2002 and the 

Page 67



 16  

departure, in late January 2002, of the Review's Lead Officer, Christine 
Grice, Head of Children's Support Division. 

 
4.2 However, the restructuring of the Borough's attendance service did not 

take place in a vacuum.  Between April and June 2001, the views of a 
number of service stakeholders were obtained about: 

 
(a)  the issues which the Authority should address in 

restructuring its attendance service and  
 
(b)  the proposals put forward by Departmental managers in 

respect of the new structure of the service.  In addition to 
this, the Department was made aware through its own 
consultation and that undertaken by OFSTED in the Autumn 
Term 2001 of the views of schools in respect of the 
Authority's support for school attendance. 

 
4.3 On 27th April 2001, members of the Education Social Work Service were 

informed about the immediate review of their Service and the reason for it.  
At this point, they were invited to put forward, in writing, "any issues the 
Department should address through this review or any ideas which might 
help to move the Service forward." 

 
 Five members of the Education Social Work Service responded to this 

invitation.  Their recommendations included: 
  

* Changes to the existing arrangements for panel meetings 
(meetings held with relevant families and their children in respect of 
serious difficulties with attendance) with a view to making them 
more efficient and accessible to parents; 

 
* Proposing the establishment of a Court Officer post within the 

Service; 
 
* Proposing the introduction of term-time only working for those 

officers who wanted such a facility; 
 
* Proposing a more strategic emphasis to the role of the Service 
 
* Changing the name of the Service; 
 
* Enhancing the influence and status of the Service; 
 
* The creation of a leaner management structure within the Service; 
 
* The establishment of primary and secondary teams; 
 
* The inclusion of research and evaluation work as part of the overall 

work of the Service; 
 
* The establishment of more career development opportunities within 

the Service;  
 
* Opposition to the possibility of "hot-desking"; 
 

Page 68



 17  

* The need to ensure that job specifications continue to reflect 
adequately the nature of the work undertaken by officers working 
within the Service; 

 
* The need for the Service to remain independent of schools; 
 
* Detailed recommendations regarding the roles and responsibilities 

which should be held within the Service; 
 
* Continuation of the Service being based at the Town Hall, Barking; 
 
* The establishment of an annual action plan for the Service directly 

connected to the Education Development Plan; 
 
* The introduction of "hot-desking" in the central office and the 

establishment of physical bases in secondary schools for LEA 
officers who work in them; 

 
* The co-ordination of LEA and school staff INSET; 
 
* The establishment of effective cross-Borough working 

arrangements; 
 
* More effective links with other local services; 
 
* More flexibility with working hours to enable more effective, 

responsive and targeted work (e.g. evening or weekend work). 
 
4.4 On 25th May 2001, Departmental managers put forward proposals for the 

establishment of the Access and Attendance Service.  This time, views on 
the proposals were sought from trade union representatives, 
headteachers, Social Services as well as from existing staff. 

 
 Responses received can be summarised as follows: 
 

CONSULTEES RESPONSES 
RECEIVED  

COMMENTS MADE 

Headteachers  2 The need for the continuation of  
support to primary phase schools in 
working with parents in support of 
attendance 
 
The need for an emphasis at an  
early age in respect of difficulties  
with school attendance. 
 
The need for more competitive rates 
of pay for Service staff 
 
The need for each primary phase  
school to be assigned a named  
officer 
 
General support for the proposals 
 

Page 69



 18  

Service Staff 1 Support for the change in name 
 
The need for more emphasis on the 
status of Parenting Orders and on 
'recent legislation' 
 

Social Services 1 The need to connect the work of the 
new Service with corporate Council 
work on inclusion and with the  
targets in major strategic plans 
 
The need to use the establishment  
of a new Service as an opportunity 
to develop joint services and more 
effective joint work. 
 
Proposing that Service staff work 
towards obtaining qualified Social 
Worker status. 
 
The possibility of wider consultation 
with stakeholders 
 

 
4.5 Although OFSTED was not consulted in the usual sense of the word, its 

views regarding the LEA's support for attendance are key to any future 
development of the Service. 

 
 In the Autumn Term 2001, OFSTED initiated the inspection process by 

issuing all state maintained schools situated in the Borough with a 
questionnaire in which they were asked to grade, on a five point scale, the 
full range of LEA activities in relation to its work with schools. 
 
In respect of this area of the service, schools were asked to grade LEA’s 
“support for promoting a high level of attendance”.  The grading system 
was as follows: 
1 - Very good 
2 - Good 
3 - Satisfactory 
4 - Poor 
5 - Very poor 
 
School evaluations of this aspect of the LEA’s role were as follows: 

 
PRIMARY PHASE SCHOOLS 
 

RATING PERCENTAGE OF SCHOOLS 
 

Poor 18% 
Satisfactory 50% 
Good 24% 
Very Good 8% 

 
  (N.B.  There were no ‘very poor’ ratings from our primary phase schools) 
 

Page 70



 19  

SECONDARY PHASE SCHOOLS 
 

RATING PECENTAGE OF SCHOOLS 
 

Poor 38% 
Satisfactory 38% 
Good 25% 

 
(N.B.  There were no ‘very poor’ or ‘very good’ ratings from our secondary  
phase schools) 

 
When these scores were combined in the analysis undertaken of all the 
responses to the OFSTED questionnaire, the LEA’s score was within the 
middle range of scores achieved by those 94 LEAs inspected from Spring 
2000 to Autumn 2001 and those programmed for inspection in Spring 
2002. 
 
It should be recognised that these responses were made at a time when, 
because of the recruitment and retention difficulties faced by the 
Education Social Work Service some schools had been without a full 
service for some months. 

 
OFSTED's judgements on (a) Attendance and (b) Child Protection are set 
out in full below: 

 
Paragraph 151 
 
Attendance: Support for attendance is satisfactory.  Attendance 
remains a concern, but was identified as a serious issue at the time 
of the first inspection.  Weaknesses lie in support for primary 
schools where there has been little improvement in attendance and 
no improvement in unauthorised absence since the last inspection.  
In secondary schools, there has been some improvement in 
attendance, and a considerable reduction in unauthorised absence.  
Action has not been sufficiently prioritised until relatively recently. 

 
Paragraph 152  
 
Over the last two years, the education welfare team became 
depleted.  Staffing difficulties were encountered last year.  The 
service has now been restructured and strengthened.  The capacity 
for further improvement is good.  The access and attendance team 
operates within the new Children's Support Division, working with 
pupils and their families and supporting schools.  Additionally 
appointed officers support pupils in public care, young women of 
school age who are mothers and the increasing number of mobile 
pupils.  In secondary schools, links with the learning mentors are 
used as a lever to improve attendance. 

 
Paragraph 153 
 
A new handbook has recently been launched.  This is a model of 
good practice.  It makes clear the roles and responsibilities of 
schools and officers, offers guidance on procedures and definitions, 
and gives good practical advice to schools.  Previous 

Page 71



 20  

inconsistencies in marking registers should now be eliminated, 
ensuring that attendance and unauthorised absence figures are more 
accurate, and court cases easier to substantiate. 
 
Paragraph 154 

 
Inspector's first systematic visit of the year involves an Access and 
Attendance Officer.  Discussions with headteachers on attendance 
targets and exclusion issues have resulted in good plans for 
remedial action.  There is already evidence of impact, particularly in 
highlighting underlying reasons for absence and negotiating 
appropriate remedial action with schools.  The combination of this 
good intervention strategy, the new handbook, additional resources 
to schools through Standards Funding and newly appointed staff 
should ensure further improvement.  Alongside this, a central pupil 
database is being introduced to allow closer and more rapid 
monitoring of attendance and exclusion. 
 
Paragraph 155 
 
Co-operation with other agencies, especially with social services and 
the police, is good.  An Access and Attendance Officer is a member 
of the Youth Offending Team which has carried out truancy sweeps.  
Regular discussions with magistrates regarding court action 
proceedings result in a generally successful impact. 

 
Paragraph 160 

 
(Child Protection) Support for health and safety, welfare and child 
protection is good.  Multi-agency co-operation has been much 
improved since the previous inspection.  There is close working 
between the education service, social services and the police.  In 
addition, other agencies such as housing have been effectively 
involved when circumstances warrant.  The borough's welfare 
officer, educational psychology service and industrial chaplain offer 
support and guidance to schools and families in cases of trauma.  
The Healthy Schools Initiative has successfully supported schools in 
developing health and education programmes.  There is a good 
working arrangement with officers in surrounding boroughs.   
 
Paragraph 161 
 
There has been a recent transfer of responsibilities for child 
protection to the Access and Attendance Service.  All schools have 
emergency contact numbers and officers are available to advise on 
cases either prior to, or at the time of a referral.  A consultant is 
providing training and additional support to child protection co-
ordinators.  Course attendance is monitored and areas of concern 
well followed up.  The existing policy and procedures document is 
being revised in consultation with schools. 
 
It is worth reflecting, in terms of best practice, that in “Missing Out: LEA 
Management of school attendance and exclusion” published by the Audit 
Commission in 1999, the recommendations made to LEAs were as 
follows: 

Page 72



 21  

 
LEAs should make more effective use of data by: 
1. systematically analysing attendance and exclusion data at group 

and pupil level, in addition to school level 
2. collecting and analysing data on fixed period exclusions to monitor 

and, where necessary, target prevention at vulnerable groups 
3. examining the characteristics of permanently excluded pupils and 

others being educated by the LEA outside school, to inform 
strategic reviews of provision 

LEAs should support school level work by: 
4. providing a framework and strategic direction for both improving 

attendance and preventing exclusion in their area 
5. recognising the importance of effective links with the advisory and 

inspection service in improving school attendance 
6. placing greater emphasis on working with school management on 

their policies, procedures and use of data, as well as doing 
individual casework with pupils 

7. encouraging and assisting schools to improve their management of 
attendance and exclusions by both providing expert advice and 
challenging under-performance 

Work with other services, agencies and local authorities could be 
improved if LEAs establish: 
8. high level agreements on shared budgets for residential 

placements 
9. clarity on roles and responsibilities when dealing, for example, with 

a looked after child who is not attending school 
10. shared databases and perspectives among local front-line staff 
11. clear referral routes, with LEA services acting as gateways to other 

services and agencies for schools, parents and pupils 
LEAs should enhance education welfare service management by: 
12. reviewing the focus, funding and comparative demands on their 

EWs 
13. monitoring service effectiveness at case, group, school and LEA 

level and using that information to inform future service planning 
In order to ensure good quality education for all children outside 
school, LEAs should: 
14. proactively manage the exclusion process 
15. have a ‘champion’ within the LEA for each pupil out of school to 

track their progress from the point they are out of school to their 
placement back in full-time education. 

16. focus on all pupils outside school who are not receiving an effective 
education, not just those on permanently excluded 

17. monitor the effectiveness of school reintegration packages 
18. monitor the costs and outcomes of placements for all those outside 

mainstream schooling, including checks on what happens to these 
pupils after they reach the age of 16 

19. quality assure all forms of education not subject to external 
inspection 

20. forge close links and share information with those agencies and 
schemes providing assistance for disaffected young people after 
the age of 16 

The creation of the Access and Attendance Team was intended to enable 
the LEA to move, as rapidly as possible, towards these approaches. 

 
 

Page 73



 22  

5. COMPARE PHASE 
 
 As part of this Best Value Review, officers have made visits to compare service 

delivery approaches in other local authorities, and have had discussions with 
officers in other LEAs and with Merle Davies (Attendance Advisor, Department 
for Education and Skills). 

 
Blackpool  - identified good practice by the DfES in the management of 

monitoring pupil mobility into/out of the authority and in 
working with schools to challenge off-rolling.  In addition to 
this, the visit also stimulated thinking about regular 
consultation between the Service and schools on joint 
initiatives to tackle absence, the implementation of cost 
effective approaches to employment licensing, and the 
development of integrated practice arrangements with 
partner agencies supported by the exchange of information 
(for example, with the Housing Department about families 
moving into the Borough). 

 
 Practice to consider - Initiate discussions and planning with 

schools and key partners at a strategic level about 
attendance matters - seeking to enhance partnerships 
through working towards shared goals and performance 
targets. 

 
Havering - the Authority has recently completed a Best Value Review 

of the Education Welfare Service and is also one of the 
authorities in the DfES delegation pilot. 

 
 Practice to consider - Incorporate the findings of the Best 

Value Review into robust Service/Business planning 
processes 

 
Nottingham - identified good practice in the use of Police Powers under 

section 16 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, in supporting 
vulnerable young people on the streets, and is devolving 
Education Welfare Service budgets to schools on a service 
buy-back basis 

 
 Practice to consider - Build effective partnerships with local 

divisions of the Metropolitan Police to identify shared goals 
(for example: emphasising the importance of regular 
attendance/reducing youth crime; targeting truancy 'hotspots' 
(community safety - fear of crime)/Policy Powers under 
Section 16 of the Crime and Disorder Act 

 
St. Helens - delegation of the Education Welfare Service to schools in 

1990/91 leaving the Council's statutory responsibilities to be 
carried out by the Authority's Legal Services Department 

 
 Practice to consider - Agreeing a service delivery profile in 

support of attendance at school that balances support and 
opportunities for young people and their families to change 
their behaviour against the use of the Authority's legal 
powers 

Page 74



 23  

 
Oldham - DfES have identified good practice in initiatives that focus 

on key themes (eg extended absence to country of origin), 
working strategically with schools to develop whole school 
initiatives on improving attendance rates, and the 
implementation of Management Information Systems that 
enable effective monitoring, support targeting of service 
delivery and underpin the evaluation of Service performance. 

 
 Practice to consider - Work with interested schools on whole 

school initiatives, and disseminate good practice on the 
impact of such projects.  In-depth review of Management 
Information Systems of the Service; in support of service 
delivery, and of benchmarking in accordance with the 
aspirations of elected members and senior officers of the 
LEA. 

 
Bury - identified good practice in raising the awareness of parents 

about the importance of regular attendance, and about their 
legal responsibilities. 

 
 Practice to consider - Develop and implement a 'core 

message' of two or three items about the importance of 
regular attendance that can be used by any elected member, 
senior officer, access and attendance officer, headteacher, 
learning mentor whenever attendance and absence is 
discussed.  Develop and implement a publicity campaign 
about the commitment of the London Borough of Barking 
and Dagenham to driving up rates of attendance. 

 
Leeds - the Attendance and Behaviour Support Team is a business 

unit within Education Leeds (a wholly owned company 
limited by guarantee of Leeds City Council and Capital) 
where good practice is being developed in the integration of 
the work on disaffection of the Attendance support team, 
Learning Mentors and Personal Advisors. 

 
Practice to consider - seek to develop effective collaboration 
at school and whole authority levels between the LEA's 
support for school attendance and Learning Support Mentors 
(Excellence in Cities) and Personal Advisors (Connexions 
Partnership). 

 
In addition to the information gained in these exercises, Members of the 
Group were interested to compare the Borough's performance in respect of 
school attendance with (a) those LEAs ranked most closely with us in terms of 
academic performance (Key Stage 2 and GCSE results) and (b) those LEAs 
considered to be our 'statistical neighbours' (ie those LEAs which have the 
closest overall statistical profile to Barking and Dagenham). 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 75



 24  

Key Stage 2 2001 
 
The table below displays the Key Stage 2 results of 2001. The results are 
aggregated and ranked. It shows that of the 149 local authorities in England, Barking 
and Dagenham are ranked joint 77th highest performing with 4 other authorities.  
 

Key Stage 2 2001 English  Maths Science Aggregate 
Score  

Rank 
Total of 

149 

DfES 
Attendance

2000/01 
PRIMARY

Derbyshire 75 70 87 232 77 94.6 

Somerset 75 69 88 232 77 94.1 

Stockton on Tees 74 71 87 232 77 93.9 

Slough 74 72 86 232 77 93.0 
Barking & 
Dagenham 72 72 88 232 77 92.5 
 
Where the performance of Barking and Dagenham is compared with other 
authorities, Ofsted’s statistics profile should be used. The profile identifies 10 
statistical neighbours on the basis of contextual data which shows similarities 
between authorities. Ofsted has developed the statistical neighbours method to 
enable comparisons on a ‘like for like’ basis. The aggregate scores and performance 
rank of the borough’s statistical neighbours is shown below for information.  
 
Statistical Neighbours  
 

Key Stage 2 2001 Aggregate 
Score  

Rank 
Total of 

149 

DfES 
Attendance 

2000/01 
PRIMARY 

Tameside 228 88 94.0 

Stoke on Trent 222 118 93.7 

Halton 233 69 93.7 

Rochdale  227 101 93.6 

Oldham 228 98 93.4 

Coventry 221 121 93.3 

Salford 229 93 93.3 

City of Kingston Upon Hull 223 115 93.2 

Southampton 216 128 92.5 

Barking & Dagenham 232 77 92.5 

Sandwell 212 136 92.4 
 
 

Page 76



 25  

GCSE 2001 
 
The table below shows the GCSE results 2001 for the 5+A* to C GCSE grades 
indicator. Of the 149 LEAs in England Barking and Dagenham was ranked 123rd.  
The rounded results (38%) mean that this position is shared with Luton and 
Blackburn with Darwen.  
 

 
Percentage of 
Pupils on roll 

5+A*-C 
Rank of 149 

DfES 
Attendance 

2000/01 
SECONDARY 

Luton 38.1 124 91.1 

Blackburn with Darwen 37.5 125 90.6 

Barking & Dagenham 38.2 123 89.3 
 
As stated above it is crucial to compare performance on a like for like basis. Barking and 
Dagenham’s statistical neighbours are therefore ranked below. 
 
Statistical Neighbours 
 

 
Percentage of 
Pupils on roll 

5+A*-C 
Rank of 149 

DfES 
Attendance 

2000/01 
SECONDARY 

Tameside 42.0 106 90.9 

Stoke on Trent 35.6 130 90.6 

Oldham 41.4 109 90.6 

Southampton 43.0 98 90.3 

Coventry 42.6 102 89.9 

Rochdale  40.4 113 89.6 

Barking & Dagenham 38.2 123 89.3 
Halton 39.9 115 89.0 

Sandwell 34.3 137 88.7 

Salford 34.3 137 88.2 
City of Kingston Upon 
Hull 27.5 149 87.6 

 
Summary 
 
Discussions with officers in other LEAs and visits to other local authorities have 
enabled Service Managers and Senior Officers to construct a menu of identified 
good practice in improving school attendance; decisions about whether any of 
these options and ideas could be incorporated into the London Borough of 
Barking and Dagenham's service delivery profile have yet to be discussed with 
schools and other partners, and their viability evaluated. 
 
At the beginning of the Review, the Department made the comparison between 
the performance of the Education Social Work Service and the recommendations 
made in respect of LEA support for school attendance in the Audit Commission's 

Page 77



 26  

"Missing Out".  The difference between the two was one of the motivating factors 
for the early restructuring of the service. 
 
Examination of the comparative information regarding Key Stage 2 and G.C.S.E 
results for 2001 suggests that the Borough's performance in respect of 
attendance is not yet keeping pace with the improvements in attainment.  
Members of the Review Group agree that this is an issue which should be 
reflected in the Improvement Plan so that schools and the LEA could do even 
better if attendance were improved.  

 
6. COMPETE PHASE (INCLUDING OPTION APPRAISAL) 
 

6.1 The Review Group has found it difficult to identify any providers of a 
comprehensive attendance service in the private sector or other LEA 
providers operating as potential competitors to the Borough's own service. 

 
 However, the Review Group made a commitment to include within the 

Improvement Plan an undertaking that, through the Service's links with 
other LEA providers, the possibility of partnership working would be 
explored. 

 
 The Review Group considered the relevant options in the following way: 

  
OPTION APPROPRIATE NOT 

APPROPRIATE 
 

COMMENTS 

Marketing testing  
of all or part of  
the service 

 ✔  The current 
absence of a 
market  
rendered 
this option 
unviable 

Formation of a 
public/private or 
public/public 
partnership,  
through a  
strategic  
contract, or joint 
venture company  
for example 

✔   This option 
would be kept 
under review 
through  
service links  
with other  
LEA providers

Transfer or 
externalisation of 
the service to 
another provider 
(with no in-house 
bid) 

 ✔  Given the 
absence of 
competitors 
and the 
Authority's 
commitment  
to its own 
service this 
option was 
rejected 

Page 78



 27  

 
Restructuring or 
repositioning  of  
the in-house  
service 

✔   The Review 
Group made a 
strong 
commitment  
to this option, 
given the early 
restructuring 
of the in-house 
service for the 
reasons set  
out in Section 
2 of this  
report 

Joint 
Commissioning or 
delivery of the 
service 

 ✔  This option 
would be  
given further 
consideration 
as part of the 
on-going  
review of the 
Service 

Cessation of the 
service in whole  
or in part 

 ✔  Statutory 
obligations 
prevent this 

 
6.2 The Review Group's preferred option is to maintain the direction 

determined by the early restructuring of the Borough's attendance service.  
Joint commissioning and partnership working will be kept under review in 
the light of developments both locally and nationally - including 
consideration of the implications of the DfES pilot projects in fourteen 
LEAs (these projects relate to the devolution to secondary schools of parts 
of LEA attendance Services). 

 
 

Page 79



 28  

GLOSSARY OF ACRONYMS AND INITIALS USED IN THE REPORT 
 
OFSTED - Office for Standards in Education 
 
LEA  - Local Education Authority 
 
CIAS  - Community Inspection and Advisory Service 
 
CMAS  - Care Management and Assessment Services (Social Services) 
 
UNISON - Britain’s biggest trade union, representing over 1.3 million workers, 

principally within the public sector 
 
DfES  - Department for Education and Skills 
 
EWO  - Education Welfare Officer 
 
ESW  - Education Social Worker 
 
NHS  - National Health Service 
 
SEN  - Special Educational Needs 
 
INSET  -  In-service training (now  referred to as CPD - Continuing 

   Professional Development) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
jw/kr/draft2001 
best value attendance report 
november 2002 

Page 80



B
ES

T 
VA

LU
E 

(A
TT

EN
D

A
N

C
E)

 
 

IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
PL

A
N

 
  

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t R

eq
ui

re
d 

Pr
io

rit
y 

K
ey

 A
ct

io
ns

 
Ti

m
es

ca
le

s 
O

ut
pu

ts
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Le
ad

 
 

Pu
bl

ic
 P

er
sp

ec
tiv

e 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 C

on
tin

ue
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 p
ro

m
ot

io
n 

of
 

hi
gh

 le
ve

ls
 o

f a
tte

nd
an

ce
 a

t 
sc

ho
ol

 a
nd

 o
f a

ll 
th

e 
co

ns
eq

ue
nc

es
 o

f p
oo

r 
at

te
nd

an
ce

 

 
H

 
 �
 

M
ee

t w
ith

 h
ea

d 
of

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 to

 
de

ve
lo

p 
a 

pl
an

 to
 fu

rth
er

 
ra

is
e 

th
e 

pr
of

ile
 o

f t
he

 
se

rv
ic

e 
 

 By
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

3 
 M

in
ut

es
 o

f m
ee

tin
gs

 
 N

o 
ad

di
tio

na
l r

es
ou

rc
es

 
re

qu
ire

d 

 PK
 

  
M

 
�
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 ta

rg
et

 to
 

pu
bl

is
h 

at
 le

as
t 3

 a
rti

cl
es

 
in

 th
e 

C
iti

ze
n 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 

th
e 

Ac
ce

ss
 a

nd
 

At
te

nd
an

ce
 S

er
vi

ce
 

 

1 
pe

r t
er

m
  f

ro
m

 
Sp

rin
g 

Te
rm

 2
00

3 
Pr

es
s 

re
le

as
es

 
N

o 
ad

di
tio

na
l r

es
ou

rc
es

 
PK

 

 
M

 
�
 

Pr
ov

id
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

ar
ea

 o
n 

th
e 

w
eb

si
te

 
 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
3 

R
el

ev
an

t u
pd

at
ed

 
w

eb
 p

ag
e 

 
N

o 
ad

di
tio

na
l r

es
ou

rc
es

 
PK

 

 
 

�
 

An
on

ym
ou

s 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
l 

pr
os

ec
ut

io
ns

 w
ith

 th
e 

su
pp

or
t o

f C
or

po
ra

te
 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 

 
 

 
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 F

irs
t 

 
 

 
 

 
 

D
ev

el
op

 g
oo

d 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
lin

ks
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

sc
ho

ol
s,

 p
ar

en
ts

, c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 

H
 

�
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
st

ra
te

gy
 fo

r t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

 
w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
 

 � 
Id

en
tif

ie
s 

ke
y 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 
 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
3 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

st
ra

te
gy

 
do

cu
m

en
t 

R
es

ou
rc

in
g 

ne
ed

s 
to

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f s

tra
te

gy
 

PK
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(C
on

t’d
 )

 2
) 

 Page 81



- 2
 -  

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t R

eq
ui

re
d 

Pr
io

rit
y 

K
ey

 A
ct

io
ns

 
Ti

m
es

ca
le

s 
O

ut
pu

ts
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Le
ad

 
 

  
 

� 
Se

ts
 o

ut
 th

e 
m

et
ho

d 
of

 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
fre

qu
en

cy
  

 � 
Se

ts
 o

ut
 th

e 
m

et
ho

d 
of

 
ev

al
ua

tin
g 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 
 � 

Se
ts

 o
ut

 h
ow

 th
e 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 re
ce

iv
ed

 w
ill 

fe
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

de
ci

si
on

 
m

ak
in

g 
pr

oc
es

s 
 � 

Se
ts

 a
 d

ea
dl

in
e 

fo
r t

he
 

fir
st

 ro
un

d 
of

 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
to

 
co

m
m

en
ce

 
 

  
  

  
 

Im
pr

ov
e 

A
cc

es
s 

to
 S

er
vi

ce
 

(i.
e.

 a
cc

es
s 

by
 s

ch
oo

ls
 

go
ve

rn
or

s,
 p

ar
en

ts
, c

hi
ld

re
n,

 
M

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
- 

as
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 to

 th
e 

do
cu

m
en

ts
, 

ac
tiv

ity
 o

r i
ss

ue
 u

nd
er

 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n)

 

H
 

�
 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
ll 

lit
er

at
ur

e 
to

 
en

su
re

 th
at

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
ie

 c
on

ta
ct

 d
et

ai
ls

 
se

rv
ic

es
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 e
tc

 
 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
3 

C
op

ie
s 

of
 re

vi
se

d 
le

af
le

ts
 fi

na
lis

ed
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

 
sc

ho
ol

s 
PK

 

 
H

 
�
 

W
or

k 
w

ith
 re

ce
pt

io
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
t a

ll 
C

ou
nc

il 
bu

ild
in

gs
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

is
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
cu

st
om

er
s 

to
 a

cc
es

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
(li

nk
 w

ith
 

C
us

to
m

er
 F

irs
t P

ro
je

ct
) 

 

Ju
ly

 2
00

3 
M

ee
tin

gs
 h

el
d 

Pr
in

tin
g 

co
st

s 
fo

r 
re

vi
se

d/
ad

di
tio

na
l 

lit
er

at
ur

e 

PK
 

 
H

 
�
 

M
ak

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

on
 

th
e 

w
eb

si
te

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
se

rv
ic

e 
re

la
te

d 
fo

rm
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

ab
ilit

y 
to

 re
tu

rn
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n/

co
m

pl
et

ed
 

fo
rm

s 
el

ec
tro

ni
ca

lly
 

 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
3 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 re

vi
si

on
 o

f 
w

eb
si

te
 

 
PK

/C
W

-D
 

 
 

 
 

(C
on

t’d
 )

 3
) 

Page 82



- 3
 -  

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t R

eq
ui

re
d 

Pr
io

rit
y 

K
ey

 A
ct

io
ns

 
Ti

m
es

ca
le

s 
O

ut
pu

ts
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Le
ad

 
 

Fu
nd

in
g 

th
e 

Fu
tu

re
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 m

ea
su

re
 th

e 
co

st
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

w
ith

 
ot

he
rs

 in
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 a
nd

 p
riv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 

H
 

�
 

W
or

k 
w

ith
 F

in
an

ce
 to

 
en

su
re

 th
at

 fi
na

nc
ia

l 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 
se

rv
ic

e 
co

st
s 

ar
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 a
ll 

m
an

ag
er

s 
 

Ap
ril

 2
00

3 
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

of
 c

os
t 

ce
nt

re
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
N

o 
ad

di
tio

na
l r

es
ou

rc
es

 
PK

/P
P 

 
 

�
 

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 c

os
t 

be
nc

hm
ar

ki
ng

 w
ith

 o
th

er
 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

An
nu

al
ly

 fr
om

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

03
 

R
eg

is
te

r c
os

t 
co

m
pa

ris
on

s 
w

ith
 

se
rv

ic
es

 o
n 

ot
he

r 
LE

As
 

 

 
PK

 

 
M

 
�
 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
ll 

LE
A 

po
lic

ie
s 

an
d 

fu
nd

in
g 

w
hi

ch
 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

at
te

nd
an

ce
 a

t s
ch

oo
l 

Ju
ly

 2
00

3 
R

ev
is

ed
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

as
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

 
PK

/A
H

 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 C
ou

nt
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

R
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 it

 h
as

 th
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 a
nd

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 b

es
t 

pr
ac

tic
e 

as
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 'M
is

si
ng

 
O

ut
' (

Au
di

t C
om

m
is

si
on

 
Pu

bl
ic

at
io

n)
 

H
 

�
 

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 a

 re
vi

ew
 o

f 
th

e 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

an
d 

re
po

rt 
fin

di
ng

s 
an

d 
m

ak
e 

th
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

2 
Im

pl
em

en
t r

ev
ie

w
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 
Bi

d 
to

 D
M

T 
fo

r 
ad

di
tio

na
l r

es
ou

rc
es

 
PK

/A
H

 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 c

le
ar

 s
tra

te
gy

 fo
r t

he
 

se
rv

ic
e 

se
tti

ng
 o

ut
 a

 c
le

ar
 v

is
io

n 
an

d 
ke

y 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 

H
 

�
 

W
or

k 
w

ith
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
te

am
 o

n 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 a
 

st
ra

te
gy

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

 
st

an
da

rd
s 

 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
3 

D
ra

ft 
st

ra
te

gy
 

N
o 

ad
di

tio
na

l r
es

ou
rc

es
 

PK
 

D
ev

el
op

 u
se

r f
oc

us
se

d 
st

an
da

rd
s 

fo
r a

ll 
ar

ea
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 

in
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

ith
 k

ey
 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 
 

H
 

�
 

C
irc

ul
at

e 
to

 k
ey

 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 fo

r 
co

m
m

en
t 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
3 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 c

irc
ul

at
io

n 
 

 

W
or

k 
to

w
ar

ds
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 to
p 

qu
ar

til
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 in

 s
er

vi
ce

 
re

la
te

d 
be

st
 v

al
ue

 in
di

ca
to

rs
 

ta
ki

ng
 a

cc
ou

nt
 o

f t
he

  

H
 

�
 

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 a

n 
an

al
ys

is
 

of
 th

e 
ca

us
es

 o
f n

on
- 

at
te

nd
an

ce
 i.

e.
 

U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 h
ol

id
ay

s,
  

An
nu

al
ly

 fr
om

 A
pr

il 
20

03
 

An
al

ys
is

 R
ep

or
t 

 
PK

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(C
on

t’d
 )

4)
 

Page 83



- 4
 - 

 
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t R

eq
ui

re
d 

Pr
io

rit
y 

K
ey

 A
ct

io
ns

 
Ti

m
es

ca
le

s 
O

ut
pu

ts
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Le
ad

 
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 
m

ad
e 

in
 th

e 
O

FS
TE

D
 re

po
rt,

 
ta

rg
et

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
St

ra
te

gy
 a

nd
 S

er
vi

ce
 S

co
re

ca
rd

 

   H
 

   
   

tru
an

cy
, m

is
-re

po
rti

ng
 

   
  e

tc
 

 �
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
n 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 

fo
r t

ac
kl

in
g 

ea
ch

 a
re

a 
an

d 
se

t t
ar

ge
ts

 fo
r 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

nd
 th

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

re
qu

ire
d 

 

   Ju
ly

 2
00

3 
 

   C
om

pl
et

ed
 A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 

  

 
   

PK
 

 
H

 
�
 

M
on

ito
r a

nd
 re

po
rt 

pr
og

re
ss

 o
n 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
on

 a
 

qu
ar

te
rly

 b
as

is
 

 

Se
pt

em
be

r 2
00

3 
Q

ua
rte

rly
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

re
po

rt 
 

PK
 

D
ev

el
op

 re
le

va
nt

 lo
ca

l i
nd

ic
at

or
s 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill 
m

ea
su

re
 s

er
vi

ce
 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 a

ga
in

st
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 

H
 

�
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 s

et
 o

f l
oc

al
 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ct

or
s 

Ju
ly

 2
00

3 
Li

st
 o

f p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 
N

o 
ad

di
tio

na
l r

es
ou

rc
es

  
PK

 

 
H

 
�
 

C
irc

ul
at

e 
to

 k
ey

 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 fo

r 
co

m
m

en
t 

 

Se
pt

em
be

r 2
00

3 
C

irc
ul

at
io

n 
lis

t 
 

 

 
H

 
�
 

M
on

ito
r p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
  

Te
rm

ly
 fr

om
 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

3 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

re
po

rt 
 

 

D
ev

el
op

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

to
 m

on
ito

r 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 

H
 

�
 

M
ee

t w
ith

 M
em

be
rs

 
as

si
gn

ed
 to

 th
e 

re
vi

ew
 

on
 a

 6
 m

on
th

ly
 b

as
is

 to
 

m
on

ito
r i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
pr

og
re

ss
 

Ju
ne

 2
00

3 
M

in
ut

es
 o

f m
ee

tin
gs

 
N

o 
ad

di
tio

na
l r

es
ou

rc
es

 
PK

/A
H

 

 
H

 
�
 

Pr
ep

ar
e 

a 
re

po
rt 

fo
r t

he
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 M

on
ito

rin
g 

G
ro

up
 o

n 
a 

si
x 

m
on

th
ly

 
ba

si
s 

Ju
ne

 2
00

3 
C

op
y 

of
 re

po
rt 

 
PK

/A
H

 

 
H

 
�
 

En
su

re
 th

at
 a

ny
 re

po
rt 

th
at

 re
la

te
s 

to
 th

is
 a

re
a 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 m

ak
e 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 

on
 th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 

th
is

 p
la

n 

 
C

op
y 

of
 re

po
rts

 
 

PK
/A

H
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
(C

on
t’d

 )
5)

 

Page 84



- 5
    

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t R

eq
ui

re
d 

Pr
io

rit
y 

K
ey

 A
ct

io
ns

 
Ti

m
es

ca
le

s 
O

ut
pu

ts
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Le
ad

 
 

Pe
op

le
 M

at
te

r 
 

 
 

 
 

 
En

su
re

 th
at

 a
ll 

th
e 

st
af

f i
nv

ol
ve

d 
in

 s
er

vi
ce

 d
el

iv
er

y 
ha

ve
 th

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

tra
in

in
g 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
th

em
 to

 c
ar

ry
 o

ut
 th

ei
r d

ut
ie

s 
in

 
an

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
m

an
ne

r  
 

H
 

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 a

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
ud

it 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

3 
An

al
ys

is
 re

po
rt 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 b
ud

ge
t 

PK
/H

R
 

 
M

 
D

ev
el

op
 in

di
vi

du
al

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
fo

r a
ll 

st
af

f 
Ju

ly
 2

00
3 

St
af

f t
ra

in
in

g 
re

co
rd

s 
 

PK
/H

R
 

                        jw
/k

r/d
ra

ft 
20

01
 

bv
 (a

tte
nd

an
ce

)d
ra

ft 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t p
la

n 
N

ov
 2

00
2 

Page 85



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

29 APRIL 2003 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF EDUCATION, ARTS AND LIBRARIES 
 

YOUTH SUPPORT & DEVELOPMENT SERVICE PLAN: 
2003/04 
 

FOR DECISION 

A new Government requirement for Local Authority Youth Services is the submission to 
Government Offices of a Service Plan that has been agreed by the Local Authority. 
 
Summary 
 
This report has been written according to the sets of guidelines laid down by the 
Department for Education and Skills (DfES) in their 'Transforming Youth Work' Reports.  
The plan identifies how the Youth Support & Development Service is responding to local 
authority priorities and sets out its' Strategic Plan for 2003-06 and its' Delivery Plan for 
2003-04. 
 
Recommendation 
 
The Executive is asked to agree the report. 
 
Reason 
 
Local Authority agreement of this plan prior to submission to the Government Office for 
London is a Department for Education and Skills (DfES) requirement in line with its national 
"Transforming Youth Work" agenda. 
 
Contact Officer: 
Brian Lindsay 
 
 
 
Councillor J Alexander 

 
Head of Youth Support & 
Development Service 
 
 
Lead Member 
 

 
Tel: 020 8270 6743 
Fax: 020 8270 6742 
E-mail: brian.lindsay@lbbd.gov.uk 
 
Tel: 020 8924 8239 

 
1. Youth Support & Development Service 
 
 1.1 The Youth Support & Development Service (YSDS) is a part of the Lifelong 

Learning and Inclusion Division in the Department of Education, Arts & 
Libraries.  As a Local Authority service it is linked to the developments within 
the government's "Transforming Youth Work" agenda which has been the 
subject of three key Department for Education & Skills reports that set out 
new specifications and expectations. 

 
2. Service Plan 
 

2.1 In addition to listing background information about the Borough and the  
Service, the Plan identifies the Service's formal links with Borough priorities: 

AGENDA ITEM 7

Page 87



• Identifies how the YSDS links to Council Priorities 
 
• Identifies how the YSDS links to the Education Development Plan 

Priorities 
 

2.2 The Plan sets out targets for the Youth Support & Development Service 
based on its contribution to the Lifelong Learning & Inclusion Division's 
Balanced Scorecard. 

 
2.3 The contribution the Service makes to the Balanced Scorecard can be 

summarised within the following four priorities: 
 
• To provide accessible quality learning opportunities to meet the needs of 

young people 11-19 
 
• To develop effective working partnerships with the voluntary sector and 

other council services and departments 
 
• To make use of all available resources 
 
• To ensure high quality service delivery 

 
2.4 These were established following the Member led Review of the Service in 

2000 and are still relevant to the main aim of re-engaging young people 
within positive educational based programmes. 

 
2.5 One of the main aspects of the government's Transforming Youth Work 

programme is the adoption by Local Authority Youth Services of the National 
Youth Agency Standards of Youth Work Provision.  These Standards, 
including a defined curriculum framework have been included in the Plan as 
YSDS targets within the specified timescale. 

 
3. Summary 
 

3.1 The full YSDS Service Plan attached meets all of the criteria set out in the 
government's "Transforming Youth Work" agenda.  It endorses the National 
Youth Agency Standards and clearly lays down the Service's contribution to 
Council, DEAL and Divisional priorities. 

 
 
 
 
Background Papers 
DfES "Transforming Youth Work" Reports: 
• Developing Youth Work for Young People 
• Planning for the Local Authority Youth Service: 2003/04 Guidance 
• Resourcing Excellent youth Services 
 
 
 

Page 88



       
     

Yo
ut

h 
Su

pp
or

t &
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

er
vi

ce
 

    
Se

rv
ic

e 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 2
00

3-
20

06
 

  
Se

rv
ic

e 
D

el
iv

er
y 

Pl
an

 2
00

3-
20

04
 

       

Page 89



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
2

  C
on

te
nt

s 
 

C
on

te
xt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
   

3 
Lo

nd
on

 B
or

ou
gh

 o
f B

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 D

ag
en

ha
m

 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
   

4 
Yo

ut
h 

Po
pu

la
tio

n 
 

 
 

 
 

   
7 

Ed
uc

at
io

na
l D

at
a 

 
 

 
 

 
   

8 
Yo

ut
h 

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

 
 

 
 

 
 1

0 
U

ne
m

pl
oy

m
en

t R
at

es
 

 
 

 
 

 1
2 

Yo
ut

h 
Su

pp
or

t &
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

er
vi

ce
 

LE
A 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  1
3 

LE
A 

Li
nk

ag
es

 
 

 
 

 
 

 1
6 

St
ru

ct
ur

e 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 1

7 
Pr

io
rit

ie
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 1
8 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 1
9 

Pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 2
0 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
 2

00
3-

20
06

  
 

 
 

 2
2 

D
el

iv
er

y 
Pl

an
 2

00
3-

20
04

  
 

 
 

 2
3 

Pr
io

rit
ie

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 2

5 
Ta

rg
et

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 2

6 
In

vo
lv

in
g 

Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le

 
 

 
 

 
 2

7 
Eq

ua
lit

y 
& 

D
iv

er
si

ty
  

 
 

 
 

 2
8 

Q
ua

lit
y 

& 
St

af
f D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

 
 

 
 2

9 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

& 
Ev

al
ua

tio
n 

 
 

 
 

 3
0 

C
on

ne
xi

on
s 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 3
1 

H
ow

 it
 w

ill 
Ac

hi
ev

e 
O

ut
co

m
es

 
 

 
 

 3
2 

Pr
io

rit
ie

s 
& 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

 
 

 3
3 

St
ru

ct
ur

e 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 3

4 
LD

P 
Pr

io
rit

ie
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 3

5 
G

lo
ss

ar
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 3
6 

 

Page 90



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
3

 C
on

te
xt

 
 Th

is
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 (2
00

3-
20

06
) a

nd
 S

er
vi

ce
 D

el
iv

er
y 

Pl
an

 (2
00

3-
20

04
) h

as
 b

ee
n 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
as

 a
 re

su
lt 

of
 th

e 
Tr

an
sf

or
m

in
g 

Yo
ut

h 
W

or
k 

do
cu

m
en

ts
 - 

D
ev

el
op

in
g 

Yo
ut

h 
W

or
k 

fo
r Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 fo
r t

he
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
Yo

ut
h 

Se
rv

ic
e:

 2
00

3-
04

 
G

ui
da

nc
e.

  I
t t

ak
es

 in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 th
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 a
nd

 e
xp

ec
ta

tio
ns

 la
id

 o
ut

 in
 th

e 
R

es
ou

rc
in

g 
Ex

ce
lle

nt
 Y

ou
th

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
do

cu
m

en
t i

n 
re

la
tio

n 
to

 s
uf

fic
ie

nc
y 

an
d 

bu
ild

s 
on

 th
e 

pr
og

re
ss

 th
at

 th
e 

Yo
ut

h 
Su

pp
or

t &
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

er
vi

ce
 (Y

SD
S)

 h
as

 m
ad

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

m
aj

or
 re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 re
st

ru
ct

ur
in

g 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 in
 2

00
0.

 
 Th

e 
Yo

ut
h 

Su
pp

or
t &

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
er

vi
ce

 a
lre

ad
y 

ha
d 

a 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Ac

tio
n 

Pl
an

 in
 p

la
ce

, m
uc

h 
of

 w
hi

ch
 is

 re
le

va
nt

 to
 th

e 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
 la

id
 o

ut
 in

 th
e 

af
or

em
en

tio
ne

d 
do

cu
m

en
ts

.  
Th

is
 h

as
 c

re
at

ed
 a

 p
os

iti
on

 w
he

re
 th

e 
lin

k 
w

ith
 a

 n
at

io
na

l C
om

m
on

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
is

 a
 n

at
ur

al
 e

xt
en

si
on

 o
f o

ng
oi

ng
, l

oc
al

 Y
SD

S 
pr

ac
tic

e.
  T

he
re

 a
re

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s,

 b
ut

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
m

an
y 

si
m

ila
rit

ie
s.

 
 Th

e 
re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 th

en
 Y

ou
th

 S
er

vi
ce

 c
re

at
ed

 a
 p

os
iti

on
 w

he
re

 th
e 

ne
w

 s
er

vi
ce

, r
en

am
ed

 Y
ou

th
 S

up
po

rt 
& 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
er

vi
ce

, 
en

ga
ge

d 
m

or
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 L

EA
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

  A
dd

iti
on

al
ly

 it
 e

m
ph

as
is

ed
 th

at
 a

n 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l b
as

e 
w

as
 c

rit
ic

al
 fo

r a
ll 

YS
D

S 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 a

nd
 p

ro
gr

am
m

es
. 

 Th
e 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
la

id
 d

ow
n 

at
 th

at
 ti

m
e,

 a
nd

 th
e 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
na

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 th

at
 w

er
e 

pu
t i

n 
pl

ac
e,

 e
na

bl
ed

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 

be
 in

 a
 p

os
iti

on
 to

 s
ea

m
le

ss
ly

 e
nd

or
se

 th
e 

ai
m

s 
an

d 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 o
f t

he
 C

on
ne

xi
on

s 
Se

rv
ic

e 
w

hi
ch

 w
er

e 
la

un
ch

ed
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ye
ar

. 
 W

hi
ls

t i
t w

ou
ld

 b
e 

tru
e 

to
 s

ug
ge

st
 th

at
 th

e 
Yo

ut
h 

Su
pp

or
t &

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
er

vi
ce

 in
 B

ar
ki

ng
 &

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 h

as
 e

nd
or

se
d 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

a 
m

od
er

ni
se

d 
ag

en
da

, i
t w

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
be

 tr
ue

 to
 s

ta
te

 th
at

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
a 

nu
m

be
r o

f c
ha

lle
ng

es
 to

 b
e 

m
et

 to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

th
e 

ex
er

ci
se

. 
 

Page 91



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
4

Th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f B
ar

ki
ng

 &
 D

ag
en

ha
m

 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 
 Ba

rk
in

g 
an

d 
D

ag
en

ha
m

 is
 o

ne
 o

f t
he

 s
m

al
le

r L
on

do
n 

Bo
ro

ug
hs

 in
 te

rm
s 

of
 a

re
a 

an
d 

po
pu

la
tio

n.
 It

 is
 s

itu
at

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ea

st
er

n 
ou

ts
ki

rts
 o

f G
re

at
er

 L
on

do
n 

an
d 

co
ve

rs
 3

,6
80

 h
ec

ta
re

s.
 It

 li
es

 o
n 

th
e 

no
rth

 b
an

k 
of

 th
e 

Th
am

es
 a

nd
 h

as
 e

xc
el

le
nt

 tr
an

sp
or

t l
in

ks
 

in
to

 c
en

tra
l L

on
do

n 
vi

a 
th

e 
ro

ad
, r

ai
l a

nd
 u

nd
er

gr
ou

nd
 n

et
w

or
ks

. T
he

 b
or

ou
gh

 is
 a

ls
o 

in
 c

lo
se

 p
ro

xi
m

ity
 to

 th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 C

ity
 A

irp
or

t 
an

d 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 c

ha
nn

el
 tu

nn
el

 R
ai

l L
in

k.
 

 Po
pu

la
tio

n 
 Th

e 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

is
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
16

5,
35

9 
an

d 
is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 g
ro

w
 s

te
ad

ily
 o

ve
r t

he
 n

ex
t 1

0 
- 1

5 
ye

ar
s.

 T
hi

s 
in

 p
ar

t c
an

 b
e 

at
tri

bu
te

d 
to

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h’

s 
ex

te
ns

iv
e 

ne
w

 h
ou

se
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

es
 B

ar
ki

ng
 R

ea
ch

. I
n 

19
94

 th
er

e 
w

as
 a

 b
ou

nd
ar

y 
ch

an
ge

 
w

hi
ch

 re
su

lte
d 

in
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 o

f a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

10
,0

00
 p

eo
pl

e 
in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h.

  
 Th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f c

hi
ld

re
n 

un
de

r 1
5 

ha
s 

ris
en

 s
in

ce
 th

e 
19

91
 c

en
su

s 
an

d 
is

 s
et

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 w

ith
 th

e 
pr

og
re

ss
 in

 h
ou

se
 b

ui
ld

in
g.

 
Ac

co
rd

in
g 

to
 G

LA
 p

ro
je

ct
io

ns
, t

he
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
ag

ed
 0

-1
5 

in
 2

00
2 

m
ak

e 
up

 2
3.

2 
pe

r c
en

t o
f t

he
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
(3

8,
46

6 
ch

ild
re

n)
. T

hi
s 

is
 2

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 p
oi

nt
s 

m
or

e 
th

an
 in

 1
99

1 
an

d 
re

pr
es

en
ts

 a
n 

in
cr

ea
se

 o
f 7

,5
38

 c
hi

ld
re

n.
 F

ig
ur

es
 fo

r 2
00

6 
sh

ow
 a

 fu
rth

er
 in

cr
ea

se
. T

he
 

nu
m

be
rs

 o
f 1

5 
- 1

9 
ye

ar
 o

ld
s 

ar
e 

al
so

 s
et

 to
 ri

se
. F

ig
ur

es
 s

in
ce

 1
99

1 
ha

ve
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

fro
m

 8
,6

70
 in

 1
99

1 
to

 1
0,

83
4 

in
 2

00
2 

an
d 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

G
LA

 fo
re

ca
st

 th
is

 tr
en

d 
is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 c
on

tin
ue

. W
ith

ou
t t

he
 e

ffe
ct

s 
of

 th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 h

ou
se

 b
ui

ld
in

g,
 b

irt
h 

ra
te

s 
ar

e 
sh

ow
in

g 
an

 o
ve

ra
ll 

de
cl

in
e.

 H
ow

ev
er

 th
e 

ne
t e

ffe
ct

 is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 s

ho
w

 a
n 

in
cr

ea
se

. 
 Th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h’
s 

re
si

de
nt

s 
ar

e 
pr

ed
om

in
an

tly
 w

or
ki

ng
 c

la
ss

.  
U

nd
er

 1
4%

 o
f c

hi
ld

re
n 

ar
e 

in
 h

ig
h 

so
ci

al
 c

la
ss

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s,

 w
hi

ch
 is

 w
el

l 
be

lo
w

 th
e 

na
tio

na
l a

ve
ra

ge
 o

f 3
1%

 a
nd

 b
el

ow
 th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
fo

r t
ho

se
 b

or
ou

gh
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 O
fs

te
d 

as
 s

ta
tis

tic
al

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
s 

of
 1

9%
. 

O
nl

y 
10

%
 o

f c
hi

ld
re

n 
ar

e 
in

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

w
he

re
 th

e 
he

ad
 h

as
 a

 h
ig

he
r e

du
ca

tio
na

l q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

n.
 T

hi
s 

is
 b

y 
fa

r t
he

 lo
w

es
t p

ro
po

rti
on

 
in

 L
on

do
n 

an
d 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 b
el

ow
 n

at
io

na
l n

or
m

s 
of

 1
3.

5%
 a

nd
 b

el
ow

 th
at

 fo
r o

ur
 s

ta
tis

tic
al

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
s 

at
 8

%
. D

at
a 

is
 d

er
iv

ed
 fr

om
 

th
e 

19
91

 C
en

su
s 

an
d 

w
ill 

be
 u

pd
at

ed
 w

he
n 

th
e 

C
en

su
s 

20
01

 d
at

a 
is

 a
va

ila
bl

e.
 

 Et
hn

ic
 M

ix
 

 Ba
rk

in
g 

an
d 

D
ag

en
ha

m
 h

as
 o

ne
 o

f t
he

 s
m

al
le

st
 e

th
ni

c 
gr

ou
p 

po
pu

la
tio

ns
 in

 L
on

do
n.

 A
t t

he
 1

99
1 

ce
ns

us
 6

.8
%

 o
f t

he
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
w

er
e 

fro
m

 e
th

ni
c 

m
in

or
ity

 g
ro

up
s,

 a
lth

ou
gh

 th
is

 h
as

 s
in

ce
 g

ro
w

n.
 

 Th
er

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

 re
ce

nt
 in

flu
x 

of
 a

bo
ut

 1
,0

00
 re

fu
ge

e 
an

d 
as

yl
um

 s
ee

ke
rs

 fr
om

 K
os

ov
o,

 m
an

y 
of

 w
ho

m
 a

re
 s

in
gl

e 
m

al
es

. B
et

w
ee

n 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

01
 a

nd
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

00
2 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f a
sy

lu
m

/re
fu

ge
e 

ch
ild

re
n 

on
 ro

ll 
sc

ho
ol

s 
in

 B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 h

as
 a

lm
os

t 
do

ub
le

d 
(fr

om
 2

94
 in

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
00

1 
to

 5
88

 in
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

00
2)

. T
he

re
 a

re
 m

an
y 

la
ng

ua
ge

s 
sp

ok
en

 in
 B

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 D

ag
en

ha
m

 a
nd

 
th

es
e 

in
cl

ud
e:

 A
ra

bi
c,

 B
en

ga
li,

 C
an

to
ne

se
, F

re
nc

h,
 G

er
m

an
, G

re
ek

, G
uj

er
at

i, 
Ita

lia
n,

 P
un

ja
bi

, S
er

bo
-C

ro
at

, S
w

ah
ili,

 S
om

al
i, 

Tu
rk

is
h,

 U
rd

u 
an

d 
Vi

et
na

m
es

e 
an

d 
m

or
e 

re
ce

nt
ly

 A
lb

an
ia

n.
 

Page 92



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
5

 H
ou

si
ng

 
 Th

er
e 

ar
e 

ov
er

 6
9,

00
0 

ho
m

es
 in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h,

 o
f w

hi
ch

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l o

w
ns

 2
6,

38
0 

(w
ith

 a
ro

un
d 

14
,5

00
 p

ro
pe

rti
es

 h
av

in
g 

be
en

 s
ol

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
R

ig
ht

 to
 B

uy
 s

ch
em

e)
. T

he
re

 h
av

e 
be

en
 o

ve
r 1

,5
50

 h
om

es
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

H
ou

si
ng

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
ns

’ n
ew

 b
ui

ld
 a

nd
 

pu
rc

ha
se

 o
f s

tre
et

 p
ro

pe
rty

 s
ch

em
es

. T
he

 b
or

ou
gh

 h
as

 5
5 

to
w

er
 b

lo
ck

s,
 m

ai
nl

y 
co

nc
en

tra
te

d 
in

 th
e 

Ba
rk

in
g 

ar
ea

. M
aj

or
 

re
fu

rb
is

hm
en

t o
f t

he
 c

ou
nc

il’s
 s

to
ck

 is
 ta

ki
ng

 p
la

ce
 o

ve
r a

n 
8-

ye
ar

 p
er

io
d 

vi
a 

its
 S

ha
pe

 U
p 

fo
r H

om
es

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e.

 T
he

 b
or

ou
gh

 h
as

 
a 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

fo
r h

ou
si

ng
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

ve
r t

he
 n

ex
t 3

 y
ea

rs
. T

he
 m

ai
n 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t i

s 
on

 B
ar

ki
ng

 R
ea

ch
 w

he
re

 a
 to

ta
l o

f b
et

w
ee

n 
10

,0
00

 –
 1

2,
00

0 
ho

m
es

 a
re

 p
la

nn
ed

. O
th

er
 m

aj
or

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 in

cl
ud

e 
So

ut
h 

D
ag

en
ha

m
 w

hi
ch

 c
ou

ld
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

n 
ad

di
tio

na
l 5

,0
00

 
ne

w
 h

om
es

, B
ar

ki
ng

 T
ow

n 
C

en
tre

 w
ith

 th
e 

po
ss

ib
ilit

y 
of

 4
,0

00
 n

ew
 h

om
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t i

nt
en

de
d 

fo
r L

ym
in

gt
on

 F
ie

ld
s 

w
hi

ch
 is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 s
up

po
rt 

ov
er

 5
00

 h
om

es
. T

he
re

 a
re

 a
ls

o 
pr

op
os

al
s 

fo
r t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f t
he

 U
EL

 s
ite

 o
n 

Lo
ng

br
id

ge
 R

oa
d.

 
As

 m
or

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
be

co
m

es
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

th
e 

LE
A 

w
ill 

be
 b

et
te

r a
bl

e 
to

 a
ss

es
s 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
sc

ho
ol

 p
la

ce
s.

 
 Lo

ca
l E

co
no

m
y 

an
d 

U
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

 Al
on

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
na

tio
na

l a
ve

ra
ge

, u
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t i

n 
th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
ha

s 
de

cl
in

ed
 in

 re
ce

nt
 y

ea
rs

, f
ro

m
 1

4.
2%

 in
 1

99
3 

to
 5

.2
%

 in
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
00

 a
nd

 to
 4

.5
%

 in
 J

ul
y 

20
02

 (O
N

S 
C

la
im

an
t C

ou
nt

). 
N

ew
 c

om
pa

ni
es

 a
re

 a
ttr

ac
te

d 
to

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

du
e 

to
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h’
s 

pr
ox

im
ity

 to
 L

on
do

n 
an

d 
go

od
 tr

an
sp

or
t l

in
ks

. T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

al
so

 b
ee

n 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 in
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f m
aj

or
 e

co
no

m
ic

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 a
nd

 is
 w

or
ki

ng
 to

w
ar

ds
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 in
iti

at
iv

es
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

bo
th

 th
e 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
an

d 
ph

ys
ic

al
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t o
f 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h.

 T
hi

s 
ha

s 
br

ou
gh

t a
 ra

ng
e 

of
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

in
 th

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
fie

ld
 o

ffe
rin

g 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t t
o 

a 
hi

gh
 n

um
be

r o
f p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

sk
ills

. 
 Th

er
e 

ar
e 

se
ve

ra
l m

aj
or

 m
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g 
pl

an
ts

 lo
ca

te
d 

in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

Fo
rd

 M
ot

or
 C

om
pa

ny
, W

el
be

ck
 S

te
el

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
C

en
tre

 a
nd

 th
e 

in
te

rn
at

io
na

l p
ha

rm
ac

eu
tic

al
 c

om
pa

ny
, A

ve
nt

is
 P

ha
rm

a 
(fo

rm
er

ly
 k

no
w

n 
as

 R
ho

ne
-P

ou
le

nc
 R

or
er

) w
hi

ch
 e

m
pl

oy
s 

65
,0

00
 w

or
ld

w
id

e.
 A

lth
ou

gh
 th

e 
ra

di
ca

l r
eo

rg
an

is
at

io
n 

of
 F

or
d 

at
 th

e 
D

ag
en

ha
m

 P
la

nt
 m

ea
ns

 th
at

 c
ar

s 
ar

e 
no

 lo
ng

er
 b

ei
ng

 
m

an
uf

ac
tu

re
d,

 F
or

d 
ha

ve
 m

ad
e 

a 
m

ul
ti-

m
illi

on
 p

ou
nd

 in
ve

st
m

en
t i

n 
di

es
el

 e
ng

in
e 

en
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

m
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g 
ov

er
 fi

ve
 y

ea
rs

 
an

d 
D

ag
en

ha
m

 re
m

ai
ns

 a
s 

Lo
nd

on
’s

 la
rg

es
t i

nd
us

tri
al

 c
en

tre
. 

 Ba
rk

in
g 

an
d 

D
ag

en
ha

m
 is

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
in

g 
gr

ow
th

 in
 th

e 
re

ta
il,

 le
is

ur
e 

an
d 

ca
re

 s
ec

to
rs

. T
he

 c
ar

e 
se

ct
or

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
fo

r 1
0 

pe
r c

en
t o

f 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t i
n 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

an
d 

a 
fu

rth
er

 5
 p

er
 c

en
t g

ro
w

th
 is

 fo
re

ca
st

 in
 2

00
2.

  
 In

di
ce

s 
of

 D
ep

riv
at

io
n 

 Ba
rk

in
g 

an
d 

D
ag

en
ha

m
 ra

nk
s 

am
on

gs
t t

he
 m

os
t d

ep
riv

ed
 a

re
as

 in
 E

ng
la

nd
. I

t i
s 

th
e 

24
th
 m

os
t d

ep
riv

ed
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

of
 th

e 
35

4 
di

st
ric

ts
 in

 E
ng

la
nd

 a
cc

or
di

ng
 to

 th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t f

or
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

t, 
Tr

an
sp

or
t a

nd
 th

e 
R

eg
io

ns
 in

de
x 

of
 lo

ca
l c

on
di

tio
ns

 to
 m

ea
su

re
 

le
ve

ls
 o

f d
ep

riv
at

io
n 

20
00

. S
in

ce
 th

e 
de

m
og

ra
ph

ic
 p

ro
fil

e 
of

 e
ac

h 
of

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h’

s 
w

ar
ds

 is
 s

tri
ki

ng
ly

 s
im

ila
r, 

th
e 

ra
nk

in
gs

 o
f 

in
di

vi
du

al
 w

ar
ds

 a
re

 w
ith

in
 a

 re
la

tiv
el

y 
na

rro
w

 ra
ng

e.
 

Page 93



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
6

 T
he

re
 a

re
 h

ow
ev

er
, w

ar
ds

 th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
as

 h
av

in
g 

a 
hi

gh
er

 ra
tin

g 
su

ch
 a

s 
Lo

ng
br

id
ge

 a
nd

 C
ha

dw
el

l H
ea

th
 a

nd
 th

os
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
as

 h
av

in
g 

th
e 

w
or

st
 s

uc
h 

as
 th

e 
ol

d 
Fa

ns
ha

w
e 

w
ar

d 
(n

ow
 p

ar
t o

f P
ar

sl
oe

s)
 a

nd
 G

as
co

ig
ne

. G
en

er
al

ly
 th

os
e 

w
ar

ds
 w

ith
 

th
e 

w
or

st
 ra

nk
in

g 
ar

e 
de

pr
iv

ed
 in

 te
rm

s 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s,
 h

ea
lth

, u
ns

at
is

fa
ct

or
y 

ho
us

in
g,

 lo
w

 in
co

m
e,

 la
ck

 o
f 

qu
al

ifi
ca

tio
ns

, c
hi

ld
 p

ov
er

ty
 a

nd
 p

oo
r g

eo
gr

ap
hi

ca
l a

cc
es

s 
to

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
 H

ig
he

r r
an

ki
ng

 w
ar

ds
 s

til
l e

xh
ib

it 
a 

hi
gh

 le
ve

l o
f s

oc
ia

l n
ee

d 
w

ith
 le

ve
ls

 o
f d

ep
riv

at
io

n 
w

el
l a

bo
ve

 th
e 

En
gl

an
d 

av
er

ag
e.

 D
at

a 
fo

r t
he

 n
ew

 w
ar

d 
bo

un
da

rie
s 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 u
na

va
ila

bl
e,

 th
e 

an
al

ys
is

 
ab

ov
e 

is
 th

er
ef

or
e 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

ol
d 

w
ar

d 
bo

un
da

rie
s.

 
    

Page 94



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
7

 Yo
ut

h 
Po

pu
la

tio
n 

 
(B

ar
ki

ng
 &

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 2

00
1 

C
en

su
s 

Ex
tr

ac
t) 

    
A

ge
 

 
To

ta
l 

 
 

M
al

e 
 

 
Fe

m
al

e 
11

 
 

22
59

 
 

 
12

05
 

 
 

10
54

 
12

 
 

21
71

 
 

 
11

83
 

 
 

  9
88

 
13

 
 

21
72

 
 

 
11

54
 

 
 

10
18

 
14

 
 

20
55

 
 

 
11

20
 

 
 

  9
35

 
15

 
 

22
84

 
 

 
11

19
 

 
 

11
65

 
16

 
 

23
47

 
 

 
11

45
 

 
 

12
02

 
17

 
 

20
91

 
 

 
10

31
 

 
 

10
60

 
18

 
 

21
63

 
 

 
10

85
 

 
 

10
78

 
19

 
 

19
85

 
 

 
  9

82
 

 
 

10
03

 
20

 
 

21
87

 
 

 
10

27
 

 
 

11
60

 
21

 
 

21
95

 
 

 
10

27
 

 
 

11
68

 
22

 
 

19
73

 
 

 
  9

12
 

 
 

10
61

 
23

 
 

20
90

 
 

 
  9

53
 

 
 

11
37

 
24

 
 

21
25

 
 

 
  9

69
 

 
 

11
56

 
25

 
 

21
76

 
 

 
10

03
 

 
 

11
73

 
 11

-2
5 

To
ta

l 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  3

22
73

  
   

   
   

15
91

5 
 

   
   

   
16

35
8 

13
-1

9 
To

ta
l 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  1
50

97
  

 
76

36
 

 
 

74
61

 
  

Page 95



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
8

 Ed
uc

at
io

na
l D

at
a 

 Pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n 
&

 a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
 G

C
SE

 
 

G
C

SE
 - 

%
 p

up
ils

 g
ai

ni
ng

 5
 o

r m
or

e 
gr

ad
es

 A
*-

C

20
28

28
27

31
32

34
38

38
42

47
48

36
39

39
40

45
46

48
49

50
51

0102030405060

19
93

19
94

19
95

19
96

19
97

19
98

19
99

20
00

20
01

20
02

20
03

20
04

Ba
rk

in
g 

an
d 

D
ag

en
ha

m
N

at
io

na
l

Ta
rg

et
s

 
 

G
C

SE
 - 

%
 p

up
ils

 g
ai

ni
ng

 5
 o

r m
or

e 
gr

ad
es

 A
*-

G

80
82

80
81

85
85

89
92

92
89

94
95

85
86

86
86

86
88

88
89

89
89

506070809010
0

19
93

19
94

19
95

19
96

19
97

19
98

19
99

20
00

20
01

20
02

20
03

20
04

Ba
rk

in
g 

an
d 

D
ag

en
ha

m
N

at
io

na
l

Ta
rg

et
s

 
 

 

Page 96



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
9

  

G
C

SE
 - 

%
 p

up
ils

 g
ai

ni
ng

 1
 o

r m
or

e 
gr

ad
es

 A
*-

G

91
90

88
89

91
93

95
97

96
93

98
99

85
86

92
92

92
93

94
94

95
95

506070809010
0

19
93

19
94

19
95

19
96

19
97

19
98

19
99

20
00

20
01

20
02

20
03

20
04

Ba
rk

in
g 

an
d 

D
ag

en
ha

m
N

at
io

na
l

Ta
rg

et
s

 
  Ed

uc
at

io
n 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
Pr

io
rit

ie
s 

 1.
 P

ro
m

ot
in

g 
so

ci
al

 in
cl

us
io

n 

2.
 R

ai
si

ng
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 in
 li

te
ra

cy
 a

t a
ll 

le
ve

ls
 o

f a
tta

in
m

en
t 

3.
 R

ai
si

ng
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 in
 n

um
er

ac
y 

at
 a

ll 
le

ve
ls

 o
f a

tta
in

m
en

t 

4.
 R

ai
si

ng
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 fo
r p

rim
ar

y 
ch

ild
re

n 
(F

ou
nd

at
io

n 
St

ag
e 

an
d 

Ke
y 

St
ag

es
 1

 a
nd

 2
) 

5.
 K

ey
 S

ta
ge

 3
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 

6.
 R

ai
si

ng
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
t G

C
SE

 a
nd

 a
bo

ve
 

7.
 A

tta
in

m
en

t t
hr

ou
gh

 s
up

po
rt 

fo
r s

ch
oo

l m
an

ag
em

en
t 

8.
 I

m
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

te
ac

hi
ng

 a
nd

 u
se

 o
f I

C
T 

in
 s

ch
oo

ls
 

 

Page 97



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
10

 

 Yo
ut

h 
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
 A

 lo
ok

 b
eh

in
d 

th
e 

ra
w

 fi
gu

re
s 

of
 B

ar
ki

ng
 &

 D
ag

en
ha

m
's

 la
bo

ur
 m

ar
ke

t 2
00

2.
 

 As
 a

 g
en

er
al

 o
ve

rv
ie

w
 in

 k
ey

 s
ki

ll 
oc

cu
pa

tio
na

l a
re

as
 c

on
si

st
in

g 
of

 re
ta

il,
 e

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 c

le
ric

al
/a

dm
in

, w
ar

eh
ou

se
 a

nd
 p

ra
ct

ic
al

 
ba

se
d 

w
or

k,
 li

nk
ed

 w
ith

 q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 s

ki
lls

 re
la

te
d 

to
 y

ou
th

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t i
n 

a 
nu

m
be

r o
f o

cc
up

at
io

na
l a

re
as

, o
f w

hi
ch

 th
e 

fin
di

ng
s 

an
d 

fig
ur

es
 a

re
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s.
 

 A 
to

ta
l o

f 4
66

 1
6 

to
 1

9 
ye

ar
s 

ol
ds

 w
er

e 
re

gi
st

er
ed

 a
t t

he
 C

on
ne

xi
on

s 
C

en
tre

 in
 M

on
te

ag
le

 C
ou

rt 
as

 a
ct

iv
el

y 
se

ek
in

g 
w

or
k 

at
 th

e 
Ap

ril
 2

00
2 

re
tu

rn
.  

Al
th

ou
gh

 th
is

 p
ea

ks
 a

nd
 tr

ou
gh

s 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

ye
ar

 th
e 

st
at

is
tic

al
 re

tu
rn

 fo
r D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
2 

sh
ow

ed
 th

is
 fi

gu
re

 to
 

be
 5

50
, i

t w
as

 fo
un

d 
th

at
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
40

%
 o

f y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

er
e 

lo
ok

in
g 

fo
r f

ul
l-t

im
e 

R
et

ai
l a

nd
 C

us
to

m
er

 S
er

vi
ce

 re
la

te
d 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

w
ith

 a
no

th
er

 4
0%

 lo
ok

in
g 

fo
r C

le
ric

al
/A

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s.

  T
he

 re
m

ai
nd

er
 w

as
 m

ad
e 

up
 b

y 
a 

pr
ac

tic
al

 
em

ph
as

is
 w

ith
 a

 fi
rs

t c
ho

ic
e 

in
te

re
st

 o
f a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
10

%
 in

to
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
an

d 
10

%
 W

ar
eh

ou
si

ng
.  

Em
pl

oy
er

 re
cr

ui
tm

en
t f

ro
m

 th
is

 
ag

e 
gr

ou
p 

ha
s 

be
co

m
e 

m
or

e 
di

ffi
cu

lt 
to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 a

nd
 th

e 
le

ve
l o

f v
ac

an
cy

 re
qu

ire
m

en
t o

fte
n 

ou
ts

tri
ps

 a
va

ila
bi

lit
y.

  T
he

re
 w

ill 
be

 
po

ck
et

s 
of

 in
te

re
st

 fo
r a

re
as

 s
uc

h 
as

 C
ar

e 
an

d 
H

os
pi

ta
lit

y 
th

ou
gh

 g
en

er
al

ly
 re

cr
ui

te
d 

to
 a

fte
r a

ge
 1

8.
  T

he
 E

m
pl

oy
er

 a
nd

 v
ac

an
cy

 
te

am
s 

sp
en

d 
a 

co
ns

id
er

ab
le

 ti
m

e 
pr

om
ot

in
g 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 th
ou

gh
 it

 is
 e

vi
de

nt
 th

at
 th

e 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 re

gi
st

er
ed

 o
fte

n 
do

 n
ot

 m
at

ch
 

th
e 

qu
al

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 p
ro

fil
e 

th
at

 th
e 

Em
pl

oy
er

 b
el

ie
ve

s 
is

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 c
ar

ry
 o

ut
 th

e 
ta

sk
s.

  M
uc

h 
em

ph
as

is
 th

er
ef

or
e 

ha
s 

to
 b

e 
pl

ac
ed

 
on

 b
rin

gi
ng

 re
al

is
m

 to
 th

e 
jo

b 
de

sc
rip

tio
n 

so
 th

at
 y

ou
ng

 a
pp

lic
an

ts
 c

an
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

.  
 En

gi
ne

er
in

g:
 

 In
 e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
cr

ite
ria

 re
qu

es
te

d 
by

 c
om

pa
ni

es
 w

er
e 

D
ou

bl
e 

Sc
ie

nc
e,

 M
at

hs
 a

nd
 E

ng
lis

h 
w

ith
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 
sk

ills
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

ly
 b

ei
ng

 s
ou

gh
t. 

 T
he

 p
os

iti
on

 o
f b

as
ic

 m
ot

or
 m

ec
ha

ni
c 

w
ou

ld
 a

pp
ea

r t
o 

be
 ta

ki
ng

 a
 d

ec
lin

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
ad

ve
nt

 o
f m

or
e 

so
ph

is
tic

at
ed

 m
ot

or
 v

eh
ic

le
s.

  T
hi

s 
ha

s 
pr

om
pt

ed
 th

e 
in

du
st

ry
 to

 lo
ok

 fo
r a

ca
de

m
ic

 q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

ns
 a

s 
a 

st
ar

tin
g 

po
in

t a
nd

 h
as

 
th

er
ef

or
e 

cr
ea

te
d 

a 
de

cl
in

e 
in

 e
m

pl
oy

ab
ilit

y 
fo

r t
ra

in
in

g 
w

ith
in

 th
is

 h
ig

hl
y 

te
ch

ni
ca

l s
er

vi
ce

. 
 R

et
ai

lin
g:

 
 It 

w
as

 fo
un

d 
th

at
 c

om
pa

ni
es

 g
en

er
al

ly
 w

er
e 

no
t r

eq
ui

rin
g 

hi
gh

 g
ra

de
 p

as
se

s 
bu

t s
pe

ci
fie

d 
G

C
SE

s 
at

 a
 b

as
ic

 le
ve

l i
n 

m
ai

nl
y 

M
at

hs
 &

 
En

gl
is

h.
  T

he
y 

al
so

 re
qu

es
te

d 
go

od
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
sk

ills
 w

ith
 a

 p
le

as
an

t a
nd

 fr
ie

nd
ly

 m
an

ne
r, 

en
th

us
ia

sm
 a

nd
 th

e 
ab

ilit
y 

to
 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
 th

e 
pr

od
uc

ts
 b

ei
ng

 s
ol

d.
 

 As
 a

n 
ov

er
vi

ew
 it

 n
ee

ds
 to

 b
e 

no
te

d 
th

at
 m

os
t c

om
pa

ni
es

 w
er

e 
of

fe
rin

g 
pa

rt-
tim

e 
ho

ur
s 

lin
ke

d 
to

 w
ee

ke
nd

s.
  T

hi
s 

re
su

lte
d 

in
 fe

w
er

 
jo

bs
 a

s 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 w

er
e 

lo
ok

in
g 

fo
r f

ul
l-t

im
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t w

ith
in

 th
is

 in
du

st
ry

.  
It 

ca
n 

be
 d

iff
ic

ul
t t

o 
ga

in
 a

 p
os

iti
on

 u
nd

er
 th

es
e 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s 
de

pe
nd

in
g 

up
on

 in
di

vi
du

al
 c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s 

an
d 

le
ve

l o
f s

up
po

rt.
  M

an
ag

em
en

t p
os

iti
on

s 
w

er
e 

th
e 

on
ly

 a
re

as
 fo

r f
ul

l-
tim

e 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t a
nd

 th
us

 re
qu

ire
d 

th
e 

m
or

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
ed

 o
r w

ith
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

ns
. 

 

Page 98



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
11

 

C
le

ric
al

/O
ffi

ce
 A

dm
in

: 
 It 

w
as

 fo
un

d 
th

at
 th

is
 in

du
st

ry
 re

qu
ire

m
en

t w
as

 to
 b

e 
ed

uc
at

ed
 to

 re
as

on
ab

le
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

w
ith

 G
C

SE
 M

at
hs

 &
 E

ng
lis

h.
  T

he
re

 is
 

in
ci

de
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

tra
di

tio
na

l o
ffi

ce
 ju

ni
or

 b
ei

ng
 in

 d
ec

lin
e 

as
 m

or
e 

an
d 

m
or

e 
w

or
ke

rs
 n

ow
 p

ro
ce

ss
 th

ei
r o

w
n 

co
rre

sp
on

de
nc

e 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t f
un

ct
io

ns
.  

Sk
ills

 re
qu

ire
d 

w
er

e 
go

od
 I.

C
.T

. s
ki

lls
 e

vi
de

nc
ed

 b
y 

ab
ilit

y 
to

 u
se

 p
op

ul
ar

 p
ac

ka
ge

s 
co

up
le

d 
w

ith
 g

oo
d 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

sk
ills

 a
nd

 te
le

ph
on

e 
m

an
ne

r. 
 Th

er
e 

ar
e 

st
ill 

go
od

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
to

 b
e 

ha
d 

w
ith

in
 th

is
 in

du
st

ry
 b

ut
 w

ith
 a

n 
em

ph
as

is
 o

n 
IT

, c
om

pe
te

nc
e 

an
d 

an
 o

ve
ra

ll 
ap

tit
ud

e 
to

 
do

 th
e 

jo
b.

 
 W

ar
eh

ou
si

ng
: 

 Ag
ai

n 
no

 fo
rm

al
 q

ua
lif

ic
at

io
ns

 g
en

er
al

ly
 re

qu
ire

d 
ot

he
r t

ha
n 

ba
si

c 
G

C
SE

 in
 M

at
hs

 &
 E

ng
lis

h 
es

se
nt

ia
lly

 to
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 
nu

m
er

ac
y 

an
d 

lit
er

ac
y 

as
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 jo
b 

ro
le

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 a

ct
 s

af
el

y.
  I

.C
.T

. s
ki

lls
 w

er
e 

al
so

 re
qu

ire
d,

 a
s 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
 h

as
 m

ov
ed

 in
to

 
th

is
 in

du
st

ry
 a

nd
 h

as
 m

uc
h 

in
flu

en
ce

 o
n 

st
oc

k 
co

nt
ro

l. 
 Th

er
e 

w
er

e 
fe

w
er

 w
ar

eh
ou

se
 jo

bs
 to

 b
e 

ha
d 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
ye

ar
s 

bu
t c

ol
d 

ca
lls

 to
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s 
yi

el
de

d 
a 

sm
al

l n
um

be
r o

f 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s.
 

Page 99



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
12

 

  U
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t r

at
es

 

 Fi
gu

re
s 

re
pr

es
en

te
d 

as
 a

 %
 o

f t
ot

al
 1

6-
19

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

46
6

55
0

42
0

44
0

46
0

48
0

50
0

52
0

54
0

56
0

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

Ap
r

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

Au
g

Se
pt

O
ct

N
ov

D
ec

6.
4

5.
4

4.
85

5.
2

5.
4

5.
6

5.
86

6.
2

6.
4

6.
6

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

Ap
r

M
ay

Ju
n

Ju
ly

Au
g

Se
pt

O
ct

N
ov

D
ec

Page 100



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
13

 

Yo
ut

h 
Su

pp
or

t &
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

er
vi

ce
  

 LE
A

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 

 In
 th

e 
su

m
m

er
 o

f 1
99

9 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
br

ou
gh

t t
og

et
he

r t
he

 p
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

se
pa

ra
te

 a
re

as
 o

f E
du

ca
tio

n,
 A

rts
 a

nd
 L

ib
ra

rie
s 

in
to

 a
 s

in
gl

e 
de

pa
rtm

en
t. 

 T
hi

s 
re

st
ru

ct
ur

in
g 

m
ar

ke
d 

th
e 

st
ar

t o
f a

 n
ew

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 E
du

ca
tio

n,
 L

ife
lo

ng
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

an
d 

C
ul

tu
ra

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
 

 Th
e 

ne
w

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t a

im
s 

w
er

e 
to

 s
ec

ur
e 

hi
gh

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 o

f e
du

ca
tio

na
l a

tta
in

m
en

t, 
hi

gh
 q

ua
lit

y 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r l
ife

lo
ng

 le
ar

ni
ng

 
an

d 
ex

ce
lle

nt
 c

ul
tu

ra
l f

ac
ilit

ie
s 

so
 a

s 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f l
ife

 o
f t

he
 re

si
de

nt
s,

 a
ss

is
t i

n 
th

e 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ar
ea

 a
nd

 to
 

ta
ck

le
 s

oc
ia

l i
nc

lu
si

on
. 

 Th
e 

Li
fe

lo
ng

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
an

d 
In

cl
us

io
n 

D
iv

is
io

n 
w

as
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

ne
w

 s
tru

ct
ur

e 
to

 ra
is

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

an
d 

to
 p

ur
su

e 
tw

o 
m

ai
n 

ai
m

s:
 1.

 T
o 

br
in

g 
co

he
re

nc
e 

an
d 

di
re

ct
io

n 
to

 th
e 

Bo
ro

ug
h'

s 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

fo
r p

os
t-1

4 
an

d 
po

st
-1

6 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

an
d 

tra
in

in
g.

 
 To

 d
o 

th
is

, t
he

 v
ar

io
us

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
co

nt
rib

ut
in

g 
di

re
ct

ly
 to

 th
is

 a
sp

ec
t o

f t
he

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t's

 w
or

k 
w

er
e 

br
ou

gh
t t

og
et

he
r i

nt
o 

a 
si

ng
le

 
di

vi
si

on
.  

Th
is

 in
cl

ud
es

 th
e 

Yo
ut

h 
Su

pp
or

t a
nd

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
er

vi
ce

, T
rid

en
t, 

th
e 

Ad
ul

t C
ol

le
ge

, C
ar

ee
rs

 E
du

ca
tio

n,
 th

e 
Po

st
-1

4 
Te

am
, t

he
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

Bu
si

ne
ss

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 a
nd

 B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 T

ra
in

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

. 
 

2.
 T

o 
dr

iv
e 

up
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 o
f e

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

to
 ra

is
e 

th
e 

st
oc

k 
of

 s
ki

lls
 a

nd
 q

ua
lif

ic
at

io
ns

 a
cq

ui
re

d 
by

 th
e 

ad
ul

t p
op

ul
at

io
n.

 
 Th

e 
ov

er
rid

in
g 

ai
m

 o
f t

he
 L

ife
lo

ng
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

an
d 

In
cl

us
io

n 
D

iv
is

io
n 

is
 to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 re

le
va

nt
 C

ou
nc

il 
de

pa
rtm

en
ts

 a
nd

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
to

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 ra
is

e 
th

e 
st

oc
k 

of
 s

ki
lls

 a
nd

 q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

ns
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
. 

 Th
e 

te
am

 a
im

s 
to

 c
on

tri
bu

te
 to

 th
e 

Au
th

or
ity

's
 a

sp
ira

tio
na

l t
ar

ge
ts

 to
 e

lim
in

at
e 

th
e 

ve
ry

 lo
w

 le
ve

ls
 o

f a
tta

in
m

en
t w

ith
in

 it
s 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

an
d 

to
 m

ak
e 

Le
ve

l 2
 in

 th
e 

ba
si

c 
sk

ills
 a

n 
en

tit
le

m
en

t f
or

 a
ll.

 
 Th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 ra
is

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

in
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

le
ve

ls
 o

f q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

ns
 is

 m
ot

iv
at

ed
 b

y 
th

re
e 

ce
nt

ra
l n

ee
ds

: 
 Th

e 
Au

th
or

ity
 in

te
nd

s 
to

 b
e 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 in

 re
ge

ne
ra

tin
g 

its
 lo

ca
l e

co
no

m
y 

(a
id

ed
 b

y 
ES

F 
an

d 
SR

B 
fu

nd
s)

.  
It 

ne
ed

s,
 th

er
ef

or
e,

 to
 

of
fe

r a
 s

ki
lle

d 
lo

ca
l w

or
kf

or
ce

 to
 p

ot
en

tia
l i

nw
ar

d 
in

ve
st

or
s.

 
 Th

e 
Au

th
or

ity
 in

te
nd

s 
its

 c
om

m
un

ity
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 in
 c

on
fid

en
ce

. I
t n

ee
ds

, t
he

re
fo

re
, t

o 
en

su
re

 it
s 

re
si

de
nt

s 
ha

ve
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 le
ar

ni
ng

 
(b

ot
h 

fo
rm

al
 a

nd
 in

fo
rm

al
) w

hi
ch

 w
ill 

he
lp

 d
ev

el
op

 p
er

so
na

l i
nt

er
es

ts
, s

ki
lls

 a
nd

 c
om

pe
te

nc
ie

s 
an

d 
ex

te
nd

 c
ho

ic
e.

 
 Th

e 
Au

th
or

ity
 w

is
he

s 
to

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

in
 it

s 
sc

ho
ol

s 
(c

ur
re

nt
ly

 a
m

on
gs

t  t
he

 fa
st

es
t 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
LE

As
 in

 th
e 

co
un

try
). 

 It
 n

ee
ds

, t
he

re
fo

re
, t

o 
en

su
re

 th
at

 th
e 

ed
uc

at
io

na
l s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 a

s 
a 

w
ho

le
 a

re
 

ra
is

ed
. 

Page 101



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
14

 

 In
 o

rd
er

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 w

ha
t i

s 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 o

f t
he

 D
iv

is
io

n 
a 

se
t o

f s
tra

te
gi

c 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 fo
r 2

00
3-

04
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ag
re

ed
.  

Th
es

e 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 
pr

ov
id

e 
th

e 
di

vi
si

on
 w

ith
 a

 s
ha

re
d 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
an

d 
co

m
m

itm
en

t t
o 

a 
se

t o
f c

om
m

on
 g

oa
ls

.  
Th

ey
 a

re
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 a
s 

a 
St

ra
te

gy
 

M
ap

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s;

 
St

ra
te

gy
 M

ap
 

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 F
irs

t -
 C

us
to

m
er

 P
er

sp
ec

tiv
e 

        
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 C
ou

nt
s 

- O
rg

an
is

at
io

na
l P

ro
ce

ss
es

 P
er

sp
ec

tiv
e 

       
Fu

nd
in

g 
th

e 
Fu

tu
re

 - 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l a

nd
 R

es
ou

rc
e 

Pe
rs

pe
ct

iv
e 

      
Pe

op
le

 M
at

te
r -

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
an

d 
G

ro
w

th
 P

er
sp

ec
tiv

e 
       

R
ai

si
ng

 
As

pi
ra

tio
ns

 
an

d 
St

an
da

rd
s 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

1 

Ea
rly

 
In

te
rv

en
tio

n 
 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

2

Fo
cu

s 
on

  
Fu

ll 
R

an
ge

 o
f 

Le
ar

ne
r's

 N
ee

ds
 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

3 

M
ax

im
is

e 
Pa

rti
ci

pa
tio

n 
R

at
es

 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
4

W
or

k 
Ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
w

ith
 a

 R
an

ge
 

of
 P

ar
tn

er
s 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

5 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 O
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
of

 th
e 

H
ig

he
st

 Q
ua

lit
y 

 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
6 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
us

e 
of

  
W

or
kp

la
ce

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

7

St
at

ut
or

y 
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

8

C
hi

ld
re

n 
Fi

rs
t 

 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
9

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
U

se
 o

f N
at

io
na

l a
nd

 
Lo

ca
l I

ni
tia

tiv
es

 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
11

 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
U

se
 

of
 a

ll 
Av

ai
la

bl
e 

R
es

ou
rc

es
St

ra
te

gi
c 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
10

 

Pr
om

ot
e 

Eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
 

C
el

eb
ra

te
 D

iv
er

si
ty

 
 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

15
 

G
re

at
er

 C
ro

ss
 

D
iv

is
io

na
l W

or
ki

ng
 

 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
14

 

Pr
ov

id
e 

C
le

ar
 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
13

 

H
ig

h 
Q

ua
lit

y 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 

an
d 

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

12
 

Page 102



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
15

 

 Th
e 

St
ra

te
gy

 M
ap

 is
 fo

llo
w

ed
 b

y 
a 

se
t o

f S
tra

te
gi

c 
O

bj
ec

tiv
es

 th
at

 w
ill 

be
 u

se
d 

to
 a

ss
es

s 
th

e 
pr

og
re

ss
 b

ei
ng

 m
ad

e 
in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 

ea
ch

 s
pe

ci
fic

 o
bj

ec
tiv

e.
  A

 s
um

m
ar

y 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

pl
an

 d
et

ai
lin

g 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
ac

tio
ns

 o
r p

ro
je

ct
s 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 th

es
e 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 d

ur
in

g 
20

03
-0

4 
ha

s 
al

so
 b

ee
n 

co
m

pi
le

d.
  F

in
al

ly
, e

ac
h 

se
rv

ic
e 

ar
ea

 h
as

 s
um

m
ar

is
ed

 it
s 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t, 

ac
tio

n 
or

 b
us

in
es

s 
pl

an
 in

to
 a

 
st

an
da

rd
 fo

rm
at

 w
hi

ch
 c

om
pl

et
es

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
ob

je
ct

iv
e 

se
tti

ng
 a

nd
 p

la
nn

in
g 

pr
oc

es
s 

fo
r t

he
 D

iv
is

io
n.

  T
hi

s 
ne

w
 Y

ou
th

 S
up

po
rt 

& 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

er
vi

ce
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n 

w
ill 

re
pl

ac
e 

th
e 

cu
rre

nt
 v

er
si

on
 c

on
ta

in
ed

 in
 th

e 
20

03
-0

4 
D

iv
is

io
na

l S
tra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
.  

 
 Th

e 
D

iv
is

io
n 

is
 d

ire
ct

ly
 in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
Lo

nd
on

 B
or

ou
gh

 o
f B

ar
ki

ng
 &

 D
ag

en
ha

m
's

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

tra
te

gy
 a

nd
 h

as
 a

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 ro
le

 to
 p

la
y 

in
, a

nd
 a

 d
ire

ct
 im

pa
ct

 u
po

n,
 th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il's

 C
om

m
un

ity
 P

rio
rit

ie
s.

  T
he

se
 C

om
m

un
ity

 P
rio

rit
ie

s 
ar

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
th

re
e 

co
re

 e
le

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 B
ar

ki
ng

 &
 D

ag
en

ha
m

 2
02

0 
Vi

si
on

 s
ta

te
m

en
t. 

 Th
e 

re
al

ig
ni

ng
 o

f t
he

 Y
ou

th
 S

up
po

rt 
& 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
er

vi
ce

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
Li

fe
lo

ng
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

& 
In

cl
us

io
n 

D
iv

is
io

n 
ha

s 
cr

ea
te

d 
fo

rm
al

 
lin

ka
ge

s 
w

he
re

 th
e 

YS
D

S 
en

ga
ge

s 
fu

lly
 w

ith
 a

ll 
of

 th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 w
ith

in
 a

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
th

at
 b

rin
gs

 th
e 

va
rie

ty
 o

f p
la

nn
in

g 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

in
to

 a
 s

in
gl

e 
co

he
re

nt
 a

pp
ro

ac
h.

 
  

Page 103



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
16

 

 LE
A

 L
in

ka
ge

s 
   As

 in
di

ca
te

d 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

, t
he

 Y
ou

th
 S

up
po

rt 
& 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
er

vi
ce

 is
 lo

ca
te

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

Li
fe

lo
ng

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
& 

In
cl

us
io

n 
D

iv
is

io
n 

in
 

th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f E
du

ca
tio

n,
 A

rts
 a

nd
 L

ib
ra

rie
s.

   
                   

 
 

In
cl

us
io

n 
Te

am
 

 
 

 
 

 
Li

fe
lo

ng
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

Te
am

 
  As

 il
lu

st
ra

te
d,

 th
e 

YS
D

S 
is

 e
ng

ag
ed

 w
ith

 b
ot

h 
te

am
 a

sp
ec

ts
 o

f t
he

 D
iv

is
io

n'
s 

w
or

k.
  T

he
 H

ea
d 

of
 Y

SD
S 

is
 a

 m
em

be
r o

f t
he

 L
ife

lo
ng

 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 T

ea
m

, t
he

 D
ep

ut
y 

H
ea

d 
of

 Y
SD

S 
is

 a
 m

em
be

r o
f t

he
 In

cl
us

io
n 

Te
am

.  
Th

is
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t a
llo

w
s 

an
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l l
in

ka
ge

 
w

ith
 th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 th

e 
D

iv
is

io
n.

 
 It 

cr
ea

te
s 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r r

ai
si

ng
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
an

d 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 th

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
th

e 
YS

D
S 

ca
n 

po
te

nt
ia

lly
 m

ak
e 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
pl

an
ni

ng
 jo

in
t w

or
k 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
in

iti
at

iv
es

 m
an

ag
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

D
iv

is
io

n 
th

at
 a

re
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

D
iv

is
io

na
l S

tra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

. 

H
ea

d 
of

 
Li

fe
lo

ng
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

an
d 

In
cl

us
io

n 

H
ea

d 
of

 
Ed

uc
at

io
na

l 
In

cl
us

io
n 

H
ea

d 
of

  
So

ci
al

 In
cl

us
io

n 
& 

Pr
in

ci
pa

l E
d 

Ps
yc

ho
lo

gi
st

 

H
ea

d 
of

 
Yo

ut
h 

Su
pp

or
t

&
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

Se
rv

ic
e 

H
ea

d 
of

  
W

or
k 

R
el

at
ed

 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 

H
ea

d 
of

  
C

om
m

un
ity

 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 

H
ea

d 
of

  
Th

e 
Ad

ul
t 

C
ol

le
ge

 

Page 104



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
17

 

 St
ru

ct
ur

e 
 

                     
In

cl
us

io
n 

Te
am

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

cc
es

s 
Te

am
 

H
ea

d 
of

 Y
SD

S

Yo
ut

h 
&

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
O

ffi
ce

r 

B
or

ou
gh

 
Yo

ut
h 

O
ffi

ce
r 

Se
ni

or
Yo

ut
h

W
or

ke
r

Se
ni

or
 

Yo
ut

h 
W

or
ke

r 

Se
ni

or
 

Yo
ut

h 
W

or
ke

r 

C
o-

or
di

na
to

r 
Ea

st
st

re
et

 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Sh

op
 

D
et

ac
he

d 
Yo

ut
h 

W
or

ke
r 

Se
ni

or
 

Yo
ut

h 
&

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
W

or
ke

r 

Se
ni

or
 

Yo
ut

h 
&

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
W

or
ke

r 

Se
ni

or
 

Yo
ut

h 
&

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
W

or
ke

r 

Se
ni

or
 

Yo
ut

h 
&

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
W

or
ke

r 

In
cl

us
io

n 
Yo

ut
h 

W
or

ke
r 

B
IP

 
K

ey
 W

or
ke

r
Tr

ai
ne

e 
Yo

ut
h 

W
or

ke
r 

Tr
ai

ne
e 

Yo
ut

h 
W

or
ke

r 

In
cl

us
io

n
Yo

ut
h 

W
or

ke
r 

Page 105



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
18

 

 YS
D

S 
Se

rv
ic

e 
A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 (P

rio
rit

ie
s,

 P
ro

gr
am

m
es

 a
nd

 T
ar

ge
te

d 
G

ro
up

s 
20

02
-2

00
3)

 
  Pr

io
rit

ie
s 

 

 Pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 
 Ta

rg
et

ed
 G

ro
up

s 

 To
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
qu

al
ity

 le
ar

ni
ng

 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 to

 m
ee

t t
he

 n
ee

ds
 o

f 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 1

1-
19

 
 To

 d
ev

el
op

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 w
ith

 th
e 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
se

ct
or

 
an

d 
ot

he
r c

ou
nc

il 
se

rv
ic

es
 &

 
de

pa
rt

m
en

ts
 

 To
 m

ak
e 

us
e 

of
 a

ll 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
 To

 e
ns

ur
e 

hi
gh

 q
ua

lit
y 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
liv

er
y 

 H
ea

lth
 E

du
ca

tio
n:

  
⇒

 R
el

at
io

ns
hi

ps
 

⇒
 S

ex
ua

l H
ea

lth
 

⇒
 M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 

⇒
 D

ru
gs

 &
 A

lc
oh

ol
 

So
ci

al
 S

ki
lls

: 
 

 
⇒

 S
el

f A
w

ar
en

es
s/

Se
lf 

Es
te

em
 

⇒
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
Sk

ills
 

⇒
 I

nt
er

pe
rs

on
al

 S
ki

lls
 

⇒
 E

xp
lo

re
 &

 M
an

ag
e 

Fe
el

in
gs

 
⇒

 U
nd

er
st

an
d 

& 
Id

en
tif

y 
w

ith
 O

th
er

s 
⇒

 V
al

ue
s 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
⇒

 P
ro

bl
em

 S
ol

vi
ng

 
⇒

 N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

Sk
ills

 
⇒

 A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 
⇒

 R
ev

ie
w

in
g 

Sk
ills

 
Em

po
w

er
m

en
t: 

 
⇒

 Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e’
s 

Pa
rti

ci
pa

tio
n 

⇒
 L

ife
 S

ki
lls

 
⇒

 A
dv

ic
e 

& 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
⇒

 O
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r N
ew

 E
xp

er
ie

nc
es

 
A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t: 

 
 

⇒
 A

cc
re

di
te

d 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 

⇒
 I

nf
or

m
al

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
 

 Te
en

ag
e 

M
ot

he
rs

 
 Fi

rs
t T

im
e 

Te
en

ag
e 

Fa
th

er
s 

 Yo
un

g 
W

om
en

 a
nd

 A
lc

oh
ol

 
 Yo

un
g 

Pe
op

le
 a

t R
is

k 
of

 E
xc

lu
si

on
 fr

om
 

St
at

ut
or

y 
Sc

ho
ol

in
g 

 Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le

 L
oo

ke
d 

Af
te

r 
 Yo

un
g 

Pe
op

le
 w

ith
 D

is
ab

ilit
ie

s/
Le

ar
ni

ng
 

D
iff

ic
ul

tie
s 

 D
is

en
fra

nc
hi

se
d 

Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le

 
 D

is
af

fe
ct

ed
 Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

 

Page 106



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
19

 

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

20
03

-0
4 

bu
dg

et
 

 

  

Ba
se

 re
ve

nu
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

£9
20

,0
00

 
 Ex

te
rn

al
 re

ve
nu

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
 

 

• 
U

K 
O

nl
in

e
£7

5,
00

0 
• 

TY
W

D
F

£3
0,

55
2 

• 
SE

N
D

Am
ou

nt
  t

o 
be

 c
on

fir
m

ed
 

• 
N

R
F

£4
0,

00
0 

 LB
B&

D
 C

ap
ita

l f
un

di
ng

 
 

 

• 
Be

ac
on

 Y
ou

th
 C

en
tre

 U
pg

ra
de

£7
20

,0
00

 
Be

ac
on

 Y
ou

th
 C

en
tre

 
O

ak
s 

Yo
ut

h 
O

ffi
ce

 
Fa

rr 
Av

en
ue

 C
yb

er
 C

af
e 

Su
e 

Br
am

le
y 

C
en

tre
 

Ea
st

st
re

et
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Sh

op
 fo

r Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
Sy

dn
ey

 R
us

se
ll 

U
K 

O
nl

in
e 

C
en

tre
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 B

as
ed

 P
ro

je
ct

s 
D

et
ac

he
d 

W
or

k 
C

on
ne

xi
on

s 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 P
ro

gr
am

m
es

 
Po

si
tiv

e 
Ac

tiv
iti

es
 fo

r Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
In

iti
at

iv
e 

 Ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

& 
O

ut
le

ts
 

Vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
Yo

ut
h 

Se
ct

or
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 P

ro
gr

am
m

es
 

  

Page 107



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
20

 

 Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 
  

U
K 

O
nl

in
e 

C
en

tre
 

A
du

lt 
C

ol
le

ge
 

Su
e 

Br
am

le
y 

C
en

tre
 

B
&

D
 T

ra
in

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
YS

D
S 

So
ci

al
/L

ife
 S

ki
lls

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

B
ar

ki
ng

 C
ol

le
ge

 
Fa

rr 
Av

en
ue

 C
yb

er
 C

af
é 

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

Fu
nd

 
Su

m
m

er
 a

nd
 H

ol
id

ay
 P

ro
gr

am
m

es
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

H
ea

d 
of

 Y
SD

S 
is

 D
EA

L 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e 

C
on

ne
xi

on
s 

Va
rio

us
 - 

se
e 

se
pa

ra
te

 s
ec

tio
n 

D
A

T 
Vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

Se
ct

or
 s

up
po

rt 
Ea

st
st

re
et

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Sh
op

 fo
r Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Le
ve

l A
gr

ee
m

en
t i

nc
lu

di
ng

 s
ec

on
dm

en
t o

f s
ta

ff,
 c

or
e 

fu
nd

in
g,

 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
 s

up
po

rt 
an

d 
jo

in
t t

ra
in

in
g,

 a
nd

 y
ou

th
 w

or
k 

pr
oj

ec
ts

. 
H

ea
lth

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
H

ea
lth

y 
Ea

tin
g 

Fu
nd

ed
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 &

 H
ea

lth
 

Ba
rk

in
g 

Fo
ye

r P
ro

je
ct

 
Le

is
ur

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le

 in
 P

ar
ks

 P
ro

je
ct

 (T
ee

n 
Sh

el
te

rs
) 

PC
T 

YS
D

S 
So

ci
al

/L
ife

 S
ki

lls
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
Po

lic
e 

M
em

be
r o

f P
ol

ic
e/

C
om

m
un

ity
 W

or
ki

ng
 P

ar
ty

 
PR

U
 

YS
D

S 
So

ci
al

/L
ife

 S
ki

lls
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
Sc

ho
ol

s 
lin

ks
 

YS
D

S 
So

ci
al

/L
ife

 S
ki

lls
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
So

ci
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Ad

ol
es

ce
nt

 R
es

ou
rc

e 
Te

am
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
Te

en
 P

re
gn

an
cy

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
M

em
be

r o
f S

tra
te

gy
 G

ro
up

 
YO

T 
M

em
be

r o
f S

tra
te

gy
 G

ro
up

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 B
as

ed
 p

ro
gr

am
m

es
 (Y

ou
th

 In
cl

us
io

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

e)
 

 

Page 108



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
21

 

  
• 

D
ire

ct
or

y 
of

 V
ol

un
ta

ry
 Y

ou
th

 O
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
: T

hi
s 

D
ire

ct
or

y 
is

 in
 it

s 
2nd

 e
di

tio
n 

an
d 

is
 a

 w
el

l p
ro

du
ce

d 
gl

os
sy

 p
ub

lic
at

io
n 

in
 tw

o 
se

ct
io

ns
.  

Th
e 

fir
st

 s
ec

tio
n 

lis
ts

 y
ou

th
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
th

at
 h

av
e 

re
gi

st
er

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
YS

D
S;

 th
e 

se
co

nd
 s

ec
tio

n 
lis

ts
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

.  
Th

e 
re

gi
st

ra
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

s 
on

ly
 a

cc
ep

ts
 y

ou
th

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 th

at
 

en
do

rs
e 

C
R

B 
ch

ec
ks

 fo
r a

ll 
st

af
f. 

 T
hi

s 
C

R
B 

ch
ec

k 
to

 b
e 

fo
rm

al
ly

 in
 

pl
ac

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 p

ar
en

t/u
m

br
el

la
 g

ro
up

 o
r t

hr
ou

gh
 th

e 
YS

D
S,

 w
hi

ch
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 a
nd

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
th

e 
ch

ec
k.

  C
ur

re
nt

ly
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

45
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 li
st

ed
 in

 th
e 

di
re

ct
or

y 
w

ith
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 
be

in
g 

pr
oc

es
se

d.
  I

t i
s 

ou
r s

ta
te

d 
in

te
nt

io
n,

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
re

em
en

t a
nd

 
su

pp
or

t o
f t

he
 v

ol
un

ta
ry

 a
nd

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t s

ec
to

r o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
, t

o 
de

ve
lo

p 
th

is
 re

gi
st

ra
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

s 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

w
id

e 
yo

ut
h 

w
or

k 
st

an
da

rd
s 

as
 p

ar
t o

f b
ot

h 
th

e 
re

gi
st

ra
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

s 
an

d 
th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
co

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 fu

tu
re

 d
ire

ct
or

ie
s 

un
de

r e
ac

h 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 li

st
in

g.
  T

hi
s 

is
 

be
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

in
 c

on
ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
Yo

un
g 

Pe
op

le
's

 W
or

ke
rs

 
Fo

ru
m

 a
nd

 th
e 

Tr
an

sf
or

m
in

g 
Yo

ut
h 

W
or

k 
St

ra
nd

 A
 in

iti
at

iv
e.

 
• 

Vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
Yo

ut
h 

O
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 F

or
um

: A
 lo

ng
 s

ta
nd

in
g 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
fo

ru
m

 th
at

 m
ee

ts
 q

ua
rte

rly
 a

nd
 is

 c
ha

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
D

ep
ut

y 
Li

eu
te

na
nt

 fo
r t

he
 L

on
do

n 
Bo

ro
ug

h 
of

 B
ar

ki
ng

 &
 D

ag
en

ha
m

, C
ol

on
el

 
St

ep
he

n 
Fo

ak
es

 T
D

 D
L.

  T
he

 F
or

um
 h

as
 7

8 
lo

ca
l v

ol
un

ta
ry

 y
ou

th
 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 re
gi

st
er

ed
 w

ith
 it

 a
nd

 is
 fo

rm
al

ly
 re

pr
es

en
te

d 
on

 th
e 

C
on

ne
xi

on
s 

Lo
ca

l M
an

ag
em

en
t G

ro
up

.  
• 

Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le

's
 W

or
ke

rs
 F

or
um

: A
ga

in
, a

 lo
ng

 s
ta

nd
in

g 
fo

ru
m

.  
It 

m
ee

ts
 m

on
th

ly
 a

nd
 is

 a
tte

nd
ed

 b
y 

w
or

ke
rs

 fr
om

 th
e 

st
at

ut
or

y,
 v

ol
un

ta
ry

 
an

d 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t s
ec

to
rs

.  
C

ur
re

nt
ly

, t
he

 F
or

um
 h

as
 9

9 
w

or
ke

rs
 fr

om
 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

on
 it

s 
in

vi
ta

tio
n 

lis
t w

ith
 a

 h
ig

h 
tu

rn
ou

t a
t e

ac
h 

m
ee

tin
g.

 
 

Vo
l S

ec
to

r 
            

• 
Jo

in
t W

or
k:

 V
ar

io
us

 c
om

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 a

ge
nc

y 
ba

se
d 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

.  
TY

W
D

F 
in

iti
at

iv
es

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

th
em

at
ic

 p
ro

je
ct

s.
 

  

Page 109



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
22

 

 St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
 2

00
3-

20
06

 
 Th

e 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 fo
r t

he
 Y

ou
th

 S
up

po
rt 

& 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

er
vi

ce
 is

 th
at

 w
hi

ch
 is

 il
lu

st
ra

te
d 

in
 th

e 
LE

A 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 o
n 

pa
ge

s 
12

-1
4 

su
pp

le
m

en
te

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f E

du
ca

tio
n,

 A
rts

 &
 L

ib
ra

rie
s 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
pl

an
s.

  
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t p
rio

rit
ie

s 
ar

e 
en

do
rs

ed
 b

ot
h 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 a
bo

ve
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

YS
D

S 
D

el
iv

er
y 

Pl
an

 o
n 

pa
ge

 2
3.

  T
hi

s 
pl

an
 ta

ke
s 

ac
co

un
t o

f a
nd

 re
fle

ct
s 

th
e 

pr
op

os
al

s 
an

d 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

ut
lin

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
Tr

an
sf

or
m

in
g 

Yo
ut

h 
W

or
k 

In
iti

at
iv

es
 a

s 
w

el
l 

as
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

on
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
se

t o
ut

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
LE

A 
le

d 
Se

rv
ic

e 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 2

00
0.

 
 

Page 110



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
23

 

 YS
D

S 
D

el
iv

er
y 

Pl
an

 2
00

3-
20

04
 

                         
 

K
ey

 C
ur

re
nt

 P
rio

rit
ie

s 
 

 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
 

 

 
Ta

sk
s 

to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 to
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

lly
 p

ur
su

e 
ea

ch
 k

ey
 p

rio
rit

y 
(2

00
3/

04
) 

 1.
 T

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 q
ua

lit
y 

le
ar

ni
ng

 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
to

 m
ee

t t
he

 n
ee

ds
 o

f y
ou

ng
 

pe
op

le
 1

1-
19

 y
ea

rs
 

  

 
SO

1 
SO

2 
SO

3 
SO

7 
SO

9 

 1.
1 

 E
ns

ur
e 

a 
va

rie
ty

 o
f r

ou
te

s 
in

to
 p

ro
gr

am
m

es
.  

St
ar

t w
he

re
 th

e 
le

ar
ni

ng
 

   
   

 is
 a

t. 
1.

2 
D

ev
el

op
 s

tra
te

gi
es

 fo
r e

ng
ag

in
g 

w
ith

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
ba

se
d 

on
  

   
   

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
ps

 w
hi

ch
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

of
fe

re
d 

ar
e 

   
   

 re
le

va
nt

. 

 B
rie

f d
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
Se

rv
ic

e 
 Th

e 
Yo

ut
h 

Su
pp

or
t &

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
er

vi
ce

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
11

 a
nd

 1
9 

ye
ar

s 
(th

e 
13

-1
9 

ag
e 

ra
ng

e 
is

 th
e 

pr
io

rit
y 

gr
ou

p)
 to

 e
ng

ag
e 

w
ith

 in
fo

rm
al

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 o

ut
si

de
 th

e 
fo

rm
al

 c
ur

ric
ul

um
.  

Th
e 

Se
rv

ic
e 

is
 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
ly

 e
ng

ag
ed

 in
 o

ffe
rin

g 
da

yt
im

e 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
to

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ho
 a

re
 d

is
af

fe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 is

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

its
 in

cl
us

io
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

w
hi

ch
 e

m
ph

as
is

es
 li

nk
s 

w
ith

 s
ch

oo
ls

, c
ol

le
ge

s 
an

d 
th

e 
C

on
ne

xi
on

s 
Se

rv
ic

e.
  T

he
 s

tru
ct

ur
e 

is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

tw
o 

te
am

s 
re

fle
ct

in
g 

th
e 

tw
o 

m
ai

n 
st

ra
nd

s 
of

 in
cl

us
io

n 
w

or
k 

an
d 

in
fo

rm
al

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

ad
vi

ce
 a

nd
 g

ui
da

nc
e,

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt 

to
 c

om
m

un
ity

 b
as

ed
 y

ou
th

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
. 

  St
ra

te
gi

c 
A

im
s 

of
 th

e 
Se

rv
ic

e 
 Th

e 
YS

D
S 

ai
m

s 
to

 e
ng

ag
e 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 1
1-

19
 y

ea
rs

 in
: 

• 
a 

ra
ng

e 
of

 in
fo

rm
al

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
th

at
 e

nh
an

ce
 th

ei
r p

er
so

na
l a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 le
ar

ni
ng

 
• 

se
rv

ic
es

 w
hi

ch
 p

ro
vi

de
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 a

dv
ic

e 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t t
ha

t m
ee

ts
 th

ei
r n

ee
ds

 
• 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 th
at

 a
re

 c
re

at
iv

e,
 v

ar
ie

d,
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
an

d 
fle

xi
bl

e,
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
ei

r n
ee

ds
 a

nd
 in

te
re

st
s 

To
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
13

-1
9 

ye
ar

s 
w

ho
 a

re
 d

is
af

fe
ct

ed
 to

 re
en

ga
ge

 th
em

 w
ith

 th
e 

Li
fe

lo
ng

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
ag

en
da

 
 

Page 111



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
24

 

 (c
on

t) 
  

 1.
3 

Ex
te

nd
 th

e 
qu

al
ity

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ll 
   

   
 p

ro
gr

am
m

es
 o

ffe
re

d 
ar

e 
of

 a
 h

ig
h 

st
an

da
rd

. 
1.

4 
 C

ar
ry

 o
ut

 c
us

to
m

er
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

su
rv

ey
s 

w
ith

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e.
 

1.
5 

 A
ch

ie
ve

 II
P 

st
an

da
rd

. 
1.

6 
 E

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e'

s 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

ts
 a

re
 p

ub
lic

is
ed

. 
 

 2.
 T

o 
de

ve
lo

p 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
w

ith
 th

e 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

an
d 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t s

ec
to

r 
an

d 
ot

he
r c

ou
nc

il 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 

de
pa

rtm
en

ts
 

 

 
SO

4 
SO

12
 

SO
14

 

 2.
1 

 B
ui

ld
 o

n 
cu

rre
nt

 g
oo

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
an

d 
ex

te
nd

 th
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 p
ar

tn
er

s.
 

2.
2 

 D
ev

el
op

 m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 w
or

ki
ng

. 

 3.
 T

o 
m

ak
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
us

e 
of

 a
ll 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

 

 
SO

5 
SO

6 
SO

10
 

SO
11

 
SO

13
 

 

 3.
1 

Id
en

tif
y 

cl
ea

r o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 y

ou
th

 w
or

k 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 a
nd

 s
ec

ur
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

to
 s

up
po

rt 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t o
f s

am
e.

 
3.

2 
C

le
ar

ly
 d

ef
in

e 
th

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
th

e 
YS

D
S 

ca
n 

m
ak

e 
to

 th
e 

lif
el

on
g 

le
ar

ni
ng

 
ag

en
da

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 e

nh
an

ce
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t w
ith

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
in

iti
at

iv
es

. 
3.

3 
R

ev
ie

w
 s

tru
ct

ur
e 

an
d 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t w

ith
 lo

ca
l n

ee
ds

 is
 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d.

 
3.

4 
D

ev
el

op
 th

e 
YS

D
S 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

w
ith

 th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 E

as
t C

on
ne

xi
on

s 
Pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 a
nd

 th
e 

Ba
rk

in
g 

& 
D

ag
en

ha
m

 L
oc

al
 D

el
iv

er
y 

Pl
an

. 
 

 4.
 T

o 
en

su
re

 h
ig

h 
qu

al
ity

 s
er

vi
ce

 d
el

iv
er

y 
 

 
SO

8 
SO

10
 

SO
11

 
SO

12
 

 

 4.
1 

 D
ev

el
op

 a
n 

in
 s

er
vi

ce
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
m

ax
im

um
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r  

   
   

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l a
nd

 p
er

so
na

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

YS
D

S 
st

af
f s

ki
ll 

   
   

 b
as

e.
 

4.
2 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 s

ta
ff 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

ol
ic

y.
 

4.
3 

St
re

ng
th

en
 th

e 
YS

D
S 

tra
in

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e.

 
4.

4 
U

pd
at

e 
th

e 
YS

D
S 

st
af

f a
pp

ra
is

al
 s

ys
te

m
. 

 
    

Page 112



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
25

 

 Pr
io

rit
ie

s 
 Th

e 
lis

t o
f K

ey
 C

ur
re

nt
 P

rio
rit

ie
s 

ab
ov

e 
w

ill 
be

 tr
an

sl
at

ed
 in

to
 a

 S
er

vi
ce

 A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 th

e 
tw

o 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Te

am
s 

- 
th

e 
In

cl
us

io
n 

Te
am

 &
 th

e 
Ac

ce
ss

 T
ea

m
.  

Th
is

 p
ro

ce
ss

 w
ill 

en
su

re
 th

at
 th

e 
YS

D
S 

is
 b

ot
h 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

its
 w

or
k 

in
 d

ire
ct

 
re

la
tio

n 
to

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f E

du
ca

tio
n,

 A
rts

 &
 L

ib
ra

rie
s 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

in
 a

 c
le

ar
 

fra
m

ew
or

k 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il's

 B
al

an
ce

d 
Sc

or
ec

ar
d.

 
 Th

e 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

al
re

ad
y 

la
id

 d
ow

n 
on

 p
ag

e 
18

 o
f t

hi
s 

pl
an

 w
ill 

fo
rm

 th
e 

ba
si

s 
of

 th
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
 T

ea
m

 A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

s.
  T

he
se

 p
rio

rit
ie

s 
ar

e 
th

e 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

se
t w

ith
in

 th
e 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ac
tio

n 
Pl

an
 w

hi
ch

 w
as

 a
gr

ee
d 

in
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

00
2 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
a 

fo
rm

al
 p

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
s.

  T
he

 A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

 w
as

 in
te

nd
ed

 a
s 

a 
th

re
e 

ye
ar

 p
la

n 
an

d 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

an
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
in

 la
te

 2
00

2 
ha

s 
be

en
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

as
 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

ith
 th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
Tr

an
sf

or
m

in
g 

Yo
ut

h 
W

or
k 

in
iti

at
iv

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
.  

It 
is

 th
er

ef
or

e 
a 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f e
xi

st
in

g 
pr

ac
tic

e 
ra

th
er

 th
an

 a
 n

ew
 in

iti
at

iv
e 

an
d 

is
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
Li

fe
lo

ng
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

& 
In

cl
us

io
n 

D
iv

is
io

n.
 

 

Page 113



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
26

 

 Ta
rg

et
s 

 
 Th

e 
se

t o
f t

ar
ge

ts
 th

e 
YS

D
S 

ho
pe

s 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

an
nu

al
 y

ou
th

 s
er

vi
ce

 ta
rg

et
s 

se
t d

ow
n 

in
 s

ec
tio

n 
6 

of
 th

e 
Tr

an
sf

or
m

in
g 

Yo
ut

h 
W

or
k;

 R
es

ou
rc

in
g 

Ex
ce

lle
nt

 Y
ou

th
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

re
po

rt.
  I

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
ex

te
nd

ed
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

lo
ca

l t
ar

ge
ts

 a
lre

ad
y 

se
t. 

 D
fE

S 
Se

t o
f A

nn
ua

l Y
ou

th
 S

er
vi

ce
 U

ni
qu

e 
Ta

rg
et

s 
 �
 

25
%

 o
f t

he
 1

3-
19

 ta
rg

et
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
to

 b
e 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 Y

SD
S 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

. 
�
 

60
%

 o
f t

hi
s 

gr
ou

p 
to

 b
e 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 a

 p
er

so
na

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t/s
oc

ia
l s

ki
lls

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

w
hi

ch
 re

su
lts

 in
 a

n 
ac

cr
ed

ite
d 

ou
tc

om
e.

 
�
 

An
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t w
ith

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
 a

ge
 ra

ng
e 

w
ho

 a
re

 a
t r

is
k 

of
 o

r a
lre

ad
y 

fa
ll 

in
to

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ca

te
go

rie
s;

 
 

¾
 

N
ot

 in
 e

du
ca

tio
n,

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t o
r t

ra
in

in
g 

(N
EE

T)
 

¾
 

Te
en

ag
e 

pr
eg

na
nc

y 
¾
 

Yo
ut

h 
of

fe
nd

in
g 

¾
 

D
ru

gs
, a

lc
oh

ol
 o

r s
ub

st
an

ce
 m

is
us

e 
 �
 

70
%

 o
f t

ho
se

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
in

g 
in

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 e
xp

re
ss

in
g 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e.

 
 O

ut
co

m
es

 B
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
N

at
io

na
l Y

ou
th

 A
ge

nc
y 

St
an

da
rd

s 
of

 Y
ou

th
 W

or
k 

Pr
ov

is
io

n 
 �
 

A 
de

fin
ed

 c
ur

ric
ul

um
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

do
cu

m
en

t. 
¾
 

Th
is

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
to

 li
nk

 w
ith

 Y
ou

th
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 1
 &

 2
 in

 a
 m

aj
or

ity
 o

f Y
SD

S 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
. 

�
 

A 
de

fin
ed

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
fra

m
ew

or
k 

fo
r y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e.

 
¾
 

Th
is

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
to

 s
et

 o
ut

 c
le

ar
 a

rra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r i
nv

ol
vi

ng
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

in
 d

em
oc

ra
tic

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
. 

�
 

A 
St

af
f D

ev
el

op
m

en
t f

ra
m

ew
or

k 
do

cu
m

en
t. 

¾
 

Th
is

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
to

 s
et

 o
ut

 c
le

ar
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

an
d 

pr
ac

tic
es

 fo
r r

ec
ru

itm
en

t, 
in

iti
al

 a
nd

 in
du

ct
io

n 
tra

in
in

g 
an

d 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t f

or
 a

ll 
YS

D
S 

st
af

f. 
  N

at
io

na
l Y

ou
th

 A
ge

nc
y 

St
an

da
rd

s 
of

 Y
ou

th
 W

or
k 

Pr
ov

is
io

n 
 A 

na
tio

na
l w

or
ki

ng
 g

ro
up

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 u
pd

at
in

g 
th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 v

er
si

on
 a

nd
 th

is
 e

xe
rc

is
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 e
ar

ly
 s

um
m

er
 2

00
3.

 T
hi

s 
se

t o
f s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 is
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

's
 s

oc
ia

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 p
er

so
na

l a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t. 
 �
 

Th
e 

YS
D

S 
w

ill 
ad

op
t t

he
 re

vi
se

d 
se

t o
f s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
nd

 w
ill 

im
pl

em
en

t t
he

m
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

ag
re

ed
 ti

m
et

ab
le

 w
hi

ch
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
as

 2
00

6.
  

Page 114



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
27

 

 In
vo

lv
in

g 
Yo

un
g 

Pe
op

le
 

 Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le

's
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

is
 c

rit
ic

al
 to

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f Y
SD

S 
po

lic
ie

s,
 a

im
s 

& 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 a
nd

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

.  
Th

e 
BA

D
 Y

ou
th

 
Fo

ru
m

 w
as

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

in
 th

e 
au

tu
m

n 
of

 2
00

1 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

a 
pe

rio
d 

of
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
in

vo
lv

in
g 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

, C
ou

nc
illo

rs
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 
co

un
ci

l d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

. 
 C

ur
re

nt
ly

 in
 y

ea
r 2

 it
 is

 a
 b

or
ou

gh
 w

id
e 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
fo

ru
m

.  
M

em
be

rs
 a

re
 e

le
ct

ed
 fr

om
 s

ec
on

da
ry

 s
ch

oo
ls

, r
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e 

gr
ou

ps
 

an
d 

yo
ut

h 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 a

nd
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

di
ve

rs
ity

 o
f y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h.
  T

he
 F

or
um

 h
as

 a
 n

um
be

r o
f s

ub
-g

ro
up

s 
an

d 
ha

s 
fo

rm
al

 re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
on

; 
 

¾
 

U
K 

Yo
ut

h 
Pa

rli
am

en
t 

¾
 

C
on

ne
xi

on
s 

Yo
ut

h 
Bo

ar
d 

¾
 

C
on

ne
xi

on
s 

Lo
ca

l M
an

ag
em

en
t G

ro
up

 
¾
 

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

Fu
nd

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 

 Th
e 

w
or

k 
of

 B
AD

 Y
ou

th
 F

or
um

 to
 d

at
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 s
up

po
rte

d 
an

d 
ex

te
nd

ed
 b

y 
he

lp
 a

nd
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

of
fe

re
d 

by
 o

th
er

 C
ou

nc
il 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

.  
Th

e 
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e’
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

pa
rti

cu
la

rly
 h

el
pf

ul
 in

 th
e 

Fo
ru

m
’s

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t, 
an

d 
co

nt
in

ue
s 

to
 

ac
tiv

el
y 

su
pp

or
t y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

D
em

oc
ra

tic
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t. 

 Th
e 

ac
tiv

e 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t a
nd

 s
up

po
rt 

of
 e

le
ct

ed
 M

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 a

 c
rit

ic
al

 a
sp

ec
t o

f t
he

 F
or

um
's

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
 Th

e 
YS

D
S 

Se
ni

or
 Y

ou
th

 a
nd

 C
om

m
un

ity
 W

or
ke

r (
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 S

er
vi

ce
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t) 

is
 le

ad
 o

ffi
ce

r f
or

 c
oo

rd
in

at
in

g 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
s’

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
in

 B
or

ou
gh

 fo
ru

m
s.

  F
or

 2
00

3-
04

 a
 k

ey
 a

sp
ec

t o
f t

hi
s 

w
or

k 
w

ill 
be

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f a
n 

ov
er

al
l y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

's
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

st
ra

te
gy

 in
 c

on
ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 a

ll 
yo

ut
h 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 in
 th

e 
Bo

ro
ug

h.
 

 Th
is

 s
tra

te
gy

 w
ill 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e'
s 

pa
rti

ci
pa

tio
n 

at
 d

iff
er

en
t l

ev
el

s,
 in

vo
lv

in
g 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 a
t y

ou
th

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n,
 

co
m

m
un

ity
, s

ch
oo

l a
nd

 B
or

ou
gh

 le
ve

ls
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 ‘o
n-

lin
e’

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s.
 

 Th
e 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t o

f y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
in

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 a

nd
 th

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 th

ey
 w

ill 
be

 in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 w

ill 
be

 li
nk

ed
 w

ith
 o

th
er

 
Yo

ut
h 

Su
pp

or
t a

nd
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

er
vi

ce
 in

iti
at

iv
es

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

na
tio

na
l a

cc
re

di
ta

tio
n 

sc
he

m
es

.  
Pa

rti
ci

pa
tio

n 
is

 s
ui

ta
bl

y 
an

d 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

 m
en

tio
ne

d 
in

 th
e 

N
at

io
na

l Y
ou

th
 A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t A

w
ar

d 
Sc

he
m

e.
 

Page 115



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
28

 

 Eq
ua

lit
y 

&
 D

iv
er

si
ty

 
  A 

fu
nd

am
en

ta
l c

om
po

ne
nt

 o
f g

oo
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 is
 th

e 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

of
 e

qu
al

ity
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l i
nc

lu
si

on
. W

hi
ls

t t
he

re
 is

 a
lw

ay
s 

ro
om

 
fo

r i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t i
t i

s 
es

se
nt

ia
l t

ha
t a

n 
ag

re
ed

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
is

 in
 p

la
ce

 to
 m

on
ito

r a
nd

 e
va

lu
at

e 
th

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 a

ct
io

ns
 th

at
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
ta

ke
n 

in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 to
 h

el
p 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
be

st
 p

ra
ct

ic
e.

 
 Po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
da

ta
 a

nd
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sy

st
em

s 
ar

e 
cr

iti
ca

l t
o 

th
e 

pr
oc

es
s,

 a
s 

is
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
lia

is
on

 w
ith

 o
th

er
 a

ge
nc

ie
s 

an
d 

de
pa

rtm
en

ts
. 

 C
ur

re
nt

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 in

 p
la

ce
 a

re
; 

�
 

YS
D

S 
Eq

ua
l O

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 P

ol
ic

y 
�
 

Se
ni

or
 Y

ou
th

 &
 C

om
m

un
ity

 W
or

ke
r w

ith
 re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fo
r E

qu
al

 O
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
�
 

SE
N

D
 fu

nd
ed

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

fo
r 2

00
2-

03
 n

ea
rin

g 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
�
 

Sp
ec

ifi
c 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 p

ro
gr

am
m

es
 a

dd
re

ss
in

g 
ne

ed
s 

of
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 a
re

 a
sy

lu
m

 s
ee

ke
rs

 o
r r

ef
ug

ee
s 

�
 

En
ga

ge
m

en
t w

ith
 th

e 
C

on
ne

xi
on

s 
Se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
lo

ca
l v

ol
un

ta
ry

 a
nd

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t s

ec
to

r t
o 

id
en

tif
y 

lo
ca

l n
ee

ds
 

�
 

Bo
ro

ug
h 

D
is

ab
ilit

y 
O

ffi
ce

r f
ul

ly
 in

vo
lv

ed
 w

ith
 y

ou
th

 c
en

tre
 u

pg
ra

di
ng

 
�
 

TY
W

D
F 

qu
al

ity
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 in
iti

at
iv

e 
in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 lo
ca

l v
ol

un
ta

ry
 a

nd
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t s
ec

to
r 

�
 

Pa
rti

ci
pa

tio
n 

in
 th

e 
D

EA
L/

LL
ID

 In
cl

us
io

n 
Te

am
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 
 N

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ar

e;
 

�
 

SE
N

D
 fu

nd
ed

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

fo
r2

00
3-

04
 (a

w
ai

tin
g 

de
ta

ils
) 

�
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f t

he
 T

YW
D

F 
in

iti
at

iv
e 

�
 

Ad
op

tio
n 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

N
YA

 M
an

ag
em

en
t I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

Sy
st

em
 

�
 

Ap
pr

op
ria

te
 ro

ut
es

 fo
r y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e'

s 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tio

n 
 

Page 116



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
29

 

  Q
ua

lit
y 

&
 S

ta
ff 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
 So

m
e 

ke
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

st
af

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
re

 a
lre

ad
y 

ou
tli

ne
d 

w
ith

in
 o

th
er

 s
ec

tio
ns

 o
f t

hi
s 

pl
an

. 
Th

es
e 

ar
e;

 
 O

ut
co

m
es

 B
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
N

at
io

na
l Y

ou
th

 A
ge

nc
y 

St
an

da
rd

s 
of

 Y
ou

th
 W

or
k 

Pr
ov

is
io

n 
�
 

A 
de

fin
ed

 c
ur

ric
ul

um
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

do
cu

m
en

t 
�
 

A 
de

fin
ed

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
fra

m
ew

or
k 

fo
r y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

�
 

A 
St

af
f D

ev
el

op
m

en
t f

ra
m

ew
or

k 
do

cu
m

en
t 

 Th
er

e 
ar

e,
 h

ow
ev

er
, o

th
er

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 th

at
 c

on
tri

bu
te

 to
 th

is
 s

ec
tio

n 
w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
be

en
 e

nd
or

se
d 

as
 Y

SD
S 

pr
io

rit
ie

s.
 

Th
es

e 
ar

e;
 

 �
 

Pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il's
 "I

nv
es

to
r I

n 
Pe

op
le

" p
ro

ce
ss

 
�
 

C
om

po
ne

nt
 p

ar
t o

f D
EA

L 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
up

da
te

s 
on

  
¾
 

C
hi

ld
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
¾
 

H
ea

lth
 &

 S
af

et
y 

¾
 

Ed
uc

at
io

na
l R

es
id

en
tia

ls
 a

nd
 V

is
its

 
¾
 

D
at

a 
Pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

¾
 

Be
st

 V
al

ue
 

¾
 

D
ru

gs
 R

el
at

ed
 In

ci
de

nt
s 

¾
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

du
ca

tio
na

l N
ee

ds
 &

 D
is

ab
ilit

ie
s 

Ac
t  

 Sp
ec

ifi
c 

YS
D

S 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 fo

r 2
00

3-
04

, c
o-

or
di

na
te

d 
by

 th
e 

YS
D

S 
Se

ni
or

 M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

 o
r t

he
 T

ra
in

in
g,

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
Ev

al
ua

tio
n 

G
ro

up
, a

re
; 

 �
 

O
FS

TE
D

 In
sp

ec
tio

n 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

an
d 

Se
lf 

As
se

ss
m

en
t S

ch
ed

ul
e 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
�
 

D
et

ac
he

d 
W

or
k 

G
ui

de
lin

es
 

�
 

Tr
an

sf
or

m
in

g 
Yo

ut
h 

W
or

k 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t F

un
d 

St
ra

nd
s 

A 
& 

C
 p

ro
gr

am
m

es
 (s

in
gl

e 
st

ra
nd

 o
f f

un
di

ng
 2

00
3-

04
); 

¾
 

D
ev

el
op

in
g 

a 
'S

af
er

 Y
ou

th
 W

or
k 

Pr
ac

tic
es

 - 
Q

ua
lit

y 
St

an
da

rd
s 

Fr
am

ew
or

k'
 in

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

   
   

w
ith

 v
ol

un
ta

ry
 s

ec
to

r o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 

¾
 

Ap
pr

op
ria

te
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 p

ro
gr

am
m

es
 to

 s
up

po
rt 

th
is

 in
iti

at
iv

e 
 

Page 117



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
30

 

  M
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
Ev

al
ua

tio
n 

 In
 o

rd
er

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
YS

D
S 

m
ak

es
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t a
nd

 s
us

ta
in

ed
 m

ov
em

en
t o

n 
th

e 
pr

op
os

al
s 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
ab

ov
e 

it 
is

 e
ss

en
tia

l t
ha

t a
n 

ad
eq

ua
te

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

fra
m

ew
or

k 
is

 in
 p

la
ce

. 
 Th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 th
e 

YS
D

S 
Ac

tio
n 

Pl
an

 is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

w
or

k 
of

 th
e 

2 
op

er
at

io
na

l t
ea

m
s.

  E
ac

h 
te

am
 h

as
 it

s 
op

er
at

io
na

l p
la

n 
an

d 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
s 

to
 m

on
ito

r a
nd

 e
va

lu
at

e 
its

 p
ro

gr
es

s.
  I

n 
ad

di
tio

n 
th

er
e 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 a
 c

ro
ss

 te
am

 T
ra

in
in

g,
 M

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
G

ro
up

 w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

es
 p

ar
t-t

im
e 

st
af

f p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n.
 

 W
hi

ls
t t

he
 Y

SD
S 

SM
T 

re
gu

la
rly

 re
vi

ew
 th

e 
w

or
k 

it 
is

 im
po

rta
nt

 th
at

 a
 m

or
e 

ro
bu

st
 m

ec
ha

ni
sm

 is
 p

ut
 in

 p
la

ce
. 

 As
 a

 p
rio

rit
y 

fo
r 2

00
3-

04
 it

 is
 th

er
ef

or
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 th
at

 a
 fo

rm
al

 ti
m

et
ab

le
d 

fra
m

ew
or

k 
be

 p
ut

 in
 p

la
ce

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 
em

ph
as

is
 a

nd
 im

po
rta

nc
e 

is
 p

ut
 o

n 
th

e 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 a
ll 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 th

is
 p

la
n.

  T
he

 N
YA

 a
nd

 th
e 

As
so

ci
at

io
n 

of
 

Pr
in

ci
pa

l Y
ou

th
 &

 C
om

m
un

ity
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 w

ill 
be

 a
pp

ro
ac

he
d 

fo
r s

up
po

rt 
an

d 
gu

id
an

ce
 to

 e
xp

ed
ite

 th
is

 p
ro

po
sa

l. 
 Th

is
 w

ill 
in

cl
ud

e 
re

gu
la

r r
ep

or
tin

g 
to

 th
e 

LL
ID

 M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

, E
le

ct
ed

 M
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e 

bo
di

es
 a

nd
 fo

ru
m

s 
as

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

. 
 

Page 118



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
31

 

  C
on

ne
xi

on
s 

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 

 Ba
rk

in
g 

& 
D

ag
en

ha
m

 L
EC

P 
Pr

io
rit

ie
s 

 O
ve

r t
he

 la
st

 y
ea

r t
he

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 h
as

 g
ro

w
n 

fro
m

 s
tre

ng
th

 to
 s

tre
ng

th
.  

Th
e 

si
ze

 o
f t

he
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
, t

he
 d

iv
er

si
ty

 o
f n

ee
ds

, s
er

vi
ce

 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

an
d 

th
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 c
ha

lle
ng

es
 fa

ce
d 

by
 m

an
y 

of
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l A

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

Pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 h

av
e 

hi
gh

lig
ht

ed
 k

ey
 is

su
es

 fo
r 

it 
to

 ta
ck

le
 th

is
 y

ea
r. 

 A
s 

a 
Pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

, i
t h

as
 ta

ke
n 

on
 b

oa
rd

 m
an

y 
of

 th
e 

le
ss

on
s 

le
ar

nt
 o

ve
r t

he
 la

st
 y

ea
r a

nd
 in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 th

es
e 

in
to

 it
's

 p
la

ns
 fo

r t
he

 fu
tu

re
.  

 
 W

ith
in

 e
ac

h 
of

 th
e 

te
n 

Lo
nd

on
 b

or
ou

gh
s 

an
d 

ni
ne

 L
oc

al
 M

an
ag

em
en

t G
ro

up
 a

re
as

, a
 n

um
be

r o
f d

iff
er

en
t p

rio
rit

ie
s 

ex
is

t l
in

ke
d 

to
 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 a
nd

 th
e 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 p

ro
vi

si
on

; h
ow

ev
er

 th
e 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
as

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 th

e 
gu

id
an

ce
 a

re
 

sh
ar

ed
: 

 
� 

W
ith

in
 th

e 
co

nt
ex

t o
f a

 u
ni

ve
rs

al
 s

er
vi

ce
 fo

r a
ll 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 th
e 

LE
C

P 
w

ill 
st

riv
e 

to
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f 1
6-

18
 y

ea
r o

ld
s 

w
ho

 a
re

 n
ot

 e
ng

ag
ed

 in
 e

du
ca

tio
n,

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 o
r e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t. 

 
� 

It 
w

ill 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 it
's

 fu
ll 

ra
ng

e 
of

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 w
ho

 a
re

 a
t r

is
k 

of
 b

ec
om

in
g 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 o

ffe
nd

in
g 

be
ha

vi
ou

r t
he

re
by

 re
du

ci
ng

 th
e 

nu
m

be
rs

 o
f y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 b
ec

om
e 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 c

rim
in

al
 b

eh
av

io
ur

. 
 � 

It 
w

ill 
w

or
k 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

Lo
ca

l M
an

ag
em

en
t G

ro
up

s 
an

d 
lo

ca
l p

ar
tn

er
s 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

 s
ea

m
le

ss
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

 fo
r y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
m

ul
ti-

di
sc

ip
lin

ar
y 

te
am

 o
f P

er
so

na
l A

dv
is

er
s 

an
d 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
an

d 
re

le
va

nt
 jo

in
t w

or
ki

ng
 p

ro
to

co
ls

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ke

y 
ag

en
ci

es
. 

 � 
It 

w
ill 

st
riv

e 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 b
et

te
r o

ut
co

m
es

 fo
r y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

fro
m

 b
la

ck
 a

nd
 m

in
or

ity
 e

th
ni

c 
gr

ou
ps

 o
f y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e,

 w
ho

 a
re

 
ov

er
-re

pr
es

en
te

d 
in

 th
e 

N
EE

T 
ca

te
go

ry
. 

 
� 

It 
w

ill 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
an

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l M

an
ag

em
en

t G
ro

up
s 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ov

er
al

l e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
in

 
m

ee
tin

g 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
’s

 n
ee

ds
. 

     

Page 119



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
32

 

H
ow

 it
 w

ill 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

es
e 

ou
tc

om
es

 
 In

 2
00

2,
 th

e 
Lo

nd
on

 E
as

t C
on

ne
xi

on
s 

Pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 s

et
 it

s 
ro

ot
s 

fir
m

ly
 in

 th
e 

fra
m

ew
or

k 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e.
  T

hr
ou

gh
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l M

an
ag

em
en

t G
ro

up
s,

 th
e 

re
cr

ui
tm

en
t a

nd
 d

ep
lo

ym
en

t o
f o

ve
r 1

00
 n

ew
 P

er
so

na
l A

dv
is

er
s 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
Pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

, t
he

 
es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t o

f n
in

e 
lo

ca
l C

on
ne

xi
on

s 
ba

se
s,

 O
ne

 S
to

p 
Sh

op
s,

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 A
gr

ee
m

en
ts

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ke

y 
ag

en
ci

es
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

pr
om

ot
io

n 
ev

en
ts

, t
he

 C
on

ne
xi

on
s 

br
an

d 
is

 n
ow

 w
el

l r
ec

og
ni

se
d 

in
 th

e 
Pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

.  
A 

ra
ng

e 
of

 c
on

tra
ct

s 
an

d 
gr

an
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

w
ar

de
d 

fil
lin

g 
ga

ps
 in

 s
er

vi
ce

 d
el

iv
er

y 
fo

r y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
th

es
e 

w
ill 

be
gi

n 
to

 h
av

e 
a 

m
ar

ke
d 

im
pa

ct
 in

 
20

03
.  

In
 2

00
3,

 it
 w

ill 
se

ek
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 th
e 

ou
tc

om
es

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

 b
y:

 
 
� 

W
or

ki
ng

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

Lo
ca

l M
an

ag
em

en
t G

ro
up

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
ta

ilo
re

d 
to

 m
ee

t l
oc

al
 n

ee
d,

 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 b
y 

lo
ca

l p
ro

vi
de

rs
 a

nd
 li

nk
ed

 to
 lo

ca
l i

ni
tia

tiv
es

 a
nd

 p
rio

rit
ie

s.
 

 � 
En

ha
nc

in
g 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

th
ro

ug
h 

m
ul

ti-
di

sc
ip

lin
ar

y,
 m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 te

am
s 

of
 P

er
so

na
l A

dv
is

er
s 

de
liv

er
in

g 
a 

se
am

le
ss

 s
er

vi
ce

 
ac

ro
ss

 a
 ra

ng
e 

of
 a

ge
nc

ie
s 

w
or

ki
ng

 to
 e

nd
 th

e 
fra

gm
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
du

pl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 th
e 

‘B
rid

gi
ng

 th
e 

ga
p’

 re
po

rt.
 

 
� 

D
ev

ol
vi

ng
 m

or
e 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
to

 lo
ca

l b
as

ed
 d

el
iv

er
y 

en
su

rin
g 

th
at

 th
e 

de
pl

oy
m

en
t o

f C
on

ne
xi

on
s 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
ar

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 

ro
bu

st
 a

na
ly

si
s 

of
 n

ee
d 

an
d 

on
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

w
ith

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

 th
os

e 
w

ho
 a

re
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e,
 d

is
en

ga
ge

d 
or

 
at

 ri
sk

 o
f d

is
en

ga
gi

ng
. 

 
� 

C
on

tin
uo

us
ly

 e
ng

ag
in

g 
w

ith
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
 lo

ca
lly

 a
nd

 a
t P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 le

ve
l a

nd
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
ag

en
ci

es
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 th
ei

r 
ex

pe
rti

se
 a

nd
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

fo
rm

s 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 a
nd

 d
ire

ct
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 fu
tu

re
. 

 
� 

En
su

rin
g 

th
at

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
re

m
ai

n 
at

 th
e 

he
ar

t o
f t

he
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

t a
ll 

le
ve

ls
 a

nd
 th

at
 th

ei
r a

ct
iv

e 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t i
nf

or
m

s 
an

d 
di

re
ct

s 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

s 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

Pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
. 

 
� 

LE
C

P 
w

ill 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
to

 in
flu

en
ce

 a
nd

 m
od

er
ni

se
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e,

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 to

ge
th

er
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 y
ou

th
 

su
pp

or
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

th
at

 a
re

 re
le

va
nt

 to
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e’

s 
ne

ed
s 

to
da

y 
an

d 
ar

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

ba
se

d 
go

od
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

is
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d.
 

 
� 

It 
w

ill 
se

ek
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 s
er

vi
ce

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 is

 in
fo

rm
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
no

t b
y 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 in
st

itu
tio

ns
, 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
or

 p
ra

ct
iti

on
er

s 
an

d 
th

at
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

de
si

gn
ed

 to
 m

ee
t y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

at
 th

ei
r p

oi
nt

 o
f n

ee
d 

w
he

re
ve

r a
nd

 
w

he
ne

ve
r s

uc
h 

ne
ed

s 
ar

is
e.

 
   

Page 120



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
33

 

Pr
io

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 
 Al

l y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

13
–1

6 
ph

as
e 

w
ill 

ne
ed

 s
up

po
rt,

 a
dv

ic
e 

an
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
th

em
 to

 m
ak

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 a
nd

 
po

si
tiv

e 
ch

oi
ce

s 
ab

ou
t t

he
ir 

fu
tu

re
.  

Al
th

ou
gh

 a
 p

rim
ar

y 
fo

cu
s 

is
 o

n 
th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 th

e 
N

EE
T 

gr
ou

p,
 it

 is
 v

ita
l t

ha
t t

he
 n

ee
ds

 o
f y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

 w
ho

 a
re

 n
ot

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

as
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
an

d 
w

ho
 a

re
 m

or
e 

ab
le

 a
re

 a
ls

o 
m

et
, p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 in

 s
ch

oo
ls

 a
nd

 c
ol

le
ge

s.
 

 It 
is

 c
le

ar
 h

ow
ev

er
 fr

om
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
ca

rri
ed

 o
ut

 in
 2

00
2/

20
03

 a
nd

 fr
om

 th
e 

lo
ca

l p
la

ns
 th

at
 th

e 
in

di
ca

tio
n 

of
 n

ee
d 

in
 e

ac
h 

bo
ro

ug
h 

di
ffe

rs
 s

lig
ht

ly
 a

cc
or

di
ng

 to
 th

e 
et

hn
ic

 g
ro

up
s 

re
pr

es
en

te
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h.
  B

ro
ad

ly
 s

pe
ak

in
g 

th
e 

pr
io

rit
y 

gr
ou

ps
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

13
-1

6 
gr

ou
ps

 w
ill 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
 

 
� 

Yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 w
ho

 a
re

 in
 c

ar
e 

or
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Lo
ca

l A
ut

ho
rit

y.
 

 � 
Yo

un
g 

of
fe

nd
er

s 
or

 th
os

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

as
 b

ei
ng

 a
t r

is
k 

of
 o

ffe
nd

in
g.

 
 � 

Yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 w
ho

 a
re

 a
t r

is
k 

of
 b

ei
ng

 e
xc

lu
de

d 
or

 h
av

e 
be

en
 e

xc
lu

de
d 

fro
m

 s
ch

oo
ls

. 
 
� 

Yo
un

g 
un

ac
co

m
pa

ni
ed

 re
fu

ge
es

 a
nd

 a
sy

lu
m

 s
ee

ke
rs

. 
 � 

Yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 o
th

er
 k

ey
 a

ge
nc

ie
s 

as
 b

ei
ng

 a
t r

is
k 

du
e 

to
 s

pe
ci

fic
 c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s 

w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 b

e 
pr

es
en

t w
ith

in
 

th
ei

r h
om

es
. 

 In
 2

00
3/

20
04

, L
EC

P 
w

ill 
w

or
k 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

Lo
ca

l M
an

ag
em

en
t G

ro
up

s 
to

 d
ep

lo
y 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
lo

ca
l i

nt
er

ve
nt

io
n 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 o
th

er
 k

ey
 a

ge
nc

ie
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 C

on
ne

xi
on

s 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

ca
n 

be
 d

ep
lo

ye
d 

fle
xi

bl
y 

to
 m

ee
t t

he
 n

ee
ds

 
of

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ho
 fa

ll 
in

to
 th

es
e 

ca
te

go
rie

s.
 

 Th
e 

ob
je

ct
iv

e 
w

ill 
be

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

in
 th

is
 a

ge
 g

ro
up

 d
o 

no
t g

o 
on

 to
 b

ec
om

e 
N

EE
T 

po
st

 1
6 

an
d 

re
ce

iv
e 

th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 a

dv
ic

e 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t t
o 

re
m

ai
n 

in
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

or
 g

o 
on

 to
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t o

r t
ra

in
in

g.
 

 C
on

ne
xi

on
s 

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

 Ba
rk

in
g 

& 
D

ag
en

ha
m

 Y
SD

S 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

is
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:
 

y 
H

ea
d 

of
 Y

ou
th

 S
up

po
rt 

& 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

er
vi

ce
 is

 C
ha

ir 
of

 th
e 

Lo
ca

l M
an

ag
em

en
t G

ro
up

 
y 

H
ea

d 
of

 Y
ou

th
 S

up
po

rt 
& 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
er

vi
ce

 is
 s

ub
st

itu
te

 (L
EA

) B
oa

rd
 M

em
be

r -
 M

em
be

r i
s 

H
ea

d 
of

 L
ife

lo
ng

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
an

d 
In

cl
us

io
n 

D
iv

is
io

n 
y 

H
ea

d 
of

 Y
ou

th
 S

up
po

rt 
& 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
er

vi
ce

 is
 M

em
be

r o
f t

he
 C

on
ne

xi
on

s 
Ea

st
 T

ha
m

es
 O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 S
ub

-C
om

m
itt

ee
 

  

Page 121



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
34

 

 C
on

ne
xi

on
s 

Te
am

 S
tr

uc
tu

re
 

 
                        

C
on

ne
xi

on
s 

Lo
ca

l M
an

ag
er

Pe
rs

on
al

 A
dv

is
er

 
M

an
ag

er
 

B
ar

ki
ng

 &
 D

ag
en

ha
m

 
Lo

ca
l M

an
ag

em
en

t 
G

ro
up

 

H
ea

d 
of

 Y
ou

th
 S

up
po

rt
 &

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

er
vi

ce
 

Pe
rs

on
al

 A
dv

is
er

s 
 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 

Pe
rs

on
al

 A
dv

is
er

s 
(S

ec
on

de
d 

to
 H

os
t 

A
ge

nc
y)

 

LE
C

P 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 

Page 122



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
35

 

Lo
ca

l D
el

iv
er

y 
Pl

an
 P

rio
rit

ie
s 

(2
00

2-
03

) 
 Ba

rk
in

g 
an

d 
D

ag
en

ha
m

 h
as

 a
 tr

ac
k 

re
co

rd
 o

f p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
or

k 
ac

ro
ss

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
in

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

pa
rti

cu
la

rly
 in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

se
ct

or
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

.  
It 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 in
 re

ce
ip

t o
f n

um
er

ou
s 

ex
te

rn
al

ly
 fu

nd
ed

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f E
du

ca
tio

n,
 A

rts
 &

 L
ib

ra
rie

s 
as

 w
el

l a
s 

ot
he

r b
ro

ad
-b

as
ed

 in
iti

at
iv

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
so

ci
al

 
in

cl
us

io
n.

  T
hi

s 
ha

s 
al

lo
w

ed
 th

e 
in

tro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

C
on

ne
xi

on
s 

Se
rv

ic
e 

to
 b

en
ef

it 
fro

m
 e

xi
st

in
g 

ne
tw

or
ks

 a
nd

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
or

k 
an

d 
cr

ea
te

d 
th

e 
op

po
rtu

ni
ty

 to
 b

ui
ld

 o
n 

ex
is

tin
g 

go
od

 p
ra

ct
ic

e.
 

  Pr
io

rit
y 

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 LE

C
P 

Ta
rg

et
 

 

 • 
YP

 w
ho

 a
re

 te
en

ag
e 

m
ot

he
rs

 a
nd

 fi
rs

t 
tim

e 
te

en
ag

e 
fa

th
er

s 

 In
cr

ea
se

 b
y 

5%
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 o
f 1

6-
19

 y
r o

ld
 m

ot
he

rs
 in

 e
du

ca
tio

n,
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t o

r 
tra

in
in

g 
 

 • 
YP

 a
t r

is
k 

of
 e

xc
lu

si
on

 fr
om

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
 

 A 
10

%
 re

du
ct

io
n 

of
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

le
av

in
g 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
an

d 
tra

in
in

g 
to

 b
ec

om
e 

N
EE

T 
 

 • 
YP

 w
ho

 a
re

 re
fu

ge
es

 a
nd

 
un

ac
co

m
pa

ni
ed

 a
sy

lu
m

 s
ee

ke
rs

 

 An
 in

cr
ea

se
 o

f 1
0%

 in
 n

um
be

rs
 o

f y
ou

ng
 re

fu
ge

es
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

in
g 

in
 e

du
ca

tio
n,

 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t o
r t

ra
in

in
g 

 
 • 

YP
 w

ho
 a

re
 d

is
af

fe
ct

ed
 

 A 
10

%
 re

du
ct

io
n 

of
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

le
av

in
g 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
an

d 
tra

in
in

g 
to

 b
ec

om
e 

N
EE

T 
  

 • 
YP

 w
ith

 o
ffe

nd
in

g 
be

ha
vi

ou
r o

r a
t r

is
k 

of
 

of
fe

nd
in

g 

 At
 le

as
t 9

0%
 o

f y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
su

pe
rv

is
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

YO
T 

in
 e

du
ca

tio
n,

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t o
r 

tra
in

in
g 

by
 2

00
4 

 
 Es

ta
bl

is
h 

a 
ne

tw
or

k 
of

 C
on

ne
xi

on
s 

O
ne

 
St

op
 S

ho
ps

, S
at

el
lit

e 
an

d 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Po

in
ts

 
 

 A 
ro

llin
g 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

st
ar

tin
g 

Ye
ar

 1
 

Page 123



BL
/Y

SD
SP

la
n/

Ja
n0

3 
36

 

G
lo

ss
ar

y 
 A

PY
C

O
 

 
 

As
so

ci
at

io
n 

of
 P

rin
ci

pa
l Y

ou
th

 &
 C

om
m

un
ity

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 
B

A
D

 Y
ou

th
 F

or
um

  
Ba

rk
in

g 
& 

D
ag

en
ha

m
 Y

ou
th

 F
or

um
 

B
IP

 
 

 
 

Be
ha

vi
ou

r I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

C
IA

S 
 

 
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 In

sp
ec

tio
n 

& 
Ad

vi
so

ry
 S

er
vi

ce
 

C
R

B
 

 
 

 
C

rim
in

al
 R

ec
or

ds
 B

ur
ea

u 
D

EA
L 

 
 

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f E

du
ca

tio
n,

 A
rts

 &
 L

ib
ra

rie
s 

ED
P 

 
 

 
Ed

uc
at

io
n 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
Ei

C
 

 
 

 
Ex

ce
lle

nc
e 

in
 C

iti
es

 
ES

F 
 

 
 

Eu
ro

pe
an

 S
oc

ia
l F

un
d 

G
C

SE
  

 
 

G
en

er
al

 C
er

tif
ic

at
e 

of
 S

ec
on

da
ry

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
LA

 
 

 
 

Lo
ca

l A
ut

ho
rit

y 
LB

B
D

  
 

 
Lo

nd
on

 B
or

ou
gh

 o
f B

ar
ki

ng
 &

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 

LE
A

  
 

 
 

Lo
ca

l E
du

ca
tio

n 
Au

th
or

ity
 

LE
C

P 
 

 
 

Lo
nd

on
 E

as
t C

on
ne

xi
on

s 
Pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 
LL

ID
 

 
 

 
Li

fe
lo

ng
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

an
d 

In
cl

us
io

n 
D

iv
is

io
n 

LM
G

 
 

 
 

Lo
ca

l M
an

ag
em

en
t G

ro
up

 
M

V 
 

 
 

M
ille

nn
iu

m
 V

ol
un

te
er

s 
N

EE
T 

 
 

 
N

ot
 in

 E
du

ca
tio

n,
 E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t o

r T
ra

in
in

g 
N

R
F 

 
 

 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 R
en

ew
al

 F
un

d 
N

YA
 

 
 

 
N

at
io

na
l Y

ou
th

 A
ge

nc
y 

O
FS

TE
D

 
 

 
O

ffi
ce

 fo
r S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 in
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

O
N

S 
 

 
 

O
ffi

ce
 fo

r N
at

io
na

l S
ta

tis
tic

s 
PA

YP
  

 
 

Po
si

tiv
e 

Ac
tiv

iti
es

 fo
r Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

SE
N

D
  

 
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

du
ca

tio
na

l N
ee

ds
 a

nd
 D

is
ab

ilit
y 

Ac
t 

SR
B

 
 

 
 

Si
ng

le
 R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

Bu
dg

et
 

TY
W

D
F 

 
 

Tr
an

sf
or

m
in

g 
Yo

ut
h 

W
or

k 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t F

un
d 

U
EL

 
 

 
 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 o

f E
as

t L
on

do
n 

Vo
l S

ec
to

r 
 

 
Vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

Se
ct

or
 

YO
T 

 
 

 
Yo

ut
h 

O
ffe

nd
in

g 
Te

am
 

YS
D

S 
 

 
 

Yo
ut

h 
Su

pp
or

t &
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

er
vi

ce
 

    

Page 124



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

29 APRIL 2003 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF HOUSING & HEALTH 
 

APPEAL SYSTEM - HOUSING ALLOCATION OFFERS 
AND HOMELESSNESS OFFERS  
 

FOR DECISION 
 
 

This report deals with the issue of appeals against offers under Part VI (Housing Register 
& Housing Transfers) and Part VII of the Housing Act 1996 (Homeless applicants), as 
amended by the Homelessness Act 2002. 
 
Summary  
 
This paper proposes an offer appeal system for permanent offers of accommodation. The 
2002 Homelessness Act granted a further right of review for homeless applicants to those 
allowed under the 1996 Housing Act. This now includes appeals against the suitability of 
offers of accommodation.  
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is recommended to agree: 
 

1. That Rehousing Team Leaders for each Community Housing Partnership decide 
appeals made against offers of accommodation for transfer and waiting list 
applicants. 

 
2. That the authority to deal with appeals against permanent offers of accommodation 

to homeless applicants be delegated to the existing section 202 Review Panel. 
 

3. 3.That the Principle Advice Manager chairs the section 202 Review Panel to decide 
upon the suitability of permanent offers made to homeless applicants. 

 
Reason 
 
The appeal system will allow officers to make decisions with the appropriate delegated 
authority. Other items in the Report relate to decisions reserved for the Executive, which 
affect all Council wards.  
 
Contact: 
Anthony Alexander 
 
 
 
 

Community Housing 
Manager 
 
 

 
Tel:  020 8227 2210 
Fax: 020 8227 2841 
Minicom: 020 8227 2685 
E-mail aalexander@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

 
1. Background 
 
1.1 A report was presented to the Executive on 28th January 2003 about the changes 

required to conclude the implementation of the Allocations Policy Review. (See 
Appendix A) 

AGENDA ITEM 8

Page 125



 
1.2 The Executive agreed all but one of the recommendations. A reservation existed 

about the proposal made to deal with appeals against offers of permanent 
accommodation.  

 
1.3 It was requested that further options for a system of appeal be prepared and 

presented back to the Executive. The Executive asked that the appeal system 
should involve either Members or Officers.  

 
1.4 Consideration was given to the likely future proposed development of the allocation 

service as it is decentralised to the Community Housing Partnerships, (CHP).  It 
was decided consequently that officers should administer the appeal system 
proposed in order to ensure the greatest responsiveness and flexibility.  

 
1.5 In part this conclusion was also reached on the basis of recommendations in the 

Local Government Act 2000 which is that decision making of operational matters 
should be delegated to officers as a way of ensuring more efficient decision making 
within policy guidelines. Adopting the proposed approach of delegated decision 
making brings this appeal process into line with other appeal processes, which are 
already delegated, to officers.  

 
1.6 The key elements of the offer appeal system are that the officer hearing the appeals 

should not take part in making the original offer and should have sufficient seniority. 
 
1.7 The appeal systems proposed are considered to offer a sound way forward. They fit 

in with the changes in the structure of allocation service delivery proposed for the 
new Community Housing Partnerships. 

 
1.8 In preparing the proposal a further anomaly was identified. This was the lack of 

delegated authority of officers to deal with a new category of appeal granted for 
Homeless applicants by the Homelessness Act 2002. This paper seeks to resolve 
this anomaly. 

 
2. Housing Register and Housing Transfers - Appeals against Offers of 

Accommodation (1996 Housing Act Part VI) 
 
2.1 At the present time most Housing Register and Housing Transfer applicants receive 

two offers of accommodation.  
 
2.2 Letting officers, make offers, with reference to the Allocations Policy Procedures 

and Practice. 
 
2.3 The few appeals that arise are addressed informally by senior allocation staff. 
 
2.4 In a forthcoming restructuring of the allocation service into new Community Housing 

Partnership areas a new senior position of Rehousing Team Leader is being 
created for each CHP allocation area.  

 
2.5 The Team Leader Rehousing will have overall responsibility for allocation activity 

within the new CHP areas. 
 

Page 126



2.6 It is proposed that the Rehousing Team Leader post should hear appeals against 
offers made. The one exception would be if the Rehousing Team Leader has taken 
part in the allocation. In this situation a Rehousing Team Leader colleague in an 
adjacent CHP would deal with the appeal.  

 
2.7 In practice the appeal heard would be against suspension of the application.  The 

appeal process would therefore first apply in respect of a second offer. As part of 
the appeal process the first offer would also be reviewed. This would limit the 
volume of appeals heard. 

 
2.8 There are two main outcomes of the appeal process.  
 

• If the appeal application were successful the applicant would have further 
offer entitlement. 

 
• If the appeal were unsuccessful the application would be suspended for a 

period of a year. 
 
2.9 If an applicant were not satisfied with the outcome of this appeal then the Executive 

could consider one of the following options  
 
• A next final stage of appeal would be to the Community Housing Manager for 

the relevant Community Housing Partnership area. 
 
• Alternatively an appeal against an offer could be made through the 

mechanism of a stage 3 Corporate Complaint system.  
 
3. Homeless Persons - Appeals against Offers of Accommodation (1996 Housing 

Act Part VII) 
 
3.1  Homeless applicants are entitled to one offer of permanent accommodation.  

Lettings staff based outside the Homeless Persons section make the offers to 
homeless applicants. 

 
3.2.  The Housing Act 1996 originally introduced a general right to request a review 

under section 202 of the Act.  This right allows a homeless applicant to request a 
review of a Council’s decision in any aspect of the assessment or resolution of their 
homeless application. 

 
3.3  An existing review mechanism exists to consider these reviews under this original 

1996 Act called a section 202 Review Panel. This is made up of the Principle 
Advice Manager and the General Manager (Service Development).  

 
3.4  The Homelessness Act 2002 revised the 1996 Housing Act. One key change made 

was to alter the review process for homeless applicants in respect of offers of 
accommodation made. Applicants are now allowed to accept an offer of 
accommodation and then challenge its suitability.  

 
3.5  A large and growing volume of permanent offers are made to Homeless families. 

There is therefore potential for future growth in the volume of appeals against the 
suitability of offers. 

 

Page 127



3.6  Once a review around the suitability of accommodation is requested a decision 
must be made on whether or not the offer was a ‘reasonable’ one given the 
circumstances of the homeless applicant. 

 
3.7 In line with the review process generally the Homelessness Act 2002 specifies that 

the officer hearing the appeal is of sufficient seniority and not involved in making the 
original decision, (i.e. offer made). 

 
3.8 It is recommended that the existing section 202 Review Panel hear these appeals. 

This is because as part of the appeal process a good awareness of homelessness 
practice and procedure is needed. This review is best conducted therefore within 
the Homeless Person and Advice section.  

 
3.9 The section 202 Review Panel to hear appeals on the suitability of offers should 

therefore comprise the Principle Advice Manager together with one other manager 
from the Homeless Person and Advice sections.  

 
3.10 The Executive will need to delegate the authority to this section 202 Review Panel 

to hear this category of appeal. As a standing panel they will have the capacity to 
ensure that appeals are addressed speedily within the statutory guidelines. 

 
3.11 The section 202 Review Panel in hearing appeals would have the objectivity said to 

be a requirement under the detailed provisions of the Homelessness Act 2002. 
 
3.12 There are two possible outcomes of this appeal process. 
 

• If the appeal is not upheld and the offer is considered reasonable the local 
authority will have discharged it duty towards the homeless applicant. The 
only other appeal then is on a point of law to the County Court.  

 
• If the appeal is upheld the homeless applicant will be entitled to a further offer 

of permanent accommodation. 
 
Background Papers used in the preparation of this report. 

• Housing Allocations Policies and Practices Document 
• Homelessness Act 2002  
• Homelessness and Allocations – Legal Action Group (A. Arden and C. Hunter) 

Page 128



APPENDIX A 
THE EXECUTIVE 

 
28 JANUARY 2003 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF HOUSING & HEALTH 

 
ALLOCATIONS POLICY REVIEW: OUTSTANDING 
MATTERS FOR DECISION CONSULTATION AND 
IMPLEMENTATION 
 

FOR DECISION 

This report addresses a number of outstanding matters affecting the Council in the revision 
and review of its rehousing service provision. 
 
Summary  
 
This report draws together a series of outstanding items for decision and consideration. 
These need resolution before final revision and implementation of the new Housing 
Allocations Policy can proceed. Included within this paper is feedback on the outcomes of 
recent consultation, the proposals to advise members on the operation of the new policy 
and a provisional timetable for the launch of the new Allocations Policy.  
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is recommended to consider: 
 

1. The outcomes of consultation on the new points prioritisation scheme. 
2. The proposed date for the introduction of the new allocation policy. 
3. The proposals suggested for briefing members on the operation of the new allocation 

policy 
 
The Executive is recommended to agree: 
 

1. That nominations to Registered Social Landlords count as formal offers.  
2. The establishment of an appeal mechanism to determine if offers made to applicants 

are ‘reasonable’. (i.e. in accordance with Council policy). 
3. Enhanced provision within the Housing Allocations Policy for children leaving the 

Council’s care where a need for social housing has been assessed. 
4. An annual review of the number of lettings made under the ‘children leaving care’ 

provisions alongside the general volume of annual lettings. 
5. The proposal to explore choice-based lettings options for the council. 

 
Reason 
 
The prioritisation scheme will produce a more transparent allocation process.  Other items 
in the Report relate to decisions reserved for the Executive, which affect all Council wards.  
 
Contact: 
Anthony Alexander 
 
 
 

 
Community Housing 
Manager 
 
 

 
Tel:  020 8227 2210 
Fax: 020 8227 2841 
Minicom: 020 8227 2685 
E-mail aalexander@lbbd.gov.uk 

Page 129



 
1. Background 
 
1.1 A review of the Housing Allocations Policy began originally in October 1999. The 

review period is about to be drawn to a closure prior to full implementation of the 
new policy. 

 
1.2  During the course of this review a number of changes have been made to the 

allocations policy and procedure with the agreement of the Executive. A series of 
further changes are proposed as part of this paper to facilitate the operation of the 
new policy. 

 
1.3   A key final change proposed has been around the scheme for awarding points to 

applicants and the merging of the current separate lists for homelessness cases, 
housing register applicants and transfer applicants. 

 
1.4  The new revised points prioritisation scheme (Scheme agreed by Executive 19/3/02 

attached as APPENDIX A) introduces one common list with bands into which all the 
above categories of applicant are placed.  

 
1.5   As part of the review process consultation with an extensive range of key 

stakeholders has taken place. This feedback from the most recent consultation is 
presented. The proposals for taking forward the review are set out in this paper.   

 
1.6  A series of other additional proposals supplementary to the main one are included 

within this paper.  Including some outline of the council’s present position in 
respect of the recent Government initiative of choice based letting schemes. 

 
2.  Outcomes of Consultation 
 
2.1   There has been public consultation on the changes proposed to the points 

prioritisation scheme under the revised Allocation Policy.  In the new scheme the 
transfer waiting list and transfer lists are effectively combined with the creation of a 
4 band system into which all applicants including homelessness cases are listed.  

 
2.2  Included as part of a comprehensive consultation on this scheme publicity articles 

were issued in Spotlight (August 2002), The Citizen (June 2002) and the Members 
bulletin (June 2002).  Consultation was also undertaken with tenants’ 
representatives. 

 
2.3   In addition to the articles published leaflets and posters were created for 

distribution setting out the proposed changes to the prioritisation and points 
scheme.  These were displayed in the Area Housing Offices and other public 
buildings such as Libraries across the borough. 

 
2.4 The public was advised to present comments on the points prioritisation scheme 

by a deadline of 30th September 2002. 
 
2.5    There were just five responses received in different formats to the consultation 

exercise. These raised a range of issues varying from the impact of the banding 
system through to the process of implementation of the new policy. The issues 
raised were acknowledged and addressed by officers. 

Page 130



 
3. Members Briefing on the new allocation policy 
 
3.1     As a first part of the briefing for members an article will be placed in the  members’ 

bulletin setting out the details of the proposed new prioritisation scheme.  
 
3.2      In addition to this formal briefing sessions will be offered to members to work 

through the proposed operation of the new scheme. This is to assist Members in 
responding to enquiries made at their surgeries. 

 
3.3     As part of this briefing a pack will be prepared that includes relevant key 

paperwork (e.g. applicant guides) that are being produced to support the 
introduction of the new scheme. This information will also be provided to the 
Borough’s Members of Parliament. 

 
3.4     An objective will be to hold these briefing sessions prior to final implementation of 

the new policy  
 
4.     Introduction and Implementation of the new allocation policy  
 
4.1  The new points prioritisation scheme simplifies the assessment process with all 

applicants completing one common application form and being entered into one of 
several bands on one combined list.   

 
4.2     There are a series of remaining actions that are required before implementation of 

the new allocation policy can take place. These include the following key actions.  
 

• Agreement on the details of an incentive scheme to increase the supply of 
specified properties (e.g. Large or Disabled units) within the housing stock. 

 
• The collation of additional information from existing applicants to administer the 

new points scheme. 
 

• Changes to the computer system in order to run the new prioritisation scheme. 
 
4.3   A letter setting out the general details of the new banding scheme will be provided 

to applicants on the Housing register and the transfer list. This will give an outline 
of the new banding scheme. It is hoped to be able to send this letter by May 2003. 

 
4.4   A second letter to applicants will give a specific indication of the impact on their 

applications, their revised points total, and how it will affect their prospects for 
rehousing. 

 
4.5 It is anticipated that the new prioritisation scheme will come into operation in 

approximately June 2003. 
 
5.      Registered Social Landlords Nominations 
 
5.1   At the moment when applicants on the waiting or transfer list are nominated to a 

Registered Social Landlord and receive an offer of accommodation it does not 
count against their tally of offers. 

 

Page 131



5.2   Applicants may refuse the nomination made and still be eligible to their quota of 
offers.  

 
5.3   It is proposed that in future nominations to RSL count as offers against their tally. 

This will enable the council to make the best use of the diminishing supply of the 
available to let properties. 

 
5.4  If the Executive agrees this change our RSL partners would be consulted on the 

proposed change.  
 
6.      Allocations Offer Appeal Mechanism  
 
6.1  The Homelessness Act 2002 made it necessary to establish an appeal mechanism 

for offers of property made as part of the allocations process 
 
6.2   Applicants who were dissatisfied that an offer made was a ‘reasonable’ one, with 

regard to their assessed need, would be able to make a formal appeal. This would 
be made to a person other than the original allocation officer. 

 
6.3   A number of possible grounds for appeal could exist including around the issue of 

medical assessment, the condition of the property, bedroom size and issues of 
personal safety, in respect of management transfer cases. 

 
6.4   Appeals would need to be dealt with speedily to ensure that offers of 

accommodation made were not kept open for long periods affecting the 
turnaround times of empty properties. 

 
6.5   It is proposed that a formal mechanism for dealing with appeals against offers of 

accommodation be established.  Several options are set out for Members to 
consider. 
 
• As indicated in an earlier paper of 29th October 2002 to the Executive the 

Community Housing Partnership (CHP) Board Members might have a role in 
dealing with appeals. 

 
• Alternatively as the separate staff structures of the different CHP areas develop 

a senior officer in an adjacent CHP area could deal with appeals. 
 

• A final option is that Members deal with appeals with the support of officers. 
 

6.6  The recommended option is that a senior officer in an adjacent CHP area hears 
appeals.  In addition to this senior officer having the detailed experience of the 
housing stock, policies and procedures  further key benefits are that they would 
guarantee a degree of independence, address confidentiality matters and be able to 
respond more swiftly than a CHP Board or Members panel.  

 
6.7 This provision of appeals being undertaken by a senior officer would allow for a 

flexible response to any future potential growth of appeals.  
 
 
 
 

Page 132



7.      Additional provision for children leaving the Council’s care 
 
7.1  An arrangement exists between the Housing and Health and the Social Services 

departments to jointly assess the housing needs of young people leaving care. 
 
7.2   At the present time it has been agreed that a maximum of 15 units be allocated to 

care leavers following this assessment process. 
 
7.3  In the two full years to date 2000/01 and 2001/02 the quota set has not been 

exceeded.  
 
7.4  The scheme has proved successful insofar as of the 41 tenancies created 38 have 

been sustained 
 
7.5  The Children and Families Division of Social Services have indicated that the 

present quota set will not be adequate to meet projected demand both in the 
current year 2002/03 and the following year 2003/04. 

 
7.6  The main cause of the increase of demand has been the responsibility the council 

has had to assume for unaccompanied children who have entered the country who 
have been granted leave to remain in the UK. 

 
7.7  Once these unaccompanied children reach the age of 17/18 they have to be treated 

in the same way as native care leavers. 
 
7.8  An estimate provided by the Asylum Seekers team indicates that approximately 15 

of these additional care leavers will become eligible for housing this year. 
 
7.9  In view of the Council’s corporate parent responsibility towards children leaving its 

care and to ensure consistency of response the same provision of accommodation 
via the Allocations Policy should be made to this category of care leaver.  

 
7.10  In order to facilitate this the existing quota for care leavers would need to be raised 

from the present level of 15 units to 30. 
 
7.11  As in the existing system the assessment process would need to be satisfied with 

the young person demonstrating that they were able to live independently with an 
appropriate package of support being provided.  

 
7.12   To ensure that these applications receive adequate priority applications will be 

placed in Band B of the new Housing allocations prioritisation scheme, as agreed 
by the Executive on 19th March 2002.  

 
8.    Annual Review of Lettings 
 
8.1  Under the new Housing Allocations Policy it is proposed that an annual report on 

lettings be made to Members via Members Matters.  This will set out the overall 
volume of lettings made and how they are apportioned by category. (e.g. Transfer, 
Waiting List or other special category such as key worker or care leaver) 

 
8.2    This report would allow members to see how the outcomes of allocation 

performance matched against the agreed targets for specific allocation groups. 

Page 133



 
8.3 This report would be made to the Executive in the first quarter of each allocation 

year in either May or June to allow opportunity for collation of the lettings 
outcomes for the pre-ceding year. 

 
8.4 This would also provide useful information to Members on lettings patterns and 

stock availability. 
 
9.    Choice Based Lettings 
 
9.1   As the allocation policy review is drawn to a close it is proposed to extend the terms 

of a separately conducted overlapping review on choice-based lettings. This is the 
Government’s preferred way for local authorities to carry out lettings in future.  

  
9.2   The purpose of choice-based lettings schemes is to promote greater applicant and 

customer choice. This accords with the Government’s broader agenda of 
modernising public services. 

 
9.3   The principles of choice based lettings schemes can be set out as follows, 
 

• Initiative taken by customers 
 
• Market information supplied to customers 
 
• Property and neighbourhood information for customers 
 
• Systems for vulnerable households 
 
• Selection and eligibility criteria (i.e. need) 

 
• Quality of communications between customers and organisations 

 
9.4  The Government has signalled that 25% of local authorities should have choice-

based lettings schemes by 2005 and 100% by 2010. 
 
9.5   The outcomes of lessons learnt from a series of choice-based lettings pilots has 

recently been released in a guide for social landlords. The government proposes 
to release a good practice guide on choice based lettings in the latter part of 2003.  

 
9.6  The design of choice-based lettings schemes is aimed to give greater 

transparency in the way the lettings process works.  A series of potential benefits 
can derive as a consequence of such schemes. These include 

 
• empowering residents  by giving them greater involvement in the 

management of their rehousing application.  
 
• freeing up staff time in the management of the letting system hence staff 

resources. 
 
• reducing the volume of  members enquiries as communication around 

lettings is improved. 
 

Page 134



9.7   The council has already taken an active interest in the choice based scheme run 
by Newham Council, the East London Lettings Company.  

 
9.8    It is proposed within the next nine months to explore how choice based lettings 

might be introduced in Barking and Dagenham in a manner compatible with the 
new decentralised structures of the Community Housing Partnerships.   

 
9.9   This will consider a range of options for taking forward the choice-based lettings 

scheme. Included will be an assessment of whether to join the choice- based 
scheme run by the East London Lettings Company.   

 
10.   Consultation 
 
10.1   Consultation would be required with RSLs about the proposals to make 

nominations count against an applicant’s formal offer quota. 
 
11. Links to Corporate Agenda and Justification for the Proposals 
 
11.1 The new points prioritisation system will make the allocations scheme more 

transparent in operation thus meeting with the Council’s priority of developing 
rights and responsibilities. 

 
11.2   The proposal to monitor lettings and report formally to the Executive will support 

the Council’s equalities agenda in ensuring fairness and consistency in the 
operation of the allocations policy. 

 
11.3   The enhanced provision of units for care leavers will reduce the incidence of 

homelessness for this vulnerable group of young people and promote social 
inclusion. 

 
 
 
 
Background Papers used in the preparation of this report. 

• Housing Allocations Policies and Practices Document 
• Initiatives to raise void performance 
• Report to Housing Allocations Working Party 29/2/2000 
• Report to the Allocations Working Party 18th October 1999 
• Report to the Executive 19/03/2002 
• Housing Green Paper ‘Quality and Choice – A Decent Home For All’    
• DETR and DSS 2000.  
•  How to Choose Choice – Lessons from the first year of the ODPM’s CBLs Pilot 

Schemes (A Guide for Social Landlords). 
 

Page 135



Page 136

This page is intentionally left blank



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

29 APRIL 2003 
 

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE  
 

AUDIT OF CHILD PROTECTION SERVICES: LAMING 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

FOR DECISION 

This report presents the contents of a self audit, as required following the publication of the 
Laming Report into the death of Victoria Climbie, prior to its submission to the Department 
of Health. 
 
Summary 
 
Following the publication of the Laming Report into the tragic death of Victoria Climbie, the 
Government is taking steps to ensure quick, significant and sustained improvement in child 
protection services.  As part of that process all Local Authorities have been asked to 
complete a self audit of their services.  Similar audits are required of other agencies such 
as the Police and Health Services and we are co-ordinating this with colleagues locally. 
 
A copy of the draft response to the Audit requirement is attached as Appendix 1.  Although 
completed primarily by Social Services staff, it is important to understand that the Audit is 
one of the services provided by the Council as a whole and to links with other agencies.  
Standard One, relating to the referral of cases for example, includes the appropriate 
training of all front line staff across the Council.  Standard Seven relates to the overall 
governance and scrutiny of policy and practice, particularly by Members and Chief Officers.
 
Recommendation / Reason 
 
The Executive is recommended to note the content of the self audit and action plan and to 
approve it being submitted to the Department of Health.  The Executive is also asked to 
note that the Chief Executive, the Executive Director for Health & Social Care and the 
Director of Education, Arts and Libraries are planning an audit of how the children are 
protected during the late summer in support of the Area Child Protection Committee. 
 
Contact Officer: 
Bob Kedward 

 
Head of Children & 
Family Services 
 

 
Telephone: 020 8227 2233 
Fax: 020 8227 2241 
E-mail: bob.Kedward@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

 
1. Background 
 

1.1 The paper attached in Appendix 1 has been developed by a Working 
Group including staff from Legal Services, Housing and Education and 
has been circulated to members of the Area Child Protection Committee 
for comment.  It has involved lengthy discussions and evidence 
gathering, albeit within the short time period allowed.  The Working 
Group also involved a consultant external to the Council to ensure an 
element of challenge to the discussion.  Discussions with other 
Authorities has indicated that our process has been robust. 

AGENDA ITEM 9

Page 137



 
1.2 The paper is in the format required by the Department of Health.  

Although lengthy and not easy to read, its approach is the same for each 
area it covers.  Firstly, the Laming Report’s recommendation is stated.  
This is then given as a standard against which we are asked to assess 
our service.  Each of these standards is then broken down into more 
detailed statements.  For each statement, we are asked to choose a 
response from a “drop down menu”, where ‘1’ indicates a poor service 
and ‘4’ a very good service.  We are also asked to indicate when we 
expect to meet the standard to provide supporting text in a box below. 

 
1.3 Given the deadlines set by the Government, it has not been possible to 

produce a final version of the text for circulation in advance to the 
Executive.  The Appendix remains a working document and 
amendments are being made as further evidence and comments are 
being received.  Any significant amendments for the final version, which 
needs to be with the Department of Health by the 30th April, will be 
indicated in the presentation to the Committee. 

 
1.4 Appendix 2 is the resultant Action Plan. 
 

2. Conclusion 
 

2.1 The document is likely to be closely scrutinised by Officers in the 
Department of Health.  They are likely to pay close attention to two areas 
in particular.  Firstly, any area of work which falls well below the 
standards indicated in the audit and secondly, any improvements 
claimed which do not accord with other information they have about the 
service – for example from management information submitted to them 
or from any recent inspections.  Where such improvements are claimed, 
we may anticipate a requirement to evidence them.  The Department of 
Health will also be conducting audits of Councils with Social Services 
responsibilities. 

 
 

 
Background Papers 
‘The Victoria Climbie Inquiry Report’ – published January 2003 

Page 138



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

29 APRIL 2003 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE STRATEGY 
 
PROCUREMENT SPEND TO SAVE BID 
 

FOR DECISION 

This report asks the Executive to approve a “Spend to Save” initiative in procurement for 
three years. 
 
Summary 
 
Central resources for procurement in Barking and Dagenham are currently limited to one 
officer, located in the Corporate Strategy Department.  Whilst it has been agreed by TMT 
that the role of this officer should be fundamentally strategic, this does leave a significant 
gap in resources in terms of operational support, particularly for the procurement of 
services. Current research and comparison with other local authorities has demonstrated 
that providing additional appropriate operational support, training and guidance over a 
three year period could produce substantial savings, details of which are included in the 
body of this report. 
 
Recommendation 
 
The Executive is asked therefore to agree the proposal and that to fund it a total of 
£173,000 can be released from reserves over a three year period. 
 
Contact Officer: 
Stefanie Goldsmith 

 
Corporate Procurement 
Officer 

 
Telephone: 020 8227 2941 
E-mail: stefanie.goldsmith@lbbd.gov.uk
 

 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 Barking and Dagenham has recently come under some criticism for lack of 

resources in procurement, including from the CPA and annual Audit Letter.  In 
addition, the Best Value Review currently underway has established that the 
Council has very few strategic or support resources for this area, particularly when 
compared with “good” or “excellent” local authorities. 

 
1.2 Alongside recommendations for long-term developments in procurement, which will 

arise out of the review, it is proposed that a “Spend to Save” bid is approved 
because there are real financial savings to be had in improving processes and 
deliverables through increased support and training. 

 
1.3 Better procurement will save the Council money and has done so already – eg: 
 

• Citizen’s Panel Contract – this contract was recently retendered and awarded to 
Martin Hamblin GFK.  Retaining a clear specification and performance targets 
will ensure high quality service standards whilst the anticipated financial savings 
amount to approximately £30K per annum 

AGENDA ITEM 10

Page 139



• Fixed price contracts achieved for many consultancy projects have reduced 
overspends – Health and Consumer Services Quality Assurance, Cleaning 
Review Consultant, Harts Lane Contaminated Land Survey Manager etc. 

• Policy and Performance has reviewed purchasing and made savings by using 
corporate contracts and Central Stores of around 40%1 since August 2002.  This 
does not include the additional savings generated through paperless 
transactions directly using Oracle. 

 
1.4 The private sector take procurement very seriously as it affects their profit margin, 

as do some of the “excellent” local authorities such as Westminster and 
Wandsworth, but Barking and Dagenham, with a debt free history has not until now 
had to consider the serious implications of budget cutting exercises. 

 
1.5 The potential savings from better procurement could overtake those identified from 

the Savings Implementation Plan – in a much more painless way. 
 
2. The Proposal 
 
2.1 The spreadsheet attached as Appendix 1 details the proposed expenditure and 

savings over a three year period.  The total required budget is £173,000 and the 
estimated savings £400,000.  This is a conservative estimate and at the end of the 
three year period savings will continue to be achieved, and will probably rise. 

 
2.2 The majority of the funding required is for a PO4 graded Procurement Officer and 

running costs for the unit, plus some running costs, training support and legal 
advice. 

 
2.3 It is anticipated that likely savings will come from: 
 

• Support and training leading to a culture change across the organisation 
whereby the importance of good procurement practice is widespread. 

• Reduction in maverick spend on high volume, low price purchases such as 
stationery, office furniture and other consumables – through increased use of 
Central Stores and corporate contracts. 

• Reduction in corporate financial costs through improved use of e-procurement 
through Oracle. 

• Improved procurement processes and deliverables for service contracts 
• Improved working relationships and reduction in overspends in building 

contracts. 
• More structured use of consultants using clear framework agreements, to secure 

a considerable reduction in cost and improved outcomes generally. 
 
3. Conclusion 
 
3.1 There are considerable potential and relatively painless savings which the Council 

could make from efficient and effective procurement.  However, this will not come 
about without strengthening of the corporate function, training, support and a culture 
change across the organisation. 

                                                 
1 Based on a shopping basket of commonly purchased items including post-its, pens, paper and toner 
cartridges with prices compared between Central Stores and another frequently used supplier with their 
offered discount of 45% from catalogue price. 

Page 140



 
3.2 This proposal sets out a clear three year spend-to-save plan, which should more 

than pay for itself during the period and continue to do make savings in the future.  
In times of increasing budget constraint, this option should be considered as a 
positive way forward. 

 
 
Background Papers 
None 

Page 141



Page 142

This page is intentionally left blank



A
pp

en
di

x 
 1

 - 
 P

ro
po

sa
l

Ta
sk

O
ut

co
m

e
 P

ot
en

tia
l 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

R
at

io
na

le
 C

os
t 

R
ec

ru
it 

a 
th

re
e 

ye
ar

 fi
xe

d 
te

rm
 p

os
t a

t P
O

4 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t s

up
po

rt 
an

d 
in

ho
us

e 
tra

in
in

g.
Pr

oc
ur

em
en

t S
up

po
rt 

en
ha

nc
ed

 - 
tra

in
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d.
 £

   
  1

0,
00

0.
00

 
Sa

vi
ng

s 
ta

rg
et

s 
w

ill 
be

 s
et

 o
n 

an
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 
ba

si
s 

fo
r t

he
 p

er
io

d 
of

 th
e 

ap
po

in
tm

en
t.

 £
   

   
39

,2
95

.0
0 

Sm
al

l a
nn

ua
l r

un
ni

ng
 c

os
ts

 fo
r t

he
 C

or
po

ra
te

 F
un

ct
io

n 
to

 
pr

ov
id

e 
IT

, e
qu

ip
m

en
t, 

pu
bl

ic
at

io
ns

, t
ra

in
in

g 
et

c 
- p

lu
s 

ad
 h

oc
 

le
ga

l a
dv

ic
e.

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t F

un
ct

io
n 

op
er

at
es

 e
ffi

ci
en

tly
 

an
d 

ca
n 

fo
llo

w
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
pl

an
.

 £
   

   
   

   
   

   
-  

 
N

/A
 £

   
   

  5
,0

00
.0

0 

C
ar

ry
 o

ut
 a

 s
ki

lls
 a

na
ly

si
s 

of
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
an

d 
re

co
m

m
en

d 
po

st
s 

fo
r p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t t

ra
in

in
g.

  
Th

is
 is

 p
os

si
bl

e 
to

 c
ar

ry
 o

ut
 in

 h
ou

se
 w

ith
 th

e 
su

pp
or

t o
f H

R
.

Le
ve

l o
f s

ki
lls

 a
nd

 c
om

pe
te

nc
y 

sh
or

tfa
lls

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n.
 £

   
   

   
   

   
   

-  
 

Se
e 

be
lo

w
 £

   
   

   
   

   
   

 - 
  

W
or

k 
w

ith
 H

R
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

ne
w

 P
er

so
n 

Sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 fo
r 

bu
dg

et
 h

ol
de

rs
 a

nd
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l m
an

ag
er

s 
w

ho
 h

av
e 

a 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fo
r p

ur
ch

as
in

g 
ha

ve
  a

 d
eg

re
e 

of
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t 

co
m

pe
te

nc
y.

N
ew

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 a
re

 c
om

pe
te

nt
 in

 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t p
rin

ci
pl

es
 a

nd
 th

e 
cu

ltu
re

 is
 

ca
sc

ad
ed

 d
ow

n 
th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n.
 £

   
   

   
   

   
   

-  
 

Se
e 

be
lo

w
.  

Sa
vi

ng
s 

w
ill 

oc
cu

r o
nc

e 
ne

w
 

of
fic

er
s 

ar
e 

in
 p

la
ce

.  
 £

   
   

   
   

   
   

 - 
  

Im
pl

em
en

t f
irs

t y
ea

r t
ra

in
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
to

 c
ov

er
 b

as
ic

 s
ki

lls
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:
 P

ur
ch

as
in

g 
tra

in
in

g 
fo

r A
dm

in
 S

ta
ff,

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
Pr

oc
ur

em
en

t f
or

 M
an

ag
er

s,
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t o

f C
on

su
lta

nt
s 

fo
r 

M
an

ag
er

s.
  M

os
t o

f t
hi

s 
tra

in
in

g 
ca

n 
be

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t i

n 
ho

us
e 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
th

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l p

os
t i

s 
fil

le
d.

O
ffi

ce
r c

ap
ac

ity
 is

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

be
tte

r b
as

ic
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t 

 £
   

  1
5,

00
0.

00
 

Es
tim

at
ed

 £
15

K 
(5

%
) o

f s
av

in
gs

 o
n 

sm
al

l 
se

rv
ic

e 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

ts
 s

uc
h 

as
 c

on
su

lta
nt

s 
(s

ay
 

£3
00

K 
w

or
th

) d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

on
e 

ye
ar

 p
er

io
d.

 
Ad

di
tio

na
l s

av
in

gs
 w

ill 
co

m
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
C

on
tra

ct
 R

ul
es

/S
ta

nd
in

g 
O

rd
er

s.
  I

 b
el

ie
ve

 5
%

 
ov

er
al

l i
s 

ac
hi

ev
ab

le
 w

ith
 th

e 
rig

ht
 p

ro
ce

du
re

.

 £
   

   
  5

,0
00

.0
0 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f s

pe
nd

 a
ro

un
d 

hi
gh

 v
ol

um
e 

lo
w

 v
al

ue
 p

ur
ch

as
es

 a
nd

 
us

e 
of

 c
en

tra
l s

to
re

s 
in

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t a

nd
 

St
or

es
 S

ec
tio

n 
an

d 
th

e 
BV

 R
ev

ie
w

.  

Ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
an

d 
co

st
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 th

e 
pu

rc
ha

si
ng

 p
ro

ce
ss

 is
 im

pr
ov

ed
.

 £
   

  2
5,

00
0.

00
 

It 
is

 u
nl

ik
el

ey
 th

er
e 

w
ill 

be
 s

av
in

gs
 in

 Y
ea

r 1
 d

ue
 

to
 th

e 
tim

es
ca

le
.  

H
ow

ev
er

, p
ro

je
ct

ed
 s

av
in

gs
 

w
ill 

be
 a

bl
e 

to
 b

e 
su

st
ai

ne
d 

on
ce

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

an
d 

di
re

ct
io

n 
is

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d.

 £
   

   
   

   
   

   
 - 

  

FI
R

ST
 Y

EA
R

 T
O

TA
L 

SA
VI

N
G

S
 £

   
  5

0,
00

0.
00

 
FI

R
ST

 Y
EA

R
 T

O
TA

L 
EX

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

E
 £

   
   

49
,2

95
.0

0 

Ye
ar

 1

Page 143



A
pp

en
di

x 
 1

 - 
 P

ro
po

sa
l

Ta
sk

O
ut

co
m

e
 P

ot
en

tia
l 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

R
at

io
na

le
 C

os
t 

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t O

ffi
ce

r P
os

t a
nd

 ru
nn

in
g 

co
st

s 
on

go
in

g
As

 fo
r Y

ea
r 1

 £
   

  5
0,

00
0.

00
 

So
m

e 
sa

vi
ng

s 
ca

n 
be

 m
ad

e 
in

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 
in

-h
ou

se
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 o

n 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t i
ss

ue
s.

  2
0 

da
ys

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 s
ho

ul
d 

sa
ve

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ap
pr

ox
 

£1
2,

00
0 

in
 tr

ai
ne

rs
 fe

es
.  

In
 a

dd
iti

on
, t

he
re

 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ab
le

 s
av

in
gs

 fr
om

 s
er

vi
ce

 
co

nt
ra

ct
s.

  O
n 

th
e 

ba
si

s 
th

at
 th

e 
C

iti
ze

n'
s 

Pa
ne

l 
co

nt
ra

ct
 s

av
ed

 £
30

K 
pe

r a
nn

um
, £

50
K 

w
ou

ld
 

se
em

 c
on

se
rv

at
iv

e 
w

ith
 s

up
po

rt 
pr

ov
id

ed
 to

 s
ay

 
3 

or
 4

 m
ed

iu
m

 s
iz

ed
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
ts

.

 £
   

   
44

,2
95

.0
0 

Fu
rth

er
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 to
 o

ffi
ce

r r
es

po
ns

ib
ilit

y 
in

 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t
O

ffi
ce

r c
ap

ac
ity

 is
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
be

tte
r b

as
ic

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t 
 £

   
  2

5,
00

0.
00

 
Ye

ar
 o

ne
 s

av
in

gs
 s

us
ta

in
ed

 p
lu

s 
ne

w
 s

av
in

gs
 

fo
r y

ea
r 2

.
 £

   
   

  5
,0

00
.0

0 

A 
fu

ll 
su

ite
 o

f c
or

po
ra

te
 te

m
pl

at
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

s 
fo

r s
er

vi
ce

s,
 g

oo
ds

 
an

d 
w

or
ks

 is
 s

et
 u

p 
fo

r u
se

 b
y 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n.

  
So

m
e 

ex
te

rn
al

 le
ga

l a
dv

ic
e 

w
ill 

be
 n

ee
de

d 
in

 a
dd

iti
on

.

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il's

 in
te

re
st

s 
ar

e 
sa

fe
gu

ar
de

d 
pr

op
er

ly
 a

nd
 c

on
tro

l i
s 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d.

 £
   

   
   

   
   

   
-  

 

Th
is

 p
ro

po
sa

l i
s 

un
lik

el
y 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 in

st
an

t 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

av
in

gs
.  

 H
ow

ev
er

, s
av

in
gs

 w
ill 

be
 

m
ad

e 
"in

 k
in

d"
 w

ith
 im

pr
ov

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

le
ss

 
of

fic
er

 ti
m

e 
in

 fa
ul

t r
ec

tif
ic

at
io

n 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

s/
se

rv
ic

e 
pr

ov
id

er
s.

 £
   

   
  5

,0
00

.0
0 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 C

on
tra

ct
 R

ul
es

 w
ith

 a
 v

ie
w

 to
 e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t a

nd
 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

is
su

es
 a

ro
un

d 
C

en
tra

l S
to

re
s,

 C
or

po
ra

te
 C

on
tra

ct
s,

 
w

ai
ve

rs
, d

el
eg

at
ed

 p
ow

er
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t i
ss

ue
s.

 S
om

e 
ex

te
rn

al
 a

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
m

ay
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
ID

eA
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
.

C
on

tra
ct

 R
ul

es
 a

re
 re

vi
se

d 
an

d 
di

re
ct

iv
es

 
gi

ve
n 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
us

e 
of

 C
en

tra
l S

to
re

s 
an

d 
C

or
po

ra
te

 C
on

tra
ct

s 
as

 a
 m

in
im

um
.  

Th
is

 
is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 b
e 

on
ly

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
ne

ar
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

1s
t y

ea
r p

er
io

d.
  F

ul
l s

av
in

gs
 a

nd
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t t

ar
ge

ts
 w

ill 
on

ly
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ab
le

 in
 fu

tu
re

 y
ea

rs
.

 £
   

   
   

   
   

   
-  

 

Th
e 

lik
el

y 
sa

vi
ng

s 
w

ill 
de

pe
nd

 o
n 

w
he

n 
th

e 
di

re
ct

iv
es

 a
re

 g
iv

en
 (i

nc
lu

de
d 

in
 it

em
 b

el
ow

). 
 

So
m

e 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t c
an

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
, 

al
th

ou
gh

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
is

su
es

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
ea

se
 o

f u
se

 
of

 C
en

tra
l S

to
re

s/
C

or
po

ra
te

 C
on

tra
ct

s 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 
be

in
g 

in
ve

st
ig

at
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

BV
 R

ev
ie

w
. 

 £
   

   
   

   
   

   
 - 

  

O
ff 

co
nt

ra
ct

 s
pe

nd
 fo

r i
te

m
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fro

m
 C

en
tra

l S
to

re
s 

or
 

fro
m

 C
or

po
ra

te
 C

on
tra

ct
s 

is
 p

ro
hi

bi
te

d.
R

ed
uc

tio
n/

re
m

ov
al

 o
f m

av
er

ic
k 

sp
en

d.
 £

   
  3

5,
00

0.
00

 

Th
is

 is
 a

 c
on

se
rv

at
iv

e 
es

tim
at

e.
  O

ne
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

of
f c

on
tra

ct
 th

is
 y

ea
r (

fo
rtu

na
te

ly
 s

to
pp

ed
) w

ou
ld

 
ha

ve
 c

os
t t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
£5

5K
 m

or
e 

th
an

 th
e 

C
or

po
ra

te
 C

on
tra

ct
 fo

r F
ur

ni
tu

re
 p

ric
e.

  T
he

re
 is

 
no

 c
os

t t
o 

th
is

 p
ro

po
sa

l a
pa

rt 
fro

m
 in

te
gr

at
in

g 
ad

vi
ce

 a
nd

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
in

to
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 c

ou
rs

es
.

 £
   

   
   

   
   

   
 - 

  

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f u

se
 o

f c
on

su
lta

nt
s 

w
ith

 c
le

ar
 g

ui
de

lin
es

 fo
r s

en
si

bl
e 

us
ag

e.
  T

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 E

U
 d

ire
ct

iv
es

 a
 s

el
ec

t l
is

t o
f c

on
su

lta
nt

s 
is

 p
ro

cu
re

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

ea
se

 o
f u

se
 c

os
t e

ffi
ci

en
cy

.

Ea
sy

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

fo
r u

si
ng

 c
on

su
lta

nt
s.

  
U

nn
ec

es
sa

ry
 u

se
 o

f c
on

su
lta

nt
s 

is
 

re
du

ce
d.

  S
av

in
gs

 a
re

 n
eg

ot
ia

te
d.

 £
   

  5
0,

00
0.

00
 

Po
te

nt
ia

lly
 a

 v
er

y 
hi

gh
 le

ve
l o

f s
av

in
gs

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
.  

Po
ss

ib
ly

 2
5%

 re
du

ct
io

n 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

bo
ar

d.
 £

   
   

15
,0

00
.0

0 

SE
C

O
N

D
 Y

EA
R

 T
O

TA
L 

SA
VI

N
G

S
 £

   
16

0,
00

0.
00

 
SE

C
O

N
D

 Y
EA

R
 T

O
TA

L 
EX

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

E
 £

   
   

69
,2

95
.0

0 

Ye
ar

 2

Page 144



A
pp

en
di

x 
 1

 - 
 P

ro
po

sa
l

Ta
sk

O
ut

co
m

e
 P

ot
en

tia
l 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

R
at

io
na

le
 C

os
t 

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t O

ffi
ce

r P
os

t a
nd

 ru
nn

in
g 

co
st

s 
on

go
in

g
As

 fo
r Y

ea
r 1

.  
Sk

ills
 h

av
e 

be
en

 tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

an
d 

of
fic

er
s 

no
w

 c
ap

ab
le

 o
f m

an
ag

in
g 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
es

 e
ffe

ct
iv

el
y.

 £
   

  5
0,

00
0.

00
 

Th
is

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
th

e 
m

in
im

um
 fi

gu
re

.  
It 

is
 li

ke
ly

 
th

at
 th

e 
fig

ur
e 

co
ul

d 
be

 h
ig

he
r

 £
   

   
44

,2
95

.0
0 

Fu
rth

er
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 to
 o

ffi
ce

r r
es

po
ns

ib
ilit

y 
in

 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t 

Al
l O

ffi
ce

rs
 w

ith
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t r

es
po

ns
ib

ilit
y 

ar
e 

no
w

 tr
ai

ne
d 

an
d 

co
m

pe
te

nt
 a

cc
or

di
ng

 
to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 le

ve
l. 

Th
is

 w
ou

ld
 in

vo
lv

e 
th

e 
fin

al
 s

ta
ge

 o
f t

ra
in

in
g 

in
 m

or
e 

co
m

pl
ex

 
ar

ea
s 

an
d 

re
qu

ire
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 e
xt

er
na

l 
re

so
ur

ce
s.

 £
   

  4
0,

00
0.

00
 

Ye
ar

 o
ne

 a
nd

 tw
o 

sa
vi

ng
s 

su
st

ai
ne

d.
  N

ew
 

sa
vi

ng
s 

fo
r Y

ea
r t

hr
ee

 a
s 

of
fic

er
s 

be
co

m
e 

m
or

e 
co

m
pe

te
nt

.
 £

   
   

10
,0

00
.0

0 

Pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 fo

r m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t a
re

as
 a

re
 a

gr
ee

d 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
te

d.

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t i

s 
ca

rri
ed

 o
ut

 e
ffi

ci
en

tly
, 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

an
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
bo

un
ds

 o
f 

le
gi

sl
at

io
n 

an
d 

th
e 

C
on

st
itu

tio
n.

  M
av

er
ic

k 
sp

en
d 

is
 th

er
ef

or
e 

al
m

os
t e

ra
di

ca
te

d.
.

 £
   

  5
0,

00
0.

00
 

As
 fo

r y
ea

r 2
.  

Sa
vi

ng
s 

w
ill 

be
 o

ng
oi

ng
.

 £
   

   
   

   
   

   
 - 

  

Se
le

ct
 li

st
 o

f c
on

su
lta

nt
s 

w
id

el
y 

an
d 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

us
ed

 a
nd

 
m

on
ito

re
d

Ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
sa

vi
ng

s 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

ed
 o

ut
co

m
es

 
fro

m
 u

se
 o

f c
on

su
lta

nt
s.

  O
ve

r r
el

ia
nc

e 
on

 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

s 
is

 re
du

ce
d.

 £
   

  5
0,

00
0.

00
 

As
 fo

r y
ea

r 2
.  

Sa
vi

ng
s 

w
ill 

be
 o

ng
oi

ng
.

 £
   

   
   

   
   

   
 - 

  

TO
TA

L 
YE

A
R

 3
 S

A
VI

N
G

S
 £

   
19

0,
00

0.
00

 
TO

TA
L 

YE
A

R
 3

 E
XP

EN
D

IT
U

R
E

 £
   

   
54

,2
95

.0
0 

TO
TA

L 
PR

O
JE

C
TE

D
 S

A
VI

N
G

S
 £

   
40

0,
00

0.
00

 
TO

TA
L 

EX
PE

N
D

IT
U

R
E

 £
   

 1
72

,8
85

.0
0 

Ye
ar

 3

Page 145



Page 146

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 13

Page 147

Document is Restricted



Page 152

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 14

Page 153

Document is Restricted



Page 156

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 15

Page 157

Document is Restricted



Page 160

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 16

Page 161

Document is Restricted



Page 164

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 17

Page 165

Document is Restricted



Page 170

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 19

Page 171

Document is Restricted



Page 174

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 21

Page 175

Document is Restricted



Page 180

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 22

Page 181

Document is Restricted



Page 188

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 23

Page 189

Document is Restricted



Page 190

This page is intentionally left blank


